FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

BiC Franchise System Corporation
A Delaware corporation

’ n 4820 NE 4th St., Suite A-107
Renton, Washington 98059
Phone: (425) 880-2688

@ Ed uca t’o n C enter Email: fr?nchise@bestinclas.seducatior;.com

Website: www.bestinclasseducation.com

BiC Franchise System Corporation offers franchises for the operation of an education center that provides
school-aged children with supplemental learning opportunities in the areas of Mathematics and English as well
as SAT and ACT preparation courses.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Bestdn—Class—Edueation—CenterBEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER" franchise ranges—fromis $84,375 to $146,750142.500. This includes $58,300 to
$60,800 that must be paid to usthe franchisor or ewr-affiliatesaffiliate.

develepment—ng%&s—te—epe&%—te#@emers—%heThe total 1nvestrnent necessary to begm operat1on of a—Best—h&
Class—Eduecation—Center—franchiserangesfrom2 to 4 BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" franchises

under an Area Development Agreement is $124,375 to $256;756252.500. This includes $98,300 to $170,800
that must be paid to usthe franchisor or ewraffiliatesaffiliate.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement, area development
agreement and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this
document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the franchisor at 4820 NE 4th St., Suite A-
107, Renton, Washington 98059 or by phone at (425) 880-2688.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this Disclosure
Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “4 Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which
can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission
(the “FTC”). You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: May +,262427. 2025
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How to Use this Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or EXHIBIT "F".

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or EXHIBIT "G" includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing,
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Best-In
Class Edueation CenterBLST [N
CLASS EDUCATION CENTER® in
my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Best-In-Class
Education CenterBEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER" franchisee?

Item 20 or EXHIBIT "F" lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.

Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)




What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you
market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or
other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends
the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a
registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in EXHIBIT "A".

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your

franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area development
agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration
and/or litigation only in Washington. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may
force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to
mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Washington than in your own state.

Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or advertising fund
payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result
in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and has a
limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than a
franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

Financial Condition. The franchisor's financial condition, as reflected in its financial
statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor's financial ability to provide
services and support to you.

Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales performance levels.
Your inability to maintain these levels may result in loss of any territorial rights you are
granted, termination of your franchise, and loss of your investment.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for
all financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your spouse has no
ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both your and your spouse’s
marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if your franchise fails.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if
any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.



THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a franchise:

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no
value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required
in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i)
The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of
franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude
the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to
purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or
standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
(ii1) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure
any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the
breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).



(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing
the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000.00,
the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by
the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment,
inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor,
a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM 1 FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

2 <c

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “we,” “us” and “the Company” mean BiC Franchise
System Corporation - the franchisor. “You” means the person who buys a Bestdn-Class Edueation-CenterBEST
IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" franchise - the franchisee, and includes your partners if you are a
partnership, your shareholders if you are a corporation, and your members if you are a limited liability company.

For purposes of this Disclosure Document, a “Center” refers to any supplemental education business that we
authorize to operate under our Marks and use our System (as such terms are defined below), including any
Center operated by us, our affiliate, you, or another franchisee. It does not include a Satellite Office (described
further below).

Corporate Information

BiC Franchise System Corporation is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated on February 10, 2023. Our
principal business address is 4820 NE 4th St., Suite A-107, Renton, Washington 98059 and our telephone
number is (425) 880-2688. Our agents for service of process are disclosed in EXHIBIT "A" (for registration
states) and EXHIBIT "B" (for other states). We do not do business under any names other than “BiC Franchise
System Corporation” and our tradename “Best In Class Education”.

Business History

Our founder, Hao Lam, has owned and operated Centers in Washington since 2010. We began offering
franchises for Bestdn-ClassEdueation-Centers in March 2023. We are not engaged in any business other than
offering franchises forBestdn-ClassEdueation Centers and administering the franchise system. We have never
offered franchises in any other line of business. We have never directly owned and operated a Center.

Predecessors, Parents and Affiliates

Our predecessor, Best In Class Education Center, LLC, offered franchises for Bestdn-ClassEdueation-Centers
from March 2011 to May 2021. Best In Class Education Center, LLC never offered franchises in any other line
of business. Best In Class Education Center, LLC never directly owned and operated a Center. Best In Class
Education Center, LLC’s principal business address is 3712 88™ Avenue SE, Mercer Island, Washington 98040.

We do not have any parent companies.

We do not have any afﬁhates that offer (or have ever offered) franchlses in this or any other line of busmess We

Adaptively Edueation—ewnsOur affiliate, LBIS, LLC (“LBIS”), is the exclusive supplier for our BC Portal, BC
Printing Software and administers—the-Adaptively-Learning Management System—(EMS™)—Systems, each of

whlch is an integral r)art of our proprietary online business management Dlatform (“BCP- LMS”) that is used to

pting acquire e & § AS. LBIS has never owned and
operated a Center. LBIS’s pr1nc1pal busmess address is 3712 88th Avenue SE, Mercer Island, Washington
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98040. We do not have any other affiliates that provide goods or services to our franchisees.

Description of Franchised Business

We offer franchises to individuals who have a passion for teaching and/or working with children and who meet
our other qualifications. We do not require that franchisees have prior teaching experience. However, we do
require that franchisees have some prior experience working with children (ideally in an educational setting).

The franchised business you purchase is referred to as your “Business” or your “Center”. As a franchisee, you
will provide school-aged children with Math, English and, if applicable, STEM enrichment studies
(“Enrichment Programs™) as well as SAT and ACT preparation courses from a dedicated brick and mortar
facility that you establish. You may also offer small group or “private” tutoring services and teach a variety of
high-school subjects. You will offer classes after regular school hours and on weekends. Currently, we do not
allow you (or other Centers) to offer or sell any merchandise or retail items.

You may, but need not, offer: (a) our After-School Program (students visit every day after school for at least 2.5
hours and receive one packet of Math and one packet of English each week); and/or (b) our Summer Camp
Program (students visit every day at least 2.5 hours per day for 5 days a week during the Summer and receive
one packet of Math and one packet of English each week). The After-School Program and Summer Camp
Program are referred to as “Special Programs”.

With our prior approval, you may offer programs or engage in revenue generating activities at your Center that
are not part of the Besttn-ClassEdueation-CenterBEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" system. These
programs are referred to as “Affiliate Programs”. For example, with our approval you could partner with a
business that offers drivers education classes at your Center and share revenues from that program with the other
business. You could also generate income from subleasing a portion of your Center during hours when you do
not have students at the Center. All Affiliate Programs must be approved by us in advance. We may impose any
requirements we feel are appropriate as a condition to you offering the Affiliate Program at your Center.

If we award you a franchise, you must sign the form of franchise agreement attached to this Disclosure
Document as EXHIBIT "C" (the “Franchise Agreement”). Under the Franchise Agreement, we grant you a
license to use certain service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos, including the service mark “Best1a
Class—Edueation—Center”BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" (collectively, the “Marks”). The Marks
also include our distinctive trade dress used to identify a Center, whether now in existence or developed in the
future. We also grant you a license to use our business format and operating system that was developed for the
operation of a Center (the “System”). The operational aspects of a Center are contained in our confidential
Brand Standards Manual (the “Manual”). You will operate your Center as an independent business using the
Marks, the System and the support, guidance and other methods and materials we provide.

With our prior approval, you may establish one or more satellite offices (each, a “Satellite Office”), which are
spaces that are rented on a temporary basis (no longer than 12 months) and shared with other
businesses/organizations. Examples of Satellite Office locations include churches, temples, libraries, HOA
buildings, YMCAs, Boys & Girls Clubs, community centers, schools, and similar types of facilities. We will not
consider allowing you to establish a Satellite Office unless: (a) your initial Center has been open for at least 6
months; and (b) your average monthly Gross Sales (defined in Item 6) equal or exceed $5,000 per month for the
3-month period preceding your request. You must sign our then-current form of Satellite Office Addendum for
each Satellite Office you develop, the current form of which is attached to this Disclosure Document as
EXHIBIT "H"-4. The Satellite Office is operated as an extension of the brick-and-mortar Center and is subject
to all terms of the Franchise Agreement except as otherwise provided in the Satellite Office Addendum. Only
franchisees with an established brick-and-mortar Center are eligible to purchase a Satellite Office. A Satellite
Office cannot be purchased at the same time as the purchase of your initial Center.

Area Development Rights

If you satisfy our criteria for multi-unit developers, we may (but need not) offer you the right to enter into an
Area Development Agreement in the form attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "D" (an “ADA”).
The ADA grants you the right and obligation to develop, open and operate multiple Centers within a defined
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“development territory” according to a predetermined “development schedule”. You must develop, open and
operate all of the Centers identified in the development schedule (Satellite Offices do not count). We only grant
area development rights to franchisees who commit to develop, open and operate a minimum of 2 Centers. You
sign a separate franchise agreement for each Center you develop under the ADA. Each franchise agreement will
be our then-current form of franchise agreement, which may differ from the current Franchise Agreement
attached to this Disclosure Document.

Market and Competition

Our Centers offer classes to children from pre-school through 12" grade. The target market for Bestta
ClassBEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" customers includes middle-income to upper-income families
with children who could benefit from supplemental education or help preparing for standardized exams.
Demand for supplemental educational programs is seasonal, with highest demand during the school year and
lowest demand during the summer months.

The market for supplemental educational services is competitive and well-developed. You will compete with a
number of national and local supplemental education providers, including Sylvan Learning Center, Kumon,
Mathnasium, Eye Level, JEI Learning and Huntington Learning Centers. Some competitors operate through a
franchise model. You will also face competition from local teachers who offer after-hours tutoring services.

Laws and Regulations

You must comply with all federal and state licensing and other regulatory requirements relating to the operation
of your Business. In addition to laws that apply to all businesses, there may be laws specifically governing
businesses that provide education or other services to children. In some jurisdictions, teachers may need to be
licensed and/or pass background checks. At this time, we are not aware of any states that require your teachers
to be licensed or certified by the state. There may be other local, state and/or federal laws or regulations
pertaining to your Business with which you must comply. We strongly suggest that you investigate these laws
before buying this franchise.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Hao Lam — Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Hao Lam has served as our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman since February 2023. During the prior 5
years, he has also held the following positions:

Employer Title Location Period of Time
LBIS, LLC Manager Mercer Island, WA | Feb 2023 to present
. CEO and Chairman Mercer Island, WA | Jul 2012 to present
Best In Class Education Center, LLC -
Manager and Chairman Mercer Island, WA | Feb 2011 to Jun 2012
. . . . Feb 2021 to
Adaptively Education, Inc. Executive Chairman Mercer Island, WA Dec 2024
. Feb 2010 to
EDYU USA Holding Ltd. Manager Mercer Island, WA Dec 2021
Lam’s Tutoring Services, Inc. Manager Bellevue, WA Jan 1995 to present

Stephanie Zhu — Chief Financial Officer

Stephanie Zhu has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February 2023. During the prior 5 years, she has
also held the following positions:

Employer Title Location Period of Time
Best In Class Education Center, LLC Vice President of Finance Mercer Island, WA | Jun 2013 to present
Adaptively Education, Inc. Co-Founder & CFO Seattle, WA Feb 2021 to present
Lam’s Tutoring Services, Inc. Vice President of Finance Seattle, WA Jul 2007 to present
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Laura Leddusire — Chief Operating Officer

Laura Leddusire has served as our Chief Operating Officer since February 2023. During the prior 5 years, she
has also held the following positions:

Employer Title Location Period of Time
Best In Class Education Center, LLC Vice President of Operations Mercer Island, WA | Aug 2019 to present
Adaptively Education, Inc. Co-Founder & CEO Mercer Island, WA | Feb 2021 to present
Lam’s Tutoring Services, inc. Vice President of Operations Seattle, WA Feb 2009 to Aug 2019
ITEM 3 LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

You must pay us and our affiliate the initial fees and etherameunts-payments described below.

All of these fees and ether-payments are uniformly imposed— except: (a) a franchisee who is renewing their
franchise rights does not pay any of these fees or other amounts (instead they pay the renewal fee required by
the expiring Franchise Agreement); (b) a franchisee who acquires their Center from another franchisee via an
approved transfer does not pay an initial franchise fee (instead they or the selling franchisee may be required to
pay the transfer fee required by the selling franchisee’s Franchise Agreement) or the Systems Implementation
Fee; and (c) for any discounts listed below.

As further discussed below, a portion of pre-paid Travel Expenses for grand opening assistance may be
refundable if our actual FravelExpensescxpenses are less than the pre-paid-estimate. Otherwise—alAll other
fees and payments are ron—refundablenonrefundable.

Initial Franchise Fee

At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, you pay us a-nen-refundablean initial franchise fee that varies
depending on whether you are purchasing your 1%, 2" 3™ or subsequent Center in accordance with the table
below:

Center Being Purchased Initial Franchise Fee*
1%t Center $45,000
2 Center $40,000

3 and subsequent Centers $35,000 per Center

*  After opening, you may, with our approval, purchase the right to operate a Satellite Office by paying us the
satellite office fee listed in Item 6. The fee is $5,000 if the Satellite Office is located inside the territory
assigned to your Center (your “Center Territory”) or $+722,500 if located outside your Center Territory. For
purposes of determining the initial franchise fee applicable to the next brick-and-mortar Center you purchase,
a Satellite Office located outside your Center Territory counts as the purchase of a Center but a Satellite
Office located inside your Center Territory does not. For example, if you purchase your 1* Center, followed
by a Satellite Office located inside your Center Territory, followed by a 2™ Center, you would pay: (a) a
$45,000 initial franchise fee for your 1% Center; (b) a $5,000 satellite office fee for your Satellite Office; and
(c) a $40,000 initial franchise fee for your 2™ Center. On the other hand, if the Satellite Office in the example
above is located outside your Center Territory, then you would pay: (a) a $45,000 initial franchise fee for
your 1% Center; (b) a $1722,500 satellite office fee for your Satellite Office; and (¢) a $35,000 initial
franchise fee for your 2™ Center.

Page 4 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



The initial franchise fee is inclusive of a $10,000 initial training fee for the pre-epening—initialfranchise
management and operations training program (‘‘Management Training”) that we conduct before vou open your
Center.

LEMSSvystems Implementation Fee

At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement; you pay our affiliate, AdaptivelyEdueation,—a—nen-
refundableLBIS. a $2,000 implementation fee for the setup and configuration of BCP-LMS (the “EMSSystems

Implementation Fee”). We reserve-therighttemay require you to pay us the EMSSvystems Implementation Fee
to-us, in Wthh case we w111 remit the fee to our afﬁhate MS—melemer&a&ea—Fee}Hm%ymLy—kmpesed—H

Grand Opening Marketing Fee

At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, you pay us a nen-refundable-$10,000 grand opening marketing
fee. We spend all of these funds on grand opening marketing activities to promote your Center over a 6-month
period, completing no later than 2 months after your grand opening. We do not keep any portion of these funds.
We reserve the right to require you to spend the grand opening marketing funds directly with suppliers in
accordance with our instructions, in which case you will not pay the fee to us. For United States Veterans and
“Qualified Educators,” we will provide an additional $5,000 allowance toward grand opening marketing
activities to promote your Center. A “Qualified Educator” is any person who is: (ia) a credentialed educator;
(#b) a state certified teacher (active or retired); (iiic) a licensed childcare professional; (#vd) a college educator;
or (¥e) an educator employed through an accredited Kindergarten through 12th grade institution. If you are both
a United States Veteran and Qualified Educator, you will only receive the $5,000 allowance (not $10,000).

For the sake of clarity, if you acquire your Center from another franchisee via an approved transfer, you still
must pay us the $10,000 grand opening marketing fee, which we will spend on grand opening marketing
activities to promote the reopening of your Center under new ownership.

Grand Opening Assistance Expense Reimbursement

We send a trainer to your Center to provide a minimum of 2 days of onsite training and grand opening
assistance. You must reimburse us for the associated Travel Expenses (defined in Note 2 of Item 6), which we
estimate will range from $1,300 to $3,800. You pay us $1,500 at least 1 month prior to your grand opening date
as a pre-paid estimate of the Travel Expenses for the trainer. If the actual Travel Expenses incurred are different
than the $1,500 pre-paid estimate then: (a) you pay us any Travel Expenses that exceed the $1,500 pre-paid
estimate within 10 days of invoicing; or (b) we promptly refund to you any overpayment if the Travel Expenses
are less than the $1,500 pre-paid estimate. If you request that we send more than 1 trainer, you must also pay an
additional fee of $350 per day (including each work day and travel day, for a minimum of 2 days) and reimburse
us for the associated Travel Expenses for the additional trainer.

Design Fee

At no additional charge, we provide 2 alternative Site Drawings (you select the Site Drawing you prefer). A
“Site Drawing” refers to a basic preliminary site drawing consisting of our proposed high-level design and
layout for your Center (and each room within your Center), including our suggestions for the layout and
configuration of required furniture and equipment. If you request additional Site Drawings (or revisions to any
Site Drawing previously submitted to you), we may charge you a $300 design fee for each additional or revised
Site Drawing we provide, which will be due 10 days after invoicing. Most franchisees do not request additional
Site Drawings or incur a design fee.

Opening Extension Fee (for E2 Visa candidates only)

If you are unable to open your Center by the required opening deadline due to delays in obtaining your E2 Visa
for reasons other than your neglect, we will grant you a 90-day extension of your opening deadline in exchange
for payment of a $2,500 extension fee. The fee is due at the time you request the extension and is non-
refundable, even if your E2 Visa is ultimately denied.
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Development Fee

If you sign an ADA, you pay us a-nenrefundable development fee that consists of the total aggregate initial
franchise fees for all Centers you commit to develop under the ADA. You do not pay any additional initial
franchise fee under the Franchise Agreements you sign for these Centers. The amount of the initial franchise fee
for each Center is determined in accordance with the table set forth above under “Initial Franchise Fee”. We
expect most area developer franchisees will purchase the right to develop between 2 and 4 Centers, which
results in development fees ranging from $85,000 to $155,000.

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES
TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS
You must provide us with monthly reports of
Monthly amount equal to your Gross Sales, Affiliate Program Sales and
greater of: (a) $250; or (b) Special Program Sales.
sum of 12% of Gross Under our current incentive program, we will
Royalty Fee Sales plus 12% of 7™ day of month waive the royalty fee for the first 5 months after

Affiliate Program Sales
plus 6% of Special
Program Sales

opening for any Franchise Agreement signed in
2025 (incentive does not apply to Transfers). The
incentive program ends December 31, 2025.
Royalty fees are otherwise uniformly imposed.

Brand and System
Development Fund
Fee

Up to 3% of Gross Sales

V)
Sales)plus 1% of Special
Program Sales

(currently 2% of Gross
Sales plus 1% of Special

Program Sales)

Same as royalty fee

See-Note-3-We deposit this fee into a Brand Fund.

You have no voting rights pertaining to the
administration of the Brand Fund, the creation or

placement of advertising, or the amount of the
brand fund fee. We notify you 120 days before

increasing the fee.

Up-to-$+5-perstudentper
et See—Noete—4—DMonthly Student User Fees is
(eu&enﬂ—y%g—per—smdeﬁ{ calculated as a “base fee” multiplied by the number
persubject-per of subjects taken by enrolled students at your
month)Sum of: Center as of the last day of the prior month. The
BOP-LMS (a) 2% of Gross Sales base fee is $8 per student per subject per month
LicensineMonthly | Ti2US Enrichment Sales; Same as royalty fee (Mathematlcs, Enghsh and STEM are each separate
Fee (b) 1% of Special Program “subjects”). We may increase the base fee upon 90
Sales; and days’ notice, up to a maximum of $15 per student
(c) Monthly Student User per subject per month (maximum annual increase is
Fees $2). We prorate Monthly Student User Fees for the
(rTnewing franchisees may 1** and last month (if you do not operate the full
pay lower fee - see Note month).
1
R i
Gumeu{um Gfess—Sales—mmus—yeuf S Lk See N .
R I e
)10 of Soecial
Program-Salcs
Local Marketing [Months 2 throp.tgh 12 1 As incurred Fhese-amounts-are-not-paid-to-us—nstead;-you This
Commitment after Center opening date] (monthly) is the minimum amount you must spend these
$1,500 per month Y armenntteeatbe o meplebandpromee
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT ? DUE DATE REMARKS
your Center_in your local market (the “Local
Marketing Commitment”). Amounts you —Any
[Months 13 & beyond] amount-you-pay us or our afﬁhate. for marketing
materials sare credited towards against your Local
Greater of $1,000 per Marketing Commitment. Your grand opening
month or 4% of monthly marketing fee deseribed—in—ltem—5—covers your

Gross Sales

minimum required marketing expenditure—forup-te
the—first 2-menthsexpenditures through the end of

the 2" month after yeu-operopening.

—Managenent/Travel

Expenses: 2 Days of

10 days after

SeeNeote—5-We provide 2 days of onsite training
and support within 30 days after your Center opens.

Onsite Training] invoicePsierte You must reimburse our Travel Expenses. If you
$700-perperson-$1.300 to | taining ask us to send more than 1 trainer, you pay an
$3.,800 (estimate) additional $350 per additional trainer per day
(including work and travel days) for a minimum of
. 2 days.
Training Fees and [Management Training] . . .
Lemenne §700 per person Prior to training You pay us a $700 training fee for each person who
e attends Management Training after opening. We
may charge a training fee of up to $350 per day for
[Other Training] each person who attends remedial training or
$350 per person per day additional training you request. There is no training
’ . fee for refresher or supplemental training.
gplus Travel Expensesﬁ 10 days after invoice
we conduct training You must also reimburse Travel Expenses we incur
onsite) to provide onsite training at your Center.
Up to $200 for initial We may implement teacher certification programs
Certification certification and $100 for |Prior to certification and require all teachers to complete the program, in

Training Fees

periodic recertification

training

(not currently imposed)

which case we may charge certification fees for
live in-person certification training (no fee would
be charged for virtual certification programs).

Technology Fee

Varies
Up to $200 per month per
Center

(currently $100 per month
for 1 email account and
Google suite products,
plus $10 per month for
each additional email
account in excess of 1)

7" day of month or as
we otherwise specify

SeeNete—6:Includes amounts you pay us or our
affiliate for Technology Systems, including (a)
amounts paid for proprietary items, (b) amounts we
collect from you and pay to third-parties and (c)
administrative fees to manage the technology
platform and negotiate/ manage relationships with
third-party licensors. It does not include amounts
you pay to third parties. The BCP-LMS Monthly
Fee is listed separately and is not considered a

technology fee.

See—Nete—+—Imposed to cover our costs if we
implement a customer satisfaction program, such as

. Up to $500 per year - ;
Customer Service pt tf’ y 10 days after invoice collecting and evaluating data and feedback from
Fee (no currently J Y customers to determine their satisfaction with your
chargedimposcd) Center and identify potential modifications to the
System to improve customer satisfaction.
SeeNote—8-We may hold conferences to discuss
matters _affecting franchisees. Attendance is
Conference Up to $350 per person per L .
Registration Fee | conference 10 days after invoice |mandatory unless we designate attendance as

optional or we waive your obligation to attend
based on showing of good cause.
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS
Varies You must participate in any gift card program we
— all-asseetated—program-—
. Up to $50 per month per |10 days after invoice establish and pay required
Gift Card Program . fees and contributions and—fees—we—reasonably
Center or as we otherwise
Fees require—in—order—to—implement-and-to us or a third

(not currently

chargedimposed)

specify

party to administer the program.-Fhese-ameunts-are
I R e e

Product Purchases

Varies depending on item
purchased

(not currently imposed)

10 days after invoice

We may;—but—need—net—be— serve as a System

supplier for certain-items-purchased-by-franchisces.
saeh——as——inventory;—marketing——material;
equipmentgoods and eperating—supplies:services
you must purchase. If we—supplyr—any—efthese
itemsthis occurs, we will provide you with a price
list upon request.

Relocation Fee

$1,000 for each propesed
new site you propose plus
Travel Expenses

At time new site
proposed

You may not relocate your Center without our
approval. If we allow you to relocate, you must pay
us the $1,000 fee and reimburse us—for-all Travel
Expenses we incur to visit new sites you propose.
We—wiH refund 75% of the reloeation—fee if we

reject the prepesed-site.

Satellite Office
Fee (per office)

[If Office Located Inside
Your Center Territory]
$5,000 per office

At time you sign
Satellite Office
Addendum

See Note 94 for a description of the other fees you
pay relating to a Satellite Office.

[1f Office Located QOutside
Your Center Territory]
$22,500 per office

At time you sign

Leepaeal Payablelmposed if you renew your franchise rights
Renewal Fee $2,500 Agreementrenewal by signing a renewal Franchise Agreement.
agreement
Payable—f-you—You pay the transfer ersel—your
eanchise. Nocl £ franchi corrod
60% of then-current initial entity—you—control—or—for—ecertain—transfers—of
Transfer Fee franchise fee (reduced to | Before ownership—interests—between—existitg—owners: oo
40% if buyer is an existing | transferTransfer for all Transfers other than Permitted Transfers. If

franchisee)

our broker finds the buyer-isfound-byabrokerwe

engage, you must also reimburse us for all
commissions we pay te-the broker.

Audit Fee

Actual cost of audit

(plus Travel Expenses for
audit team)

10 days after invoice

is
neeessaryrequired because you fail to send
wssubmit required infermationdata or reports in a
timely manner- or (b) reveals you understated sales
by 3% or more.

Payable—enlylmposed if audit (a) reveals—you
understated—sales—by—at—least—3%—or—(b)—i
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS

If weour debit of your account but—there—are
$100 plus default interest insuffieientfunds;—is rejected or ayour check yeu
at lesser of (a) 15% per issuwe-is returned due—tofor insufficient funds, then
Late Fee annum (prorated on daily |10 days after invoice |we may charge (in addition to the late fee) an NSF
basis) or (b) highest rate fee of $50 per incident. In—California;
allowed by applicable law defaultDefault interest is limited to 10% per annum

in California.
Payablelmposed if you fai-te-ecomply-withbreach a
mandatory standard or operating procedure
(including timely—submission of required reports)
s and de—netfail to cure within the time period we

Noncompliance
fee

$500 per incident

Upon demand

require. We may impose an additional $100 fire
forfee every 48 hours the nen-comphanee
isswebreach remains uncured after we impose the
initial finefee. We will deposit alfinesthese fees
into the brand-fund-Brand Fund.

Default
Reimbursements

All costs we incur to cure
your default

10 days after invoice

If you fail to cure a breach of the Franchise
Agreement or our brand standards in the time
period we require, we may take steps to cure on
your behalf—-we-de-se;- and you must reimburse
us for alour costs we—ineur—inchidingTravel
Expenses—Examples(examples include failure to
pay suppliers, maintain required-insurance;—fattare
to-pay-supphers—andfatlureto— or meet quality er
safety-standards-).

Management Fee

$250 per day plus Travel
Expenses and other costs
we incur to temporarily
manage your Center

10 days after invoice

If you default—under—thefail to cure a Franchise
Agreement default or the Managing Owner dies,

we can designate a temperary—managerperson to
manage your Center until yeu—eure-the default is

cured or findareplacement-Managing Owner;—as
appheable replaced.

Indemnification

Amount of our damages,
losses and expenses

10 days after invoice

You must indemnify and—reimburse—us for al
damages;—losses and expenses we incur due to
theyour operation of yeurthe Center or yeur-breach
of the Franchise Agreement.

Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs

Amount of attorneys’ fees
and costs we incur

Upon demand

You must reimburse us for all attorneys’ fees and
costs we incur relating to your breach of the
Franchise = Agreement or etherany related
agreement-with-us-er-ouraffiliates.

Development
Schedule
Extension Fee

(ADA only)

$2,500 for each 90-day

extension

At time you request
extension

H—ou—need—to—You may extend a development
deadline;—we—will—grant—you—a—single—90-day
extenston for the—development—of—that—unit—in
exchange—for-90 days by paying us the extension
fee. Fhe—extension—option—may—be—used—1 ou are
limited to a maximum of 4 times—{i-e5—cxtensions
for a Center (360 days-maximum—extension)y—Y-ou

R R s aele s e e Lae loe onel
temessEs
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS

Early Termination

You may terminate without cause if yvou: (a) yeu
provide at least 180 days’ notice; (b)-yeu allow us
to market and resell your Center during the 180-
day period (you do not receive any proceeds of the

$5,000 At time Center closes sale); (c) you-have-paid-us-pay all amounts owed,;

Fee and (d) yeu-sign a General Release (subject to state
law). You pay ss-the early termination fee only if
you eease—eoperatingclose your Center prior
tebefore the expirationend of the term and fail-tedo
not follow these procedures.

Notes:
1. Nature and Manner of Payment: All fees are imposed by and payable to us except-that: (a) you spend the

Local Marketing Commitment directly with suppliers; and (b) we-may-eitherrequire-you te-pay BCP-LMS

LieensingMonthly Fees and-Currienlum DistributionEeesto LBIS (or BEPertal licensingfeesifyouuse-the

BC Peortal-instead-of EMS)to—ouraffiliatesor-we may collect these fees from you and remit them to eur
affthiates:LBIS on your behalf). All fees are nonrefundable and uniformly imposed except as otherwise

noted. You must sign an ACH Authorization Form (attached to the Franchise Agreement as
ATFTTACHMENT "E"ATTACHMENT "E") permitting us to electronically debit your designated bank
account for-all amounts owed to us and our affiliates (other than fees due within 15 days after signing the
Franchise Agreement). You must deposit all Gross Sales, Affiliate Program Sales and Special Program
Sales into the bank account and ensure sufficient funds are available for withdrawal before each due date.
You are responsible for all taxes imposed on you or us based on products, intangible property (including
trademarks) or services we provide to you.

Eorpurpeses-of-thisfee-table (and-the remainder-of Definitions: As used in this Disclosure Documenty;, the

following capitalized terms have the meanings given to them below:

“Affiliate Program Sales” means aHtotal gross sums you collect from al-Affiliate Programs conducted in
connection with your Center;- (including the-amounts that-third-party marketing agencies, such as Groupon,
receive and-retain-from your customers and retain for marketing goods or services-relating-to-yourAffiliate
Programs:). Affiliate Program Sales do not include: (a) sales or use taxes; (b) amounts refunded to
customers; or (c) Gross Sales or Special Program Sales.

“Enrichment Programs” means weekly group tutoring in Mathematics, English and/or STEM.

“Enrichment Sales” means the portion of total ameunt-efreurGross Sales thatis-derived from the sale of
Enrichment Programs- (i.e., weekly group tutoring in Mathematics, English and/or STEM).

“Gross Sales” means alltotal gross sums that-you collect from all goods and services that-you sell;plus-al

stherrmpsrsnesllost o he posetiopn oo Cepeee ncluding sssediesrt e pe e s snec s D
fees;—business—interruption—insurance—proceeds—and-amounts that-third-party marketing agencies, such as

Groupon, receive and—retain—from your customers and retain for marketing goods or services:) or that
otherwise relate to your Center (e.g., advertising revenues, sponsorship fees, business interruption insurance
proceeds, etc.). Gross Sales does not include: (a) sales or use taxes; (b) amounts refunded to customers; or
(c) Affiliate Program Sales or Special Program Sales.

“Permitted Transfer” mecans a Transfer: (a) between existing owners; or (b) by the owners to a new
business entity that is 100% owned and controlled by the transferring owners. It does not include a Transfer
described in (a) or (b) that results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20% of the franchised business.

“Special Program Sales” means alltotal gross sums that-you collect from all goods and services that-you sell

in connection with any optional Special Programs ¢which—are—optional-programs)y—you choose to offer
(including the-amounts that-third-party marketing agencies, such as Groupon, receive and-retain-from your

customers and retain for marketing goods or services—relatingto-your-Speetal Programs:). Special Program

Sales do not include: (a) sales or use taxes; (b) amounts refunded to customers; or (c) Gross Sales or
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Affiliate Program Sales.

“Technology Systems” means and includes all information and communication technology systems we
specify from time to time, including, without limitation, computer systems, point-of-sale systems, learning
systems, printing systems, webcam systems, telecommunications systems, security systems, music systems
and similar systems, together with the associated hardware, software (including cloud-based software) and
related equipment, software applications, mobile apps, and third-party services relating to the establishment
use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of these systems.

“Total Sales” means the amount comprised by the sum of Gross Sales plus Affiliate Program Sales plus
Special Program Sales.

“Transfer’ means a transfer or assignment of: (a) the Franchise Agreement or ADA (or an interest in either

such agreement); (b) the Center’s assets (other than the sale of furniture, fixtures or equipment in the
ordinary course); (c) an ownership interest in the entity that is the “franchisee” or “area developer”:; or (d)
the franchised business you conduct under the Franchise Agreement or ADA.

“Travel Expenses” means the travel, meals and lodging expenses incurred by us and/or our representatives
to visit your Center, including: (a) economy tickets (no red-eye flights); (b) business class hotels (3.5 stars
and up); (c) up to $50 per person per day for meals; and (d) actual costs incurred for local transportation,
such as car rental fees plus insurance costs, taxi fare, Uber fees, etc.

3—We—ha¥e—estabhshed—&nd—admm+stef—BCP LMS Monthlv Fee: If you are a bfaﬁd—aﬁd—systefn—deve}epmeﬂt

ame&m—e:tlth%reqﬂﬂed—eeiﬁibﬂﬁeﬂ—\&lerenewmg franchlsee Who ooerates a Legacy Center your base fee
will-provide: (a) start at least1-830-days™ nereasingth : : HA atriby

per per student per subJect per monthJPhe—LMS—Lteemmg—Fee—&ppheable—d%mg—the—ﬁstaﬁéleFL&st
meﬂth—ef—th%tefm—ef—yeaf when you sign the renewal Franchlse Agreement—ma%b%pfemted—l-f—th%ﬁm

st&dem—ehaﬂgesdtﬁm‘g—theeetﬁsee# and (b) increase bV $1 every Januarv 15 unt11 it is equal to the base
fee Da1d bv new franchisees ( currentlv $8). A “Legacy Center” refers to a meﬂth,—then—yeﬂ—mast—pay—the

Heurenewing franchisee who: (a) purchased yeurthe Center from our predecessor-and-choose: (b) did
not sign a Remote Learning Participation Addendum with Best In Class E-Academy, LLC; and (c) elects
to continue to acqulre and obtain educational materlals from LBIS through the BC Portal &efeﬂced—te—as—a
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94, Satellite Office Fee: If your Satellite Office is located inside your Center Territory; then: (a) you pay us a
$5,000 satellite office fee-; and (b) the territory assigned to your Satellite Office will be the same as your
Center Territoryy-. If theyour Satellite Office is located outside your Center Territory; then: (a) you pay us a
$4722,500 satellite office fee—(; and (b) you will receive a new territory for your Satellite Office)., which
must be adjacent to your Center Territory. The satellite office fee does not vary depending on the number of
dedicated brick-and-mortar Centers or other Satellite Offices you have purchased.

With our prior approval, you may convert a Satellite Office to a dedicated brick-and-mortar Center after
opening (for example, you convert temporary shared space to a long-term lease that is exclusively utilized
by you). In order to do so, you must pay us the difference between the satellite office fee previously paid to
us and our then-current initial franchise fee that would be due for a brick-and-mortar Center.

You do not pay us thean initial training fee, design fee, grand opening marketing fee, or grand opening
Travel Expense reimbursement (each described in Item 5) for a Satellite Office. You must pay a separate
$2,000 l:MSsttem Implementatlon Fee for the use of LMS at your Satelhte Ofﬁce Hewever—rﬂt you

are a renewing franchlsee who operates a Les_acv Center you must pay LBIS %hfeugh—&%B@Peﬁal—theﬂ

yeu—de—aet—pay—th%a $2, 000 I:MSsttem Implernentatlon Fee er—eﬁgei-ng—I:MS—Iﬂeeﬂsmg—Fees—fer—useef

af anv) but Vou do not pay thlb fee for eaeh—Sa%eHﬁe@ﬁﬁeeLaﬂd—kﬁyeu—epePa%%a—Legae}#GeMer—yeu—wﬂl
pay—a—me&@hl—y—the renewal of your Legacy Center—I:teeﬂsmg—FeHr—nyewepera%%a—RHLGeﬂ%r—yewer

The royalty fee and other percentage-based fees described in the table above apply equally to revenues
generated by the Satellite Office, although you must report these revenues separately from the revenues
generated by your brick-and-mortar Center. You must also pay a separate technology fee for each Satellite
Office you operate.
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ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

e : " .

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

e e s
1 METHOD OF TO WHOM PAYMENT
TYPE OF EXPENDITURE AMOUNT WHEN DUE
PAYMENT IS To BE MADE
Initial Franchise Fee 2 $45,000 Lump sum At tlmc? you sigh Us
Franchise Agreement
Initial Training Expenses
L $1,500 to $3,000 As incurred During training Hotels, restaurants and
o2 peopletrainingin airlines
Washington)®
Pebmbamesen e Leve Travel Prepaid estimate due
Expenses for Onsite Training |$1,300 to $3,800 Lump sum 30 days priertebefore | Us
4 opening
Lease Deposit * $4,000 to $6,000 Lump sum Before opening Landlord
Build Out & Improvements ¢ |$2,500 to $35,000 As incurred Before opening Contrac?ors, architects
& suppliers
Signage ’ $500 to $4,500 Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
Decorating, Eurnlture & $3,000 to $4,000 As incurred Before opening Suppliers
Furnishings
kM%Systcms Implementation $2.000 Lump sum At time you sign Us or affiliate
Fee Franchise Agreement
Technology Systems '° $2,000 to $72563.000 |Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
Utility Deposits $500 to $1,000 As incurred Before opening Utility companies
Business License $200 to $400 Lump sum Before opening Government agencies
Professional Fees !! $2,500 to $5,000 Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
I Premi . .
(gsrljlr(?ztchz) remium $875 to $1,200 Lump sum Before opening Insurance companies
Grand Opening Marketing At time you sign
Fee 12 $10,000 Lump sum Franchise Agreement Us
Landlord, us, business
Additional Funds '3 . . coaching organization,
(3 months) $8,500 to $18,600 As incurred As incurred suppliers andd:
employees

Total Estimated Initial
Investment '

$84,375 to $446,750142,500

Fable B— EstimatedThe table below estimates the initial investment for the purchase

rights- for 2 to 4 Centers:

of area development

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

G Do pe e e e cop s s s o 0 e g L Ol s,

development fee.

TYPE OF EXPENDITURE ! AMOUNT ML Oy WHEN DUE W@ DR AT
PAYMENT IS To BE MADE
Development Fee 13 $85,000 to $155,000 | Lump sum At time you sign ADA | Us
il Ivesment 10 Open | $39.75 o e 03000 i panio o s et
Initial Center $101,75097.500 ’
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
Sl dan oy s ie cop e e g 0 Ol o DO ey

1 METHOD OF To WHOM PAYMENT
TYPE OF EXPENDITURE AMOUNT WHEN DUE
PAYMENT IS To BE MADE

Total Estimated Initial
Investment_ '

$124,375 to $256;756252,500

Notes:

1.

Financing and Refunds: We do not offer d1rect or indirect ﬁnancmg for any of these items. No amounts paid
to us are refundable eth h Atia ) 3 except as
otherwise discussed in Note 34 below. We are urawarenot aware of any £eesamounts paid to third-party
suppliers that are refundable, although your landlord may refund your security deposit at the end of the lease
if you do not damage the property or default.

Initial Franchise Fee: This estimate assumes you are purchasing your 1% Center. The initial franchise fee is

reduced to: (a) $40,000 if-yeu-are-purchasinsfor your 2" Center-ex; and (b) $35,000 ifyeu-are-purchasing
your3*-orfor any additional CenterCenters you purchase.

Initial Training Expenses: This estimates your expense to send 1 to 2 people to Washington for Management

Training. Your actual training expenses may vary depending on: (a) the number of people you send to
training; (b) the distance they must travel; and (c) the level and quality of accommodations, travel and
dining selected.

34 Travel Expenses for Onsite Training: You must reimburse our Travel Expenses to send 1 corporate trainer

to prevideyour Center for 2 days of onsite training at-yeurCenterand support. We estimate these expenses
will range from $1,300 to $3,800. You pay us a $1,500 pre-paid estimate of these expenses 30 days prior to

opening. The actual Travel Expenses incurred are reconciled with the pre-paid estimate after completion of
onsite training. As discussed in Item 5, if our actual Travel Expenses are less than the $1,500 pre-paid
estimate, we will refund the overpayment to you or issue you a credit against royalty fees. This estimate
assumes we send 1 corporate trainer to your Center. If you request additional trainers, you pay an additional
training fee of $350 per day for each additional trainer you request.

4-5. Lease Deposit: This estimate assumes you lease your premises. Rent varies dependlng on factors such as the

size and location of the premises
landlerds: and local market conditions. We anﬁe}pa%e xpect most Centers will range in size from 1 OOO to
1,500 square feet with rent ranging from $2,000 to $3,000 per month. Landlords typically require security
deposits equal to 1 or 2 months’ rent and may, in addition, require payment in advance of the first and/or

last month’s rent. The tetal-estimated-lease-deposit-shownestimate in the table abeve-includes 2 months’

rent. Some franchisees may preferchoose to ewnpurchase the premisesfortheirCenterreal estate. The cost
to purchase real estate varies so widely that we cannot reasonably estimate the cost.

5:6.Build Out & Improvements: The cost of leasehold improvements and build-out saryvaries widely based on a

number of factors including:
o the size and condition of the leased space
o the extent and nature of any-existing leasehold improvements

o whetherthe amount of landlord will-contributeto-the-costs-ofthecontributions, if any, towards leasehold

improvements—(referred—te—as—improvement costs (a “Tl AHewanees™)—and-the—amount—ofany—T
Allowance-yeou-are-able-to-negetiate”’)

o leeal-demolition and construction costs and prevailing wage rates in yeurthe local market

rseme-eases;Some landlords that-provide a T1 Allowance but increase the-monthly rent to recapture the TI
Allowance and amortize it over the lease term (or evera-sherterperiodpart of timethe lease term). The low
estimate in the table-abeve assumes your space is either “move-in ready” with few required leasehold
improvements or your landlord covers most leasehold improvement expenses with a TI Allowance. The
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high estimate assumes your space requires leasehold improvements and you bear the associated costs.

6-7.Signage: You must purchase and install the signage we specify. However, you may need to modify our
standard signage to conform to local zoning laws, property use restrictions and/or lease terms. In some
instances, exterior signage may be prohibited due to applicable zoning or use restrictions. The low estimate
assumes your Center is located within an office building that does not allow exterior signage while the high
estimate assumes your Center will be in retail space with exterior signage.

7.8. Decorating, Furniture & Furnishings: This estimates—ypeurincludes the estimated cost for classroom tables,
chairs, light fixtures and furniture for the reception area.

8:9. Systems Implementation Fee: You pay a $2,000 EMSSystems Implementation Fee to setup and configure

LMS—Youwillnotineur-this-fee-ifyouarc-a-renewing franchisce and yvou-choosc-to-continuc-to-acquirc-and
obtat-edueational-materialstromEBISthreush-the BC Portal-instead-etfusing EMS.

9:10. Technology Systems: This estimates your costs to purchase and set up your Technology Systems,
including your computer system (including hardware, software and printer), telephone system, 5 web-based
security cameras as well as hardware and installation. FhelowThis estimate estimate assumes you purchase
a small printer or lease a large printer-while-the-high-estimate-assumes. If you choose to purchase a larger
printer, your cost may be higher. In recent years, none of our franchisees have elected to purchase a large
printer.

4+0:11. Professional Fees: This includes fees you may incur to hire a professional to review your Franchise
Agreement, negotiate your lease and set up your company. It may also include accounting fees to set up
your accounting system. You must hire a real estate professional to review and negotiate your lease. If you
use our recommended real estate professional, your fee for LOI and lease review and negotiation will be
$3,500 per lease, but we will contribute $1,000 (so you pay the remaining $2,500). The low estimate
assumes you hire our recommended real estate professional to review and negotiate your LOI and lease but
choose not to engage the services of attorneys, accountants or other professionals for any other purpose.

+H-12. Grand Opening Marketing Fee: You pay us the grand opening marketing fee—We, which we use-thisfee
to market and promote the opening of your Center.

42.13. Additional Funds: This estimates your expenses during the first 3 months of operation, including-tease
payments: rent ($6,000 to $12,000); estimate); payroll costs (excluding any wage or salary paid to you;);
advertising expenses; technology fees;—business—eoaching; fees (which—arepaid to a recommended (but

optional) third-party business coaching organization;—which-is-optional-butrecommended,—and-estimated-to
range-from-$ (51,000 to $3,600); estimate); utilities; and other miscellaneous expenses and required working

capital. Your initial 3 months of rent and insurance premium are separately stated in the table above. These
figures are estimates based on-eur—prineipals’: (a) the experience of our management team in developing
and, opening and operating company-owned Centers; and eur—franchisees’(b) the experience of our
franchisees in developing-and, opening and operating franchised Centers.

43-14. Budget and Initial Investment Report: We strongly recommend you hire an accountant, business advisor
or other professional to assist you in developing a budget for the construction, opening and operation of
your Center. Within 60 days after your opening date, you must send us a report, in the form we designate,
listing the expenses you incur to develop and open your Center. We may use this data to update the initial
investment estimate in future versions of our Franchise Disclosure Document.

+4-15.SeeDevelopment Fee: Item 5 for-a-diseussion-of-the-ealenlationofdiscusses how the development fee- is
calculated. This initial investment estimate assumes you commit to develop either 2 Centers (low estimate)
or 4 Centers (high estimate). If you eemmitpurchase the right to develop more than 4 Centers, your
development fee will increase by $35,000 for each additional Center you commit to develop-in-exeess-of4-.
This nitialinvestment-estimate does not include theyour costs yeu—willHireur-to develop any Center other

than yeur1*the first Center developedyou develop under the ADA.
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ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Source-Restricted Purchases and Leases - Generally

You must purchase or lease certain “source-restricted” goods and services for the development and operation of
your Center. By—seuree’ ‘Source-restricted”—we-mean” means the good or service must meet our specifications
and/or must be purchased from an approved or designated supplier (in some cases, an exclusive designated
supplier, which may be us or an affiliate). The Manual includes our specifications and supplier list. We notify
you of changes to our specifications or supplier list by email, updates to the Manual, bulletins or other means of
communication.

Supplier Criteria

Our criteria for evaluating a-sapphersuppliers include standards for: (a) quality, delivery—performance, design,
appearance and price of the product or service-as—weH-as—the; and (b) dependability, production capabilities,
reputation and financial stab#itystrength of the supplier. Upon request, we will provide you with any objective
specifications pertaining to our evaluation of a supplier or product, although certain important subjective criteria
(e.g., product appearance, design, functionality, etc.) are important to our evaluation but cannot be described in
writing.

If you wish to purchase or lease a source-restricted item from a non-approved supplier, you must send us: (a) a
written request for approval; (b) product samples for testing purposes; and submit(c) all additional information
we request. We-may-require-that-vousend-us-samples—Hrom-the  supplicr fortesting—Wemay-alsorequire-that
we—be—alloewedmust agree to comply with our minimum insurance, indemnification and confidentiality
requirements for system suppliers and allow us to periodically inspect the-sapplier’sfaeilities-their facility. We
will notify you of our decision within 30 days after we receive yourrequestfor-approval-and-all-additienalall
required information and product samples-we-reguire. We may periodically re-inspeet-the-facilities-and-produets
efanyreinspect approved sapplierproducts and suppliers and revoke our approval if thea product or supplier
fails to meet our then-current criteria. We do not charge you afee-orrequire reimbursement-of-oureostsany fee

to review products and suppliers you propose.

Current Source-Restricted Items

We estimate nearly 50% of the total purchases and leases to establish your Center and 80% of ongoing operating
expenses will consist of source-restricted goods or services, as further described below.

Lease

We do not review the terms of your lease. However, if you lease the premises for your Center, you must use best
efforts to ensure your landlord signs the Lease Addendum attached to the Franchise Agreement as
ATTACHMENT "C".

Design and Construction Services

The Manual includes certain standards and specifications pertaining to the design, layout, equipping and trade
dress for a Center. We will prepare and send you 2 proposed Site Drawings for your consideration. You select
the Site Drawing you prefer. You must hire an architect to prepare initial design plans and detailed construction
plans, which must be consistent with the Site Drawing you select and comply with the requirements in the
Manual and all laws, building codes, permits, lease restrictions and landlord requirements applicable to the
premises. We must approve the final construction plans. Once approved, you must construct and equip your
Center in accordance with the approved plans and the specifications in the Manual. We must approve your
architect and general contractor. We may require you to hire an architect we designate to ensure uniformity and
consistency of design.

Fixtures, Furnishings and Decorations

All fixtures, furnishings and decorations must meet our standards and specification, but you may purchase them
from any suppliers of your choosing.
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Technology Systems

Your Technology Systems (including hardware, software, equipment, software applications, mobile apps and
similar items) must meet our standards and specifications. Certain Technology System components ef-eur
TFechnologySystems-must be purchased from approved or designated suppliers-while-ether. Other components
may be purchased from any supplier of your choosing. We may alse-require thatyou to purchase certain services
relating to the establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of yewr—Technology
Systems be—purehased-from approved or de51gnated supphers We currently requlre %hat—you to hcense our
proprletaly BCP- LMS from our afﬁhate 3 ~

e i LBIS,—i-H
Vskh&eh—eaS%yeﬂ You must eeﬂ%mu%te l hcense and Hﬂh%%th%asseebafeeé—BGPeﬁal—aﬁé—reLa%eé—s%H%usc
QuickBooks Online.

Inventory

All inventory (i.e., educational materlals) must be obtamed excluswely from Aelapmlely—Edﬂeaﬂeﬂ—thfeugh

bMS—{er—frem—LBIS through H
segiireandsblaineduentional LMS Thc cost f01 thcsc materlals ﬁcem—I:BLS—msteadls mcludcd as part of

eonvertingto-the BCP-LMS). Monthly Fee you pay to LBIS. However, you are responsible for the cost to print
the materials.

Signage

All exterior signage must meet our standards and specifications and be purchased from suppliers we designate or
approve.

Marketing Materials and Services

All marketing materials must comply with our standards and requirements. We must approve your marketing
materials prior to use. You must purchase branded marketing materials only from us or other suppliers we

designate or approve. We may require that you contract with and utilize a designated—suppliercompany we
designate to-: (a) develop and/or implement your grand opening marketing campaign; and/or previde(b) manage

your social media-marketing-on-your-behalf.

Business Coaching Services

We recommend, but do not require, that you engage a third-party business coach to help you launch and grow
your business during the initial period of operations. If you choose to do so, we must approve the business coach
you propose to hire. We may require that the business coach sign a confidentiality agreement to protect any
confidential information received in the course of providing coaching services.

Insurance Policies

Y ou must obtain the insurance coverage we require (whether in the Franchise Agreement or in the Manual) from
licensed insurance carriers rated A or better by AHredM-AM Best-&Companytres, including the following:

Policy Type Minimum Coverage
“All risk” Property Insurance Replacement Value
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate
Sexual Assault and Molestation Insurance $100,000 per occurrence and $300,000 in the aggregate
Business Interruption Insurance At least 6 months
Worker’s Comp & Employer Liability Insurance As required by law
Landlord-Required Insurance As required by lease

The required coverage and policies are subject to change. AH-insuranee-pelieiesEach policy must be endorsed
to: (a) name us fand our membersowners, officers; and directors;—and-employees) as additional insureds; (b)
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contain—a—waiverbythe—insuranee—earrierofwaive all subrogation rights against us; and (c) provide that—we

reeetveatteastus with 10 days’ prior written notice of the termination, expiration, cancellation or modification
of the policy.

Purchase Agreements

terms, for the benefit of franchisees. As of the date of th1s Disclosure Document, we have negotlated purchase

agreements (including favorable pricing terms) with: (a) our affiliate, AdaptivelyEdueationLBIS, for BCP-
LMS; and (b) an optional (but recommended) real estate professional who agreed to review and negotiate a
letter of intent and commercial lease for a flat fee of $3,500 per lease (because the lease review protects our
interests as well as yours, we pay $1,000 and you pay the remaining $2,500).

We may also purchase items in bulk and resell them to you at our cost plus a reasonable markup (not to exceed
5% of our cost to purchase the item and deliver it to you).

Currently there are no purchasing cooperatives but we may establish them in the future. You do not receive any
material benefits for using designated or approved suppliers other than having access to any discounted pricing
we negotiate.

Franchisor and Affiliate Revenues from Source-Restricted Purchases

We are currently an approved supplier for marketing materials and the exclusive supplier for Bestdn-ClassBEST
IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER" email accounts. Our—affiliate;Adaptively Edueation,—is—eurrently—the
exelustve—supplierfor EMS—Our affiliate, LBIS, is currently the exclusive supplier for the BEPertalour
proprietary BCP-LMS and the educational materials you acquire and obtain through the BEPortal (ifvou-area
renewing—franchisee—and—you-declineto—transition—to-EMS).BCP-LMS. No other person affiliated with us is
currently an approved (or the only approved) supplier. We may appoint ourselves or our affiliate as an approved
or designated supplier for other goods or services in the future. We and our affiliates mav generate revenuesa

profit from these purchases. We-may-designate-ourselves—and-ouraffiliatesas-Our officer, Hao Lam, owns an
interest in [LBIS. There are no other approved or designated suppliers for-othergoods—and services—in—the

future.in which any of our officers own an interest.

We may receive rebates payments or other material beneﬁts from supphers based on franehiseevour purchases
and we-h 3 : : ; ar-mannerlcases. As of
the issuance date of thls D1sclosure Document we do not have any relatlonshlps w1th suppliers that involve
rebates, payments or other material benefits based upon franchisee purchase or leases.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 206232024, neither we nor our predecessor generated any

reventescvenue as a result of franchisee purchases or leases-ef goeds-orservicesfrom-designated-orapproved

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 20242023; our affiliate, AdaptivelyEdueationLBIS, generated
$62,718192 61 7.91 1n fevenues—based—eﬁ—rcvcnuc as a result of franchisee purchases andor leases.-AH-of-these
i - The source of this information is QuickBooks

accounting software used by our affiliate.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 20242023 our affiliate, EBIS;Adaptively Education Inc. (which was
formerly, but is no longer, a system surmllcr) generated $169;95331,228 in revenues—based-en-revenue as a

result of franchisee purchases andor leases.-All-eftheserevenues—consist-of initial-and-ongeingfees-associated
with-the BCPortal-and-the-evrrienlum-distributionfee: The source of this information is QuickBooks accounting
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software used by our affiliate.

ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement (FA), Satellite Office
Addendum (SOA), Area Development Agreement (ADA) and other agreements. It will help you find more
detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and other items in this Disclosure
Document.

OBLIGATION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM
i oot d FA:7.1&7.2
lte selection an ADA:42S0A: 3 Item 7 & Ttem 11
acquisition/lease —
ADA: 4.3
FA:7.3,74,11.6 & 16.1 ltem 5. Ttem 7. ltem 8 & 1
Pre-opening purchases/leases SOA: 8 tem 5, ltem 7/, ltem tem

ADA: Not Applicable

11

Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

FA:73,74&7.5
ADA42-SOA: 5
ADA: 43

Item 6, Item 7 & Item 11

Initial and ongoing training

FA:5
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6 & Item 11

Opening

FA: 7.5
SOA: 5
ADA: 4.1

Item 11

Fees

FA:4.2,54,625.5,6.3,68:696.8,7.3,7.5,
7.6,8.3,8.5,10,11.6,11.8,11.12,11.14, 14,
16.1,17,20.2 & 21.1

SOA:7,.8&9
ADA:5& 7.2

Item 5 & Item 6

Compliance with standards

FA:6.1,7.1,7.3,10.3, 11 & 18.1

and policies/Operating Manual SOA: Not Applicable Item 11
ADA: 4.3
Trad s and . FA: 18
Tademarks and proprietary | g ». \o¢ Applicable Ttem 13 & Item 14
information
ADA: 2
FA: 11.3

Restrictions on

products/services offered SOA: Not Appll.cuble frem 16
ADA: Not Applicable
W deli . FA: 11.12
arr.anty and client service SOA: Not Applicable Not Applicable
requirements .
ADA: Not Applicable
Tersitorial devel d FA: 12
erritorial development an SOA: Not Applicable Item 12
sales quotas
ADA: 4.1
Ongol duct/servi FA: 11.6
ngoing product/service SOA: Not Applicable Item 8

purchases

ADA: Not Applicable
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OBLIGATION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

m. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

FA:11.7& 119
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 11

n. Insurance

FA: 16.1
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6 & Item 7 & Item 8

0. Advertising

FA: 10
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6, Item 7 & Item 11

p.- Indemnification

FA: 19
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6

q. Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

FA: 8
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 11 & Item 15

r.  Records/reports

FA:16.2 & 16.3
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6

s.  Inspections/audits

FA: 17
SOA: Not Applicable
ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6 & Item 11

FA: 20
t.  Transfer SOA: 10 Item 17
ADA:7
FA: 4
u. Renewal APA+44SOA: 6 Item 17
ADA: 4.5
FA: 22
v. Post termination obligations SOA: Not Applicable Item 17
ADA: Not Applicable
FA: 15
w. Non-competition covenants SOA: Not Applicable Item 17
ADA: Not Applicable
FA: 23
x. Dispute resolution SOA: Not Applicable Item 17
ADA: 1.1
y. Franchise Owner Agreement
(brand protection covenants, | FA:9 & ATTACHMENT "D"
transfer restrictions and SOA: Not Applicable Item 15

financial assurance for owners
and spouses)

ADA: Not Applicable

ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any of your notes, leases or obligations.
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ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Before you open your Center, we will:

1. Provide access to our Manual which will help you establish and operate your Center;—as—further-discussed

below—under—Manual>—§6-+. The Manual includes 210 pages. The Table of Contents is attached as
EXHIBIT "E". (§6.1 & 11.2)

2. Provide an initial training program, as farther-discussed below under “Training Program”. (§55.1)

3. Rewviewand-approve-or-disappreveLvaluate sites you propose for your Center, as—further discussed below
under “Site Selection”. (§7.1 & 7.5)

4. Provide our written specifications for the-goods and services you must purchase to develop, equip and

operate your Center and a list of approved-and/or-designated-suppliers-for-these-goodsand-serviees.. We do
not deliver or install any items that-you purchase. (§11.2)

5. Assist you in developing and implementing a grand opening marketing plan for your Center, as further
discussed below under “Advertising and Marketing”. (§10.2 & 10.3(a))

6. Prepare and send you 2 alternative Site Drawings at no additional charge (you select the Site Drawing your
prefer), as further-discussed below under “Site Development”. (§7.3)

7. Review and approve or disapprove the preliminary design and final construction plans prepared by your
architect, as farther-discussed below under “Site Development”. (§7.3)

8. Review—and-approve—or—disapprove—the—eonstruetionbvaluate vour Center’s design and buildout-ef—yeur
Center, as-further discussed below under “Site Development”. (§7.4 & 7.5)

During the operation of your Center, we will:

1. Send a corporate trainer to your Center to provide 2 days of onsite training and operational support within
30 days after your Center opens. (§6-36.3)

are, as dlscussed ﬂa—mefedetaﬂ—below under “Computer System €§6—2§31 1)

3. Provide our guidance and recommendations on ways to improve the operation of your Center. (§6.4)

4. Conduct periodic field visits to provide onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the
operation and management of your Center. There is no minimum frequency and we have sole discretion in
deciding when to conduct field visits to your Center. (§6.5)

5. Administer the brand—and system—development—fundBrand Fund, as—further discussed below under
“Advertising and Marketing”. (§10.1)

6. Provide periodic training programs, as ferther-discussed below under “Training Program”. (§55.2)

7. Provide you with our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our suggested retail pricing in your
discretion. To the extent permitted by applicable law, we may set maximum or minimum prices on the
goods and services you sell. (§11.4)

During the operation of your Center, we may, but need not:

1. Maintain a corporate website to promote our brand and a local webpage with information about your Center,
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as further-discussed below under “Advertising and Marketing”. (§6.7 & 10.3)

2. Provide additional training or assistance that-you request{eitherat-ourheadguarters-orat-yourCenteryas
farther, as discussed below under “Training Program”. (§55.2)

3. Negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to obtain favorable pricing. We may also purchase items in
bulk and resell them to you at our cost plus shipping and a reasonable markup. (§6.8)

4. Hold periodic conferences to discuss relevant business and operational issues such as industry changes, new
services and/or merchandise and marketing strategies. (§55.5)

5. Create a franchise advisory council, as-further discussed below under “Advisory Council”. (§13)

We do not provide area developers with any support under their ADA.

Training Program (§5)

Initial Training Program

We will provide a-pre-epeningan initial training program—Y-eur for your Managing Owner_(you may send other
owners to initial training but it is not required) and at least 1 other person (either a Manager or another owner
who will actively participate in the Business}). These individuals must successfully complete initial training to
our satisfaction before your Center opens. ¥Yeu—maysend-additional-owners—to—initialtraining—butitisnet
reguired—ThereHowever, there is no specific period of time after signing or before opening that training must be
completed._Our initial training program includes: (a) virtual training; (b) Management Training; and (c) onsite

training (onsite training takes place shortly after you open).

#The Managing
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Owner must complete ewra 2.5 hour virtual training eensisting-efprior to attending Management Training. Our
corporate trainers conduct virtual training via video-based training and-video-calls-with-our-eorperate-trainers-
TFhe-virtaal. Virtual training provides a preliminary overview of our brand and operations so that-you-may-better
understand-the trainees have a basic understanding of the system duringthe-in-persentraining portionin-Seatte:
In—addition—to—the—virtual and—in-person—training—we—alsebefore Management Training begins. After the

Managing Owner completes virtual training, the trainees attend 5 to 7 days of Management Training that takes

place at a company-owned or franchised Center in Washington (or any other location we designate). Within 30

days after your opening date, we send a corporate trainer to your Center to provide approximately 2 days of

onsite training and operational assistance—with—the—opening—ofyour—Center-. Onsite training is an informal
program where we monitor your operations and assist you with the epeningoperation of your Center.

The format for training may include lectures, interactive role playing, conference calls or webinars. We reserve

the right to conduct all (or any portion) of the training program remotely via webinar, conference call or similar

means. The training materlals Drlmarllv consist of the Manual. E*eept—fer—eﬂsﬁ%assssaﬂe%&ad—th&eﬁhﬂe

We do not charge for training

naterlals We can modlfx the tralmng program at our dlscretlon based on our subjective assessment of the skills,
abilities and prior experience of your Managing Owner and management personnel. Washington{orat-another

location—we—designate): We intend to offer the initial training program on an as needed basis but with no
minimum frequency. Fhe-initiallnitial training pregram-eonsists-efcurrently covers the following topics:

TRAINING PROGRAM

HOURS OF CLASSROOM HOURS ON THE JOB
BJECT LOCATION
R TRAINING TRAINING OCATIO

Brand Overview 2.5 0 Online

History/Philosophy of Best In Class 1.5 0 WashingtonSeattle

Use of the Manual 0.5 0 WashingtonSeattle

Services Provided to Best In Class

Franchisees 20 0 WashingtonSeattle

Business Planning 3.0 SeattleWashington

Pre-Opening Procedures 5.0 SeattleWashington

Talent Development 3.0 SeattleWashington

Advertising/Marketing 5.0 SeattleWashington

S| |0 |o |

Curriculum 3.0 SeattleWashington

Management Procedures 35 5.0 (on the job training held at

WA Center of our choice)

Seattle

Washington
(on the job training held at
WA Center of our choice)

Sales/Customer Service Procedures 35 5.0

Scattle

Washington
(on the job training held at
WA Center of our choice)

Daily Operating Procedures 4.0 5.0

Seattle

(on the job training held at
WA Center of our choice)

Operational Management 5.0 5.0
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HOURS OF CLASSROOM HOURS ON THE JOB
SUBJECT LOCATION
TRAINING TRAINING
Seattle

Software Training 5.0 4.0 WL}"“EM
(on the job training held at
WA Center of our choice)

Total 46.5 24

Post-Opening

- ol
——Ongeing Training Programs

We may reguire-that-offer periodic refresher or supplemental training courses for your Managing Owner and
Managers-attend-ap-to-. We mav designate each course as mandatory or optional (we will not require more than
5 days of system-widemandatory refresher or additienalsupplement training eeurses—eachper years). Any new
Managlng Owner yeu—appernt—or Manager you appoint or h1re must successfully complete eurinitial-training

ag anagement Training prior to managing your
Center After your Center opens, we may (but need not) allow your Managing Owner to train new Managers you
hire. If we inspect your Center and determine you are not operating yeuwr—Center—in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement andfor—the Manual, we may require that your Managing Owner and Managers attend
remedial training thataddresses—yourrelevant to the operational deficiencies we observed. You may also request

%hat—wedddltlonal training, which we may (but nccd not) prov1de—addrt+enal—tr&mrng—€erther—at—eerpera{e

Instructors

Our lead instructor is Laura Leddusire. Laura has worked at a company-owned Center in Washington since
2009. During the time, she held a variety of positions, including Instructor, Private Tutor, Center Manager,
Operations Manager; and Vice President of Operations. Laura has served as our Vice President of Operations
since August 2019 (originally with our predecessor). In 2019, Mrs. Leddusire became a co-owner of a Center in
Washington. Mrs. Leddusire has a total of 4415 years of experience in the field of education. Additional
instructors may be utilized under Mrs. Leddusire’s direction. Each additional instructor will have at least 1 year
of experience in the relevant field.

Training Fees

We provide our pre-opening initial training program at no additional ehargefee (the initial franchise fee is

inclusive of a $10,000 initial training fee that covers this training). As—part—ef—eour—initial—training

pregram;However, you must reimburse Travel Expenses we alseincur to send +our corporate trainer to your
Center (within—30—days—after—your—opening—date)to—provide2—days—effor onsite training and-eperational
sappert(we estimate these expenses will range from $1,300 to $3.800). If you request that we send more than 1
trainer, you must pay an additional training fee of $350 per additional trainer per day (including each work day
and travel day, for a minimum of 2 days).

We may charge a management-training fee of $700 perfor cach person fer—(a)anynewManaging-Owner-or
Manager-who attends evrmanagementtraining program-Management Training after yourCenter-opens—and(b)

you open (or for any person who retakes-eour-management-trainingprogrammust retake Management Training
prior to opening after failing a—prierthe first attempt—We—). However, we will waive the management$700

training fee if the persentrainee attends a previously scheduled management—trainingManagement Training
program eendueted-for another franchisees- (but we reserve the right to charge for any costs we incur for training
materials— that would normally be covered by the $700 training fee).
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We may also charge an additional tralnlng fee of $350 per person per day fori+a)any—person—to—whom—we
8 e ry_each person who attends

rernedral tralnlng w&req&rr&b&sed—ea—year—eperaﬁeﬂal—éeﬁe}eneres- or addmonal training that you request. You
must also reimburse our Travel Expenses for onsite training or assistance. We do not charge a-training feefees
for: (a) system-wide refresher or additienalsupplemental training pregramscourses; or (b) virtual training
programs.

Site Selection (§7.1 & 7.2)

A typical Center ranges in size from 1,000 to 1,500 square feet and may be located in an office or professional
building or within a retail setting such as a strip mall. Ideally, the facility should be located near other shopping
venues (such as grocery stores) to allow parents to run errands while the child is in class. Your Center should
have between 3 and 5 classrooms with a separate reception area.

We do not select the site for your Center and we do not purchase the premises and lease it to you. You must
identify and obtain our approval of the site for your Center within 120 days after signing the Franchise
Agreement. H—yeu—failto—do—se;—we—We may terminate your Franchise Agreement if you fail to meet this
deadline or if we cannot agree on a site.

Your Center must be located within the Site Selection Area identified in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A" to the
Franchise Agreement (the—Site-Seleetion-Area”}-and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. You must
send us a complete site report that includes all information we require about your proposed site. We try to
approve or disapprove sites within 15 days after receiving the site report. Our failure to approve a site within the
15-day period constitutes our disapproval. We consider the following factors when reviewing proposed sites:

e visibility, size, condition and characteristics of the building

e traffic counts and traffic patterns

e accessibility and availability of parking and security of the surrounding area

e general location and character of neighborhood

e cxistence and location of competitive businesses
o—Seeury

e vartous-local demographic information and economic indicators

; ; i Fen i wilWe list the address_of vour approved
site elther (a g in Part C of ATTACHMENT "A" to the Franchlse Agreement—H? - (if we de-net-approve yeurthe
site before signing;—we—-wil-send—yen the Franchise Agreement); or (b) in a Site Approval Notice (ntheform
attached-te-we send vou after we approve the site (if we approve the site after signing the Franchise Agreement).
If you sign an ADA, we must approve the site for each Center you develop applying our then-current site
selection criteria.
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fequﬁ%yeu—te—ﬁnd—a—ﬂew—sﬁ%fer—ye&r—éeﬂ%ePWe do not helr) you neLotlate your lease However we w1ll

provide contact information for our recommended real estate attorney who you may choose to hire to help
review and negotiate your lease.

Site Development (§7.3 & 7.4)

The Manual includes our standards and specifications for the design, layout, equipping and trade dress for a
Center. After seeuring-approeval-efwe approve your site, you must send us complete and detailed dimensions and
specifications of the leased space. After receiving this information, we prepare and send you 2 alternative Site
Drawings for your consideration. You select the Site Drawing you prefer. You must hire a licensed and bonded
architect that we designate or approve to prepare initial design plans and final construction plans for your
Center. We must approve these plans.

After-we-approve-your-eonstraetionplansOnce approved, you must construct and equip your Center according
to the approved construction plans and the requirements of the Manual. We do not provide assistance with

conforming the premises to local ordinances and building codes and obtaining any required permits, and/or
constructing, remodeling, or decorating the premises (your architect is responsible for these obligations). We
also do not control the hiring or training of your employees. You must purchase (or lease) and install the
Technology Systems, equipment, fixtures, signs and other items we require.

YewmustWe may require that you periodically remodel and make-al-Hmprovements-and-alterationsto-renovate

your Center that-wereasonablyrequirefrom-timeto-time-torefleetto conform to our then-current standards and

specifications. There is no limitation on the cost of these-remedeling obligations, but we will not require you to
remodel or renovate your Center more than once during any 5-year period. You may not remodel or

stgntfieantly-alterrenovate your premisesCenter without our prior approval.

Opening Requirements (§7.5)

We antieipate—atypiealfranchiseecxpect most franchisees will open-his—er-herCenter within 4 months after
signing the Franchise Agreement. Factors that may affect this time include:

o the amount of time needed to find an approved site

e protracted lease negotiations with yeurthe landlord

o the amount of time needed to secure financing, insurance, licenses and permits

o the condition of yeurthe building and extent of required upgrades, remodeling and renovations
e construction delays due to labor or materials shortages, inclement weather or other reasons

o delayed delivery or installation of equipment and fixtures

o the amount of time needed to comply with zoning requirements and other laws and regulations

¢ the amount of time needed to complete training

o the amount of time needed to hire and train yeurTeachers
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Satellite Office (Satellite Office Addendum)

If you acquire the right to develop, own and operate a Satellite Office, you must obtain our approval of the site
for your Satellite Office within 120 days after signing the Satellite Office Addendum. Unless we agree to the
contrary, the site must be located inside your Center Territory. The same site approval procedures described
above that apply to your Center will apply to your Satellite Office. However,you-do-notneed-to-obtain-a-signed
Lease-Addendum—You must purchase (or lease) and install the Technology Systems, equipment, fixtures, signs
and other items we require. In most cases, however, franchisees do not need to purchase additional equipment,
fixtures, signs or supplies for a Satellite Office. Rather, the franchisee brings tablets, educational materials and
other supplies used at brick-and-mortar Center to the Satellite Office for use on an as-needed basis. Franchisees
may wish to purchase additional temporary signage for display at the Satellite Office during business hours, but
it is not required. The same opening procedures described above for your Center also apply to your Satellite
Office, including the deadline to—éa} ﬁnd an approved 51te for the Satellite Ofﬁce (120 days after s1gn1ng the
Satellite Office Addendumj):—an

Addendum):). Only franchisees W1th an estabhshed brick- and mortar Center are e11g1ble to purchase a Satelhte
Office. -A Satellite Office cannot be purchased at the same time as your purchase of your initial Center.

Advertising and Marketing (§10)

A ~You must participate at your own expense
in all advert1s1ng, promotlonal and marketmg programs we require. You must develop a strong network of
relationships within your community and with your local school districts. You are not required to participate in
an advertising cooperative. There is currently no franchisee advertising council that advises us on marketing and
advertising matters.

Our Advertising Obligations

We may periodically create advertising and marketing materials for your use. We may: (a) use the Brand Fund
to pay for the creation and distribution of these materials, in which case there will be no additional charge; (b)
provide online access to these materials, in which case you must print the materials at your expense; or (c)
contract with third-party suppliers to create advertising or marketing materials that you may purchase. As
discussed below we will: (a) assist you in developing and implementing your grand opening marketing plan; and
(b) provide a $5,000 allowance towards your grand opening marketing activities if you are a United States
Veteran or Qualified Educator. We have no other obligation to conduct advertising for the franchise system.

Grand Opening Marketing

We will assist you in developing a grand opening marketing plan to promote the opening of your Center. You
pay us a $10,000 grand opening marketing fee, which we spend in accordance with the jointly--developed grand
opening marketing plan over a 6- rnonth perlod—eempletrng that ends no later than 2 rnonths after your grand
opening. We may : also
provide an additional $5,000 allowance towards your e&stencnzed—grand openmg marketrng plan activities if you you

are a United States Veteran and/or a Qualified Educator (as defined in Item 5). There is no obligation to spend
any minimum amount of money on a grand opening or pay us a grand opening marketing fee for a Satellite
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Ongoing Local Marketing By You

After the end of your grand opening period, you must spend a minimum monthly amount equal to your Local
Marketing Commitment on local advertising The Local Marketing Commitment is: (a) $1,500 per month for the
2" through the 12™ month after opening; and (b) the greater of $1,000 per month or 4% of your monthly Gross
Sales for the remainder of the term. ¥eu nonthly ailingyou : :
advertising—There is no Local Marketing Commltment apphcable toa Satelhte Ofﬁce

You may develop your own advertising and marketing materials and programs;-previded but we must approve
them in—advaneeprior to use. We must also approve the media you intend to use. You may not use any

advertlslng materlals programs or medla that we have not approved We—have—l—@—b&smess—d—ays—te—re%ew—and

mateﬂ-als—for—ye&r—pureh&se— We are not requlred to spend any amount on advert1s1ng in your terrltory
Websites, Social Media and Digital Advertising

We maintain a corporate website to promote our brand. We will also create and host a local webpage to promote
your Center, which will be linked to our corporate website. We can modify or discontinue thisour website
fand/or your leealCenter’s webpagey at any time-

Under current policy, you may not: (a) develop, host, or otherwise maintain a website (or other digital presence

relatingto-your-Center (ineludingany-website) bearing our Marks);; (b) utilize the Internet to conduct digital or

online advertising without prior authorization; or (¢) engage in ecommerce. However, we do permit you to
market your Center through approved social media channels, subject to the following requirements:

e you may only conduct social media utilizing the-social media platforms-that we approve

e you must strictly comply with our social media policy-(, as revised from time to time}

e you must immediately remove any post we disapprove—~{even—if—+it-complies—with-eursectal-media
e we may require that you contract with and utilize a sapphersocial media company we designate for

e vou must provide us with full administrativeadministrator rights to your social media accounts

o we will-ewsnmust retain ownership of all social media accounts relating to vour Center-
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Our current social media policy is attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "H"-5. You must sign a
copy to acknowledge your agreement to its terms. We may include our social media policy in the Manual and
you must comply with the most current version (we are not required to have you sign a new or amended
agreement acknowledging your agreement to it terms).

Gift Card Program

We may require that you participate in a gift card program in accordance with our policies and procedures. In
order to participate, you may be required to purchase additional equipment, software and/or Apps and pay fees
relating to the use of that equipment, software and/or Apps. We have the right to determine how proceeds from
gift cards sales are divided or otherwise accounted for and we may retain proceeds from unredeemed gift cards.
You must follow all of our policies regarding any gift card program we establish.

Brand and System Development Fund

We haveestablished—andcurrently administer a brand-and-system—development—fundBrand Fund to promote
public awareness of our brand and improve our System. We may use the fandBrand Fund to pay for any of the

following-in-eurdiseretion::

o developing-maintaining,-, distributing or administering;-eireeting,preparing,orreviewing advertising and
marketing materials;-prometiens and programs

e conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways
¥y bli ¢ the Matd

e public and consumer relations and publicity

e brand development

»—sponsorships

e and charitable and nonprofit donations and events

o research and development of technology, products and services

e website development and search engine optimization

e development-and. maintenance and promotion of an ecommerce platform

e development and implementation of quality control programs;—ineludingthe-use-of mystery-shoppers-or
ki
¢ conducting market research

e reimbursing us for costs we incur to host franchisee conferences

e changes and improvements to the System

o thefees and expenses ef-anycharged by advertising ageneyagencies we engage to assist-inproducingor
conduecting-advertising-or-provide marketing effertsservices

»——collecting and accounting for eentributionsto-thebrand fund
o fees and preparing and-distributing-financial accountings of the furdBrand Fund
e any other programs or activities we deem appropriate to promote or improve the System

o directand-indireetdabersreimbursing us for administrative, overhead and other expenses ineurred-by—us
and/or-euraffiliatesinrelationto-anyof theseaetivities{we incur to administer the Brand Fund, including

sobembepe B vad oo compensation ool enenndsns oo o M lnbe e o llee s leenoes

employees—or-independent-contractors—based-upen—paid to our personnel for time spent working on any
brand-fund-Brand Fund matters deseribed-above)
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We direct and have complete control and discretion over all advertising programs paid for by the fundBrand
Fund, including the creative concepts, content, materials, endorsements, frequency, placement and media used
for-the-programs—Currently;-most-advertisingis—intendedto. Advertising any be local, regional or national in
coverage and-may utilize any media we deem appropriate, including digital, print, television, radio and billboard
media. The source of advertising will be in-house as well as through a regional advertising agency that we
engage. The fundBrand Fund will not be used to pay for advertisements principally directed at selling additional
franchises, although consumer advertising may include notations such as “franchises available” and one or more
pages on our website may promote the franchise opportunity.

You must eentribute—topay the fund-theameuntBrand Fund fee we specify from time to time. The current

eentributionBrand Fund fee is the sum of (a) 2% of Gross Sales (we may increase this amount to 3% upon at
le&st—lSO days pr10r notlce) and (b) 1% of Spemal Program Sales. W%wﬂ-l—éepesﬁa{e—th%ﬁmd—al—l—éa)—f—aﬁd

eempaﬂyCompcmy owned Genfee—r—wﬂiCcntus contrlbute to the ﬁ:lﬂdBldl’ld Fund on the same basis as eur
franchisees. However, if we modify the amount or timing of therequired contributions-that-must-be-made-to-the
fund, any company-owned Center thatis—established or acquired after the modification may contribute to the
fundBrand Fund utilizing the modified amount or timing. Except as stated in this paragraph, we have no
obligation to expend our own funds or resources for any marketing activities in your area.

_All monies deposited into the fandBrand Fund that are not used in the fiscal year in which they accrue will be
utilized in the following fiscal year. Any surplus of monies #+the-fand-may be invested and we may lend money
to—the—fund-if there is a deficit. An unaudited financial accounting of the-eperations—efthe—fundBrand Fund
contributions and expenditures will be prepared annually and made available to you upon request. During the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 we2023—our—predecessor spent the marketing funds in the following
manner:

Allocation of Marketing Expenditures (20242022)

Use of Funds Production Media Placement Administrative Expenses Other
Percentage 51.14% 2926.47% 2022.39% 0%
Allocation D

admm&s&&&eﬂ—ef—ﬂ&%f&nd—The ﬁiﬁdBland Fund is not a trust—aﬁd—we . We have no ﬁdu01ary obhgatlons or
liability to vou with respect to our administration of the fand—We-Brand Fund. Once established. we may

discontinue the fund-at-any-time-upen-atteastBrand Fund on 30 days’ priernotice.
Advisory Council (§13)

We may, but need not, create a franchise advisory council to provide us with suggestions to improve the System,
including matters such as marketing, operations andor new preduetproducts or serviee-suggestionsservices. We
would consider-alt suggestions in good faith, but would not be bound by them. The council would be established
and operated according to rules and regulations we periodically approve, including procedures governing the
selection of council representatives to communicate with us on matters raised by the council. You would have
the right to be a member of the council as long as you are-netin-defanltunderthecomply with vour Franchise
Agreement and yer-do not act in a disruptive; or abusive-er—ceunter-produetive manner, as determined by us in
our discretion. As a member, you would be entitled to all voting rights and privileges granted to other council
members-ef-the—eounett. Any company-owned Center would also be a member of the council. Each member
would be granted 1 vote on all matters on which members are authorized to vote. We would have the power to
form, change or dissolve the advisory council in our discretion.

Computer System (§6-81.1,11.6,11.7,11.8,16.3 & 17.1)

You must purchase and use all Technology Systems we designate from time to time. Ourrequired-Technology
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One-component-of-eurTechnologySystems—isyeur—Y ou must purchase a computer system;—which-censists-of
that includes the following #ems:-components:

e minimum of 1 desktop, 2 laptops and 2 tablets with high--speed internet accesss

e 2 printers (one large and one small};-)

e QuickBooks Online
e BCP-LMS):

We may change the eempenents-eftherequired Technology Systems from time to time, including your computer
system.

How Computer Svstem Is Used

e SRS e s S e S T g et T T A e e e e harge-Y ou
will use the computer system to: register and enroll students; manage student and parent contact information;
track student performance; maintain student records; access and print educational materials; administer digital
curriculum for students enrolled in virtual/online courses; prepare mass emails and mailings; perform
accounting and electronic invoicing functions; process payments; and prepare operational reports. The computer
system also includes self-scheduling and billing features for parents and provides real-time metrics and reports.

We provide you with 1 BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER® email address at no additional charge. If
you require more than 1 email, we may charge you all costs we incur to procure each additional email address
and account you require. You must exclusively use the email address(es) we provide for all communications
with us, parents, students, suppliers and other persons relating to your Center. You may not use any—emat
address—we—providethem for any purpose unrelated to your Center. We—will own the email addresses and

accounts but allow you to use them during the term of your Franchise Agreement.

Fees and Costs

We estimate the initial cost of your computer system (excluding the EMSSystems Implementation Fee) will
range from $2,000 to $3,000 (assumes you lease and do not purchase a large printer). You must also pay the
$2,000 EMSSystems Implementation Fee for the initial setup and configuration of EMS-

BCP-LMS (fee does not apply to renewing franchisees). As further detailed in Item 6; you pay-us-: (a) monthly

technology feefees to us for certain software, technology and related services that we (or our affiliate) provide-
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($120-per-year)-foreachadditional (currently 1 email account yeurequestin-exeess-of -
¥ea—m&st—a}se—pa¥eﬂgefﬂg—I:MS—heeﬁsmgand a license to Google su1te Droducts) and (b) BCP LMS Monthlv

BCP-LMS. The table below identifies the ongoing fees and costs you pay for software, technology, Apps,
subscriptions and related services (including software, technology and related services covered by the

technology fee):
COMPUTER SYSTEM — ONGOING FEES AND COSTS
Fee Fee
It T hom Paid?
e (Monthly) (Annual) o Whom Paid
Up to $200 (currently $100) | Up to $2,400 (currently $1,200)
Technology Fee and-Additional plus plus Us
Email-Addresses _$10 per extra email address in | $120 per email address in excess
excess of 1 of 1
. .
EMS-Licensing Fee Up-to-$15 Up-to-$186 -
month) teurrently-$8) teurrently $96)
Sum of: Sum of:
(a) Monthly Student User Fees |(a) Monthly Student User Fees
(up_to $15/ student/ (up to $180/ student/
subject/month — currently $8); |subject/month — currently $96);
Curriculum-Distribution (b) 2% of the-difference-between | (b) 2% of the-difference-between .
Affil
FeeBCP-LMS Monthly Fees* | yourGross Sales minus your | your-Gross Sales minus your Us or Affiliate
Enrichment Sales-from-the-prier | Enrichment Salesfrom-the-prior
monthplus; and moenthplus; and
(c) 1% of yeur-Special Program |(c) 1% of yeurSpecial Program
Sales feomthesriormend Sales-Feemth e riommanth
L : Liconsing F
(perstudentpersubjeetper Yp$50 to $45-(eurrenty-$4H80 Hpg 8?9%(()) o} AffiliateThird-Party
month)QuickBooks Online** 7 Licensor
.
ne e Yp-te-$180 el
month ; y$9) E ) )
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* _For purposes of calculating BCP-LMS Monthly Fees a “subject” refers to Math, English or STEM. If the
number of subjects taken by a student changes during a month, you pay a Monthly Student User Fee based
on the total number of subjects taken by the student during the month, regardless of how many subjects are
taken by the student at any given point in time during the month.

** Monthly fee varies depending on the specific version and features you select and is subject to change.
Maintenance, Support, Updates and Upgrades

We are not aware of any optional or required maintenance, updating, upgrading or support contracts relating to
your computer system. In exchange for the monthly fees listed above, our affiliates-willprevideaftiliate provides

all necessary maintenance, support, updates and upgrades for LMS and the BC Portal.
Except as etherwise-diselosed-abeve{ajstated in the preceding sentence, neither we nor any other party has any

obhgatlon to prov1de ongomg rnamtenance repalrs upgrades or updates to your computer system—&nd—éb)—we

Collection and Sharing of Data

Your computer system collects data regarding your students’ records, invoices and financial transactions. We
have independent unlimited access to this data. There are no contractual limits imposed on our access.

Computer System Maintenance and Changes

You must maintain the computer system in good condition at your cost. We may require that you upgrade-ex,
update or otherwise change your computer system and other Technology Systems to conform to our then-current
specifications. There areis no contractual lmitatienslimitation on the frequency or cost of these updates—er,

upgrades or changes.
ITEM 12 TERRITORY

Location of Your BusinessCenter

Each Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate one Center from the site we approve. You must
identify a site for your Center within the Site Selection Area described in your Franchise Agreement. We must
also approve the site of any Satellite Office you develop.

You may relocate your Center with our prior written approval, which we will not unreasonably withhold. If we
allow you to relocate, you must: (a) obtain our approval of the site for your new Center within the Site Selection
Area (but outside any territory granted-orreserved-to-us;-ouraffiliate-or-any-otherfranchiseeassigned to another
Center); (b) pay us the $1,000 relocation fee for each new site you propose; (¢) comply with our then-current
site selection and development requirements; and (d) open your new Center and resume operations within 30
days after closing your prior Center. You would have similar relocation rights for any Satellite Office you
operate.

¥ourDescription of Territory (Franchise Agreement)

We will identify the boundaries of your Center Territory, which will include between 15,000 and 18,000

students between the ages of 5 and 17 (we generate this data using IntelleVue). H-we-appreve-your—site-before

yvou-sign-the Franchise Agreement—we—wilidentifyWe describe your Center Territory either: (a) in Part D of
ATTACHMENT "A" to yeurthe Franchise Agreement (if we approve the site for your Center before signing the
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Franchise Agreement- : o h : .
Ferritory): or (b) in thea Slte Approval Notlce we send you after apprewng—yeﬂfwe approve the site f01 your
Center (if we approve the site— after signing the Franchise Agreement).

If you purchase the right to develop a Satellite Office located inside your Center Territory, then the territory for
your Satellite Office (your “Satellite Office Territory”) will consist of the same geographic area that comprises
your Center Territory. If you purchase the right to develop a Satellite Office located outside your Center
Territory, then we will designate a separate Satellite Office Territory that: (a) will include between 7,500 and
9,000 students between the ages of 5 and 17; and (b) must be located adjacent to your Center Territory. If your
Satellite Office Territory is undetermined when you sign the Satellite Office Addendum, then within 15 days
after we approve the site for your Satellite Office, we will send you a Territory Approval Notice (in the form
attached to the Satellite Office Addendum as ATTACHMENT “C”) that identifies the boundaries of your
Satellite Office Territory.

We do not modify your Center Territory or Satellite Office Territory (if applicable) during the term of the
Franchise Agreement or Satellite Office Addendum, respectively, based on changes in student population. Upon
renewal, we reserve the right to modify your Center Territory or Satellite Office Territory (if applicable) in
accordance with our then-current territory guidelines and criteria.

Description of Development Territory (ADA)

If you sign an ADA, we grant you a protected development territory (vour “Development Territory’) that will be
described in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A" to yvour ADA. A Development Territory typically consists of a
ocographic area that coincides with the boundaries of a municipality, such as a city, county or state. There is no

specific minimum or maximum size for a Development Territory. In determining the size of your Development
Territory, we primarily consider the number of Centers you commit to develop.

You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Center you develop. Each Center must be located in the
Development Territory. We must approve the location of each Center you develop according to our then-current

site selection criteria. At least 7 days before signing, we will send you a complete execution copy of the ADA
that includes vour Development Territory, development fee and development schedule.

Territorial Protections and Limitations

You will not receive an exclusive Center Territory-ex, Satellite Office Territory or Development Territory. You
may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or
competltlve brands that we control. e e e

| Specifically.dusi
During the term of your Franchise Agreement and;+-appheable; Satellite Office Addendum; (if applicable) we
will not develop or operate, or license a third party to develop or operate, a Center or a Satellite Office usingthat

uses our Marks thatand is physiealy—located withinin your Center Territory or Satellite Office Territory,
respectively, except as otherwise permitted below with respect to Acquisitions (defined below).

darrng the terrn of the ADA we will not develop or operate or hcense a third party to develop or operate a
Center or a Satellite Office usingthat uses our Marks thatand is physteally-located withinin your Development
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Territory exeeptother than: (a) fer-any CentersCenter or Satellite Offiees—that-areOffice located withinin your

Development Territory as of the date you sign the ADA (either open, under construction or for which a
Franchise Agreement or Satellite Office Addendum has been signed); and (b) as otherwise permitted below with
respect to Acquisitions.

We reserve the right to acquire, or be acquired by, another business or chain that may sell competitive or
identical goods or services, and those businesses may be converted into Centers and/or Satellite Offices
operating under the Marks regardless of their location (an “Acquisition”). Any such acquired or converted
businesses may be located within your Center Territory, Satellite Office Territory and Development Territory, as
applicable.

Alternative Channels of Distribution

We reserve the right to sell, and license others to sell, competitive or identical goods and services (whether
under the Marks or under different trademarks) through Alternative Channels of Distribution, including within
your Center Territory, Satellite Office Territory and Development Territory, as applicable. An “Alternative
Channel of Distribution” means any channel of distribution other than retail sales made to students or their
parents while present at a Center or Satellite Office. Examples of Alternative Channels of Distribution include:
(a) the sale of educational products (such as educational DVDs, software programs, curriculum, tapes or books)
through direct marketing (such as over the Internet or through catalogs or telemarketing) or from outlets other
than a Center or Satellite Office (such as retail stores, schools or other educational facilities); (b) the sale of
educational products or programs (including licensing of LMS) to school districts, home school organizations,
non-profit organizations and other businesses that do not operate under the Marks; (c) the sale of educational
products or services at wholesale; and (d) providing “on-site” tutoring or educational classes at schools or at
students’ homes. You are not entitled to any compensation for sales that take place through Alternative
Channels of Distribution.

Restrictions on Your Sales and Marketing Activities

You may not engage in targeted marketing directed outside your Center Territory or Satellite Territory;— (if
applicable:). Marketing that is distributed, circulated or received both within your territory and outside your
territory is not eensidered-“targeted marketing”-directed-eutside-yourterritory if: (a) you use reasonable efforts
to limit the circulation or distribution of the advertising to areas withinin your territory; and (b) the-majority-of
themost recipients of the advertising are located withinin your territory and there is only incidental circulation or
distribution outside your territory. The meaning of “targeted marketing” that is “directed outside your territory”
may be further defined in the Manual;-butexamples. Examples include direct mail sent to addresses outside your
territory, digital advertising sent to devices with IP addresses registered outside your territory and setting

#pconducting promotional events that-takeplace-outside your territory.

You may not market or sell using Alternative Channels of Distribution (such as the Internet or a website, catalog
sales, telemarketing or other direct marketing) either within or outside ef-your Center Territory, Satellite Office
Territory or Development Territory, as applicable. However, we do permit you to market through social media
subject to the restrictions described in Item 11 under the Section entitled “Websites, Social Media and Digital
Advertising”.

There are no other restrictions on your right to solicit students or parents, whether from inside or outside of your
Center Territory, Satellite Office Territory or Development Territory, as applicable.

Minimum Performance Requirements (Franchise Agreement)

You must use best efforts to achieve the following minimum average monthly Total Sales:
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(commele\:fiansgzgi I(’):)er(:i(lllg date) Minimum Average Monthly Total Sales*
Months 1 through 12 $6,000 per month
Months 13 through 24 $9,000 per month
Months 25 through 36 $12,000 per month
Months 37 through 48 $13,500 per month
Months 49 through end of initial term $15,000 per month

*  We review your compliance with the monthly minimum performance requirements on a quarterly basis,
meaning your failure to achieve the minimum monthly Total Sales for a given month will not be a default as
long as your average monthly Total Sales over the 3-month review period equals or exceeds the minimum
required average monthly Total Sales amount. We may change our review period at any time. For purposes
of determining your compliance, we only consider Total Sales generated by your Center and do not consider
Total Sales generated by any Satellite Office you own. When you renew, you will be subject to any
minimum performance requirement in effect at the time of renewal.

If you fail to achieve the minimum performance requirement and you are not dedicating full-time efforts to your
Center (i.e., you are not physically present at your Center during all hours of operation), then we have the right
(but not the obligation) to either: (a) terminate your Franchise Agreement; or (b) modify or eliminate your
territorial protections. We will not terminate your Franchise Agreement solely on the basis of your failure to
achieve the minimum performance requirement if you are dedicating full-time efforts to your Center (i.e., you
are physically present at your Center during all hours of operation).

There is no minimum performance requirement applicable to Satellite Offices.

Minimum Performance Requirements (ADA)

If you sign an ADA and fail to satisfy your development schedule by opening and operating the prescribed
number of Centers within the required period of time, we may terminate your ADA. However, if you need to
extend a development deadline, we will grant you a single 90-day extension for the development of that Center
in exchange for a $2,500 extension fee. The extension option may be used a maximum of 4 times (i.e., 360 days
maximum extension). You must pay us a separate extension fee for each extension.

Additional Franchises and Territories

You are not granted any options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional territories or
franchises, other than your right and obligation to develop the prescribed number of Centers within your
Development Territory if you sign an ADA. However, we may in our discretion grant you the right to develop,
own and operate one or more Satellite Offices if you request the right to do so.

Competitive Businesses Under Different Marks

Exeeptas-otherwise-disclosed-aboeve, neither we nor any affiliate of ours intends to operate or franchise another

business under a different trademark that sells products or services similar to the products or services offered by
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a Center. However, we reserve the right to do so in the future.

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

Our affiliate Adaptively EdueationHL Media, LLC (“HL Media”) owns the following trademark that has been

registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office:

REGISTERED MARKS
Registration Dat
Mark Registration Number (;f;:;;f ;l)at:)e
March, 13,2012
BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER 4,112,774
(September 8, 2022)

All required affidavits have been filed and we have filed all required renewals.

You must notify us immediately if yvou discover an infringing use (or challenge to vour use) of the Marks. We

will take the action we think appropriate. We are not required to take any action if we do not feel it is warranted.
FheYou may not control any proceeding or litigation relating to our Marks.

We may change the trademarks you may use from time to time, including by discontinuing use of the Marks
listed in Item 13. If we require you to discontinue use of our primary Mark (i.e., BEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER"), we will reimburse you for your tangible costs of compliance (e.g., changing
brochures, business cards, etc.). We have no other liability to you for changing the Marks.

The Franchise Agreement does not require that we: (a) protect your right to use the Marks; (b) protect you
against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the Marks; or (¢) participate in
vour defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages vou incur if you are a party to an administrative or

judicial proceeding involving our Marks or if the proceeding is resolved in a manner unfavorable to you.

There are currently no: (a) effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, the Trademark
Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark adrnmrstrator of this state or any court2 gb) pending irlfringementsg

oppositions or cancellations; wa
Adaptively Edueation—(c) pending materlal lltrszanon matters mvolvma any of the Marks or ( d) mfrms_mz uses
we are aware of that could materially affect your use of the Marks.

On Mareh24-April 11, 20252023, we entered into an Intellectual Property License Agreement with Adaptively
EdueationHL Media (the “License Agreement”). Under the terms of the License Agreement, Adaptively
EdueationH L. Media granted us the right to use-the Marks—inthe BestIn-Class EdueationCenter System and
sublicense the Marks to our franchisees. The initial term of the License Agreement is 5 years, and then
automatically renews for additional 5-year renewal terms unless terminated in accordance with its terms.
Adaptively HdueationHL. Media may terminate the License Agreement only if we: (a) declare bankruptcy or
become insolvent; (b) breach AdaptivelyEdueation’sHL Media’s quality control standards and fail to cure the
breach within a 60-day cure period; or (c) consent to the termination. If the License Agreement is terminated, it
states all sublicenses granted by us to our franchisees will continue in full force and effect until the expiration or
termination of the applicable franchise agreement. No other agreements limit our right to use or sublicense use
of the Marks.
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13 : 99

ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents or pending patent applications are material to the franchise.

Although we have not filed an application for copyright registration for theour Manual, eur—website or—eur
marketing materials, we do claim a copyright to these items.

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we allow you to use certain confidential and proprietary
information (some of which may constitute “trade secrets”) relating to the development, marketing and
operation of a Center. Examples include:

e architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Center

e site selection criteria

+—methods-and. techniques
e policies, procedures, standards and specifications
e supplier lists, customer lists and information regarding suppliers and customers

es—marketing strategies

e and merchandising strategies
. oLk )

e information comprising the System

We own all ideas, improvements, inventions, marketing materials and other concepts you develop relating to a
Center. We also own all operational and customer data (i.e., data pertaining to students and parents) and
operational-data—relatingpertaining to your Center. You must treat this data as confidential and proprietary. We
license you the right to utilizeuse this data during the term of your Franchise Agreement. We—eonsider—al
informationY ou must comply with all applicable data protection laws and our data processing and data privacy
policies in the Manual-te-be-confidential—.

We provide access to our confidential information through the Manual, training programs and other periodic
support and guidance. You may use this information solely for purposes of developing, marketing and operating
your Center in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and Manual. All information in the Manual is
confidential. You may not disclose our confidential information to any—persen—anyone other than your
employees, on a need-to-know basis), without our prior permission. All your employees and representatives
must sign the Confidentiality Agreement attached to the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "F" before
you give them access to our confidential information.

You must promptly notify us if you discover amyan unauthorized use of our proprietary information: or

Page 39 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



copyrighted materials. We are not ebligatedrequired to act, but will respond-te—this—informatien as we deem
appropriate. You may not control any proceeding or litigation involving allegations of unauthorized use of our
proprietary information- or copyrighted materials. We have no obligation to indemnify you for any expenses or

damages aristng—fremyou incur as a result of any such proceeding or litigation—nvelving—our—proprietary

information-. There are no infringements known to us at this time.

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Owners
Owner Participation

You must designate an owner with overall responsibility for the management and operation of your Center (the
“Managing Owner”). The Managing Owner must:

e Dbe approved by us after attending an in-person Discovery Day at our corporate headquarters

e have binding decision-making authority on matters involving the Center
e successfully complete all training programs we require

e teach at least 1 class at the Center throughout the 1st year of operation

e provide direct onsite management on a full-time basis until the Center has met the minimum performance
requirement for at least 1 year

e dedicate best efforts to operating the Center €after meeting the minimum performance criteria above (we
strongly recommend the Managing Owner continue to dedicate full-time efforts—is—strongly

recommended-butnotrequired

e hold a minimum 20% ownership interest in the franchised business or franchisee entity

Except as otherwise provided above with respect to your Managing Owner, we do not require that your owners
personally participate in the management or operation of the-Center-

your Business. If you are an entity, each owner (i.e., each person holding ara direct or indirect ownership
interest in yeuthe entity) and the spouse of each owner must sign the Franchise Owner Agreement attached to

the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "D". By signing the Franchise Owner Agreement, the owner (or

spouse of the owner) agrees to: (a) comply with all brand protection covenants (except to the extent prohibited
by law), covenants that protect our intellectual property and transfer restrictions set forth in the Franchise

Agreement; and (b) guarantee the franchisee’s financial obligations.
Manager

You may hire a person to assist the Managing Owner with onsite management and supervision of the Center (a
“Manager”). Any person you hire as a Manager must:

e be approved by us

meet all of our then-current minimum criteria and qualifications for Managers (including those pertainin
to background checks, education, attitude and experience)

e successfully complete all training programs we require
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e sign thea Confidentiality Agreement attached-to-the Franchise-Agreementas ATTACHMENT"E"

At all times during normal business hours, either the Managing Owner or a Manager must be present at the
Center to provide onsite management and supervision. The Managing Owner must monitor and supervise the
aetivities—ofthecach Manager to ensure the Center is operated in aeeerdaneecompliance with the Franchise
Agreement and Manual. We do not require that the Manager own anyan equity interest in the franchise.

Teachers

No person may teach classes at your Center other than: (a) the Managing Owner; (b) a Manager; or (c) a person
you hire (or any of your other owners) who satisfies any minimum competency standards we require (in each
case, a “Teacher”). You must conduct reasonable background checks on all Teachers. You may not allow any
person to act as a Teacher if the background check reveals a criminal record or otherwise raises substantial
doubt about his or her character or qualifications. We may impose additional qualifications for Teachers from
time to time, including a requirement that all teachers successfully complete a certification training program

(and possibly recertification training). All ef-yeur-Teachers and-other-employees,—agents—and representatives
with-aeeess-to-our-confidential-information-must sign thea Confidentiality Agreement-attached-to-the Eranchise

ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We must approve all goods and services you sell. You must offer all goods and services we require, including
the specific classes, programs and curriculum we specify. You have the option, but not the obligation, to offer
Special Programs. You may only offer Affiliate Programs we approve. You may not offer, sell or provide: (a)
goods or services to anyone other than children between pre-school and 12" grade; (b) educational classes or
tutoring in any subject we have not approved; or (c¢) any other goods or services (including any classes or
programs) we have not approved. We may require you to participate in a gift card program in accordance with
our policies and procedures. You may not sell any other gift cards or implement any other gift card program
without our approval. At any time, we may change the goods and services you sell and you must comply with
the change.

ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise agreement (FA), Satellite Office Addendum
(SOA). Area Development Agreement (ADA) and related agreements. You should read these provisions
in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT SUMMARY
EA-FA: 1 (definition of Term is equal to 5 vears
Term) & 4.1 q y ’
a. Length of - ) N -
g SOA: 6 Term is concurrent with term of Franchise Agreement.

franchise term

ADA: +1(definition of |Term expires on required opening date of last Center to be developed
“Term™)) under development schedule.

If you meet our conditions for renewal, you can enter into 3 consecutive
successor franchise agreements. Each renewal term wil-beis 5 years. The

b. Renewal or FA:4.1&4.2 parties may mutually agree to further renewals but neither party is
' extension of the obligated to do so (subject to state law).
term SOA: 6 Term is concurrent with term of Franchise Agreement and may be
: renewed if you renew the Franchise Agreement.
ADA: 4.5 No renewal rights.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

¢. Requirements for
you to renew or
extend

FA:4.1&4.2

You must: not be in default; give us timely notice; sign then-current

form of franchise agreementaﬂd—rel-a{ed—deehmetﬁ{%g—ﬁaﬂehase
Owner-Agreement-ete):; sign general release (subject to state law); pay

renewal fee; remodel Center and upgrade furniture, fixtures and
equipment to current standards; and extend lease forduration-of renewal
term. We may condition renewal on your-right-te-renew-on compliance
with any minimum customer satisfaction requirements we develop and
uniformly impose.

If you renew, you may be required to sign a contract with materially
different terms and conditions than the original contract.

No requirements other than those imposed under Franchise Agreement.

You may not renew or extend the term of the ADA.

d. Termination by
you

FA:21.1

You eanmay terminate if we default and fail to timely cure-a-material
tofaultwithi od.

. You may also terminate without cause byif you: (a) previding—at

feastprovide 180 days’ prior notice; (b) aHewingallow us to market and

sell your Center during the 180-day period (yeu-de—netreeceive-any-we

keep all proceeds from the sale); (c) payingpay us all amounts owed; and

(d) signingsign a General Release (subject to state law).

SOA: 6

You can terminate if you choose to close your Satellite Office.

ADASADA: Not
Applicable

You can terminate under any grounds permitted by law.

We can terminate without cause if you and—we—mutaally—agree—te

e. Termination by FA:213 terminateprovide your written consent.
us without cause |SOA: 6
ADA: Not-Applicable8.2 | Notapplicable
FA: 21.2-&213 We can terminate if you default.
f. Termination by SOA- 6

us with cause

ADASADA: 8.1

g. “Cause” defined
- curable defaults

FA:21.2 &213

You have the following cure periods: (a) 24 hours for health or safety
hazards; (b) 10 days te-eure-any-menetary-defanlt—Youhavefor financial
defaults; (c) 20 days for loss of a required license or permit; and (d) 30
days te—eurefor any other default (other than defaultsa default described
below under “non-curable defaults”).

ADAESOA: 6

You have 30 days to cure any default, other than defaults described below
under “non-curable defaults”.

ADA: 8.1
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

h. “Cause” defined
- non-curable
defaults

FA:21.2

The following defaults cannot be cured: insolvency, bankruptcy or
seizure of assets; failure to successfully complete training; failure to find
approved site—, secure lease or open in timely manner; inselveney;
bankruptey—er—seizure—of —assets;—abandonment; failure—to—maintain
e U K R e T

of—eertatn—criminal convictions or administrative enforcement actions;
fatlure—to—comply-with-violation of material law; eommisston—ef-aetacts
that may adversely affect reputation of System or Marks; health-ersafety
hazards;—material misrepresentations; 2" underreporting of amounts
dueyour sales by atdeast-3%:% or more; unauthorized transfersTransfers;
unauthorized use of our intellectual property; wielationbreach of brand
protection covenant:breach-of, Franchise Owner Agreement-by-owner-or
spe&s%ﬁa%—l—ufﬁe—meet minimum performance requirements;requirement

legal compliance representation; failure to notify us of a matter
described in §16.6; termination of lease due to your default; 3 or more
default notices in anya 12-month period; or termination of any other
agreement between you (or your affiliate) and us (or our affiliate) due to
your default. However, termination of an ADA due to breach of the
development schedule or termination of a Satellite Office Addendum due
to a closure is not grounds for termination of any Franchise Agreement
that is otherwise in good standing.

SOA: 6

If we terminate a franchise agreement due to your default, we may
terminate the SOA without opportunity to cure.

ADAEADA: 8.1

Youcannot curc-any default relating to-the terminationof
a franchise agreement based-enduc to your default—Any-termination-ofa
franchise—agreement—is—a—default—under, we may terminate the ADA
allewingus-to-terminate-without opportunity to cure-peried.

i. Your obligations
on termination/
non-renewal

FA:22.1

Obligations include: remove trade dress and alter premises to eliminate
any resemblance to a Center; cease use of intellectual property; return
Manual, educational materials and branded materials; return proprietary
software; assign telephone numbers, listings and domain names; assign
student/parent information and accounts; cancel fictitious names; comply
with data retention policies; and pay amounts due (also see “r”, below).

SOA: Not Applicable

The SOA does not impose any post-term obligations on you.

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any speetfiepost-term obligations on you-after
L . ! o,

FA:20.1 No restriction on our right to assign.
j- Assignment of SOA- 10
contract by us —
ADA: 7.1 Sheemesbmelios e e e b e n e
FA: 41 (definition of .
“Transfer?)) & 20.2 Includes ownership change or transfer of contract or assets.
k. “Transfer by SOA- 0
you — definition |——
ADA: +1 (definition of .
“Transfer?)) & 7.2 t £ '
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

. Our approval of
transfer by you

FA: +1 (definition of
“Permitted Transfer>;).
20.2 & 20.3

Hlessmipesendiiea e s en Ay Heeee e b leped
catity-owned-by-yvor—or N ecram-mstanecs—to-an-exdsting
owner;a Permitted Transfer (defined in Note 2 in Item 6) without eur
approval.

We must approve other transfersTransfers but will not unreasonably
withhold approval. You may only Transfer a Satellite Office to the same
person who buys your Center in accordance with the Franchise
Agreement’s transfer terms.

SOA:5 & 10

ADA: 41 (definition of
“Permitted Transfer>);).
72&7.3

m. ——Conditions
for our approval
of transfer

FA:20.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications; successfully complete training
(or arrange to do so); obtain required licenses and permits; agree—in
writirg-te-assume your obligations under agreementscontracts relating to
the business;-andBusiness; sign then-current form of franchise agreement
for remainder of term (or, at our option, take-assigamentassume your
Franchise Agreement; and remodel Center and upgrade furniture, fixtures
and equipment to current standards within | vear of existingfranchise
agreement)-Transfer or such shorter period of time we specify.

You must: be ineomplianeecompliant with Franchise Agreement; assign

lease (1f apphcable) %medel—@en%e%a&d—upgr&é&f&m&&r%ﬁ*mres—&ﬁd

ée—se)—pay transfer fee— ( sublect to state Idw) subordmate transferee s

ongoing payments owed to you (if any) to transferee’s finaneial
obligatienspayments owed to us; and sign general release (subject to state
law).

We must notify you that we dewill not interd-te-exercise our right of
first refusal.

v ; Satellite_OFF . N "
e e e

SOA:5 & 10

Transfer provisions in Franchise Agreement govern.

ADA: 7.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications; successfully complete training
(or arrange to do so); and sign then-current form of area development

agreement for remainder of term (or. at our option, take-assighment-of
existingassume your ADAY..

You must: be in-eomplianeecompliant with all Franchise Agreements and
ADA; assign all Franchise Agreements and Satellite Office Addenda (if
applicable) to same purchaser unless we agree to contrary (or at—eur
eptiemswe instruct transferee mustto sign then-current form of franchise
agreement); comply with transfer provisions wunderin Franchise
Agreements; pay—transferfee—and sign general release (subject to state
law).

We must notify you that we dewill not intend-te-exercise our right of first
refusal.

n. Our right of first
refusal to acquire
your business

FA:20.5

We can match any offer for your business.

SOA:5 & 10

Right of first refusal provision in Franchise Agreement governs.

ADA: 7.5

We can match any offer for your area development rights.

0. Our option to
purchase your

FA: 222 FA:22.2

We have the option to purchase your Center at the expiration or
termination of the Franchise Agreement.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

business

SOA: Not Applicable

We do not have an option to purchase your Satellite Office.

ADA: Not Applicable

We do not have a—sightan option to purchase your area development

rights-unless-youattempt-to-trans{er-to-a- third-party-buyer.

Within 180 days, interest must be assigned to an assignee in compliance

FA:20.4 with conditions for other transfers. We may designate manager to operate
p. Your death or the Center prior to transfer.
disability SOA:5 & 10
ADA: 74
q. Non-competition |FA: 15.3 No involvement in competing business (subject to state law).

covenants during
the term of the
franchise

SOA: Not Applicable

The SOA does not impose any noncompetition covenants.

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any noncompetition covenants.

r. Non-competition
covenants after
the franchise is
terminated or
expires

FA: 453153 & 22.1

No involvement for 2 years in a_competing business—at: (a) from your
Center or_Satellite Office; (b) anywhere within a 25-mile radius from
your Center, your Satellite Office or any other Center or Satellite Office
that is open or under develepmentconstruction at the time your franchise
terminates or expires (subject to state law).

SOA: Not Applicable

The SOA does not impose any noncompetition covenants.

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any noncompetition covenants.

s. Modification of
the agreement

FA:253 & 25.8

Requires writing signed by both parties (except we may unilaterally
change Manual or reduce scope of restrictive covenants). Other
modifications primarily to comply with various states laws.

SOA: 11(a)

ADA: 12.7

t. Integration/
merger clause

FA:25.8

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement, SOA (if applicable), ADA (if
applicable) and #stheir attachments are binding (subject to state law).
Any representations or promises made outside the Disclosure Document
and, Franchise Agreement, SOA and ADA may not be enforceable.
Nothing in the Franchise Agreement, SOA, ADA or any related
agreements is intended to disclaim any of the representations we made in
this Disclosure Document. No statement, questionnaire; or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law,
including fraud in the inducement; or (b) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller; or other person acting
on our behalf-ef-the-franchiser. This provision supersedes any other term
of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

SOA: 11(a)
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT SUMMARY
ADA: 12.7
Subject to state law, all disputes must be mediated or arbitrated before
u. Dispute FA: 23 litigation, except for certain disputes involving our intellectual property
resolution by or compliance with restrictive covenants.
arbitration or SOA: 5 Disputes governed by provisions in Franchise Agreement.
mediation Subject to state law, all disputes must be mediated and then arbitrated
ADA: 1.1 o
before litigation.
Subject to state law, all mediation, arbitration and litigation must take
FA: 23 place in county where we maintain our principal place of business at time
dispute arises (currently, King County, Washington).
v. Choice of forum |SOA:5 Choice of forum provision in Franchise Agreement governs.
Subject to state law, all mediation, arbitration and litigation must take
ADA: 1.1 place in county where we maintain our principal place of business at time
dispute arises (currently, King County, Washington).
FA:25.1 Subject to applicable state law, Washington law governs.
w. Choice of law SOA: 5 Choice of law provision in Franchise Agreement governs.
ADA: 12.1 Subject to applicable state law, Washington law governs.

ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information,
and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance information that differs
from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing
outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular

circumstances.
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Defined Terms

For purposes of this finanetal performaneerepresentation PR, the following terms have the meanings given to

them below-:

“Company-Owned Center” means any Center owned by: (a) us; (b) our affiliate; or (c) any person listed in

Item 2 of this Disclosure Document if that person is also involved with management of the Center.

“FPR” means the financial performance representation set forth in Item 19 of this Disclosure Document.

“Franchised Center” means any Center owned by a franchisee.

“Gross Sales” means all gross sums collected from all goods and services sold, plus all other sums
collected from the operation of the Center, including any advertising revenues, sponsorship fees, business
interruption insurance proceeds and amounts that third-party marketing agencies, such as Groupon, receive
and retain from your customers for marketing goods or services. Gross Sales does not include: (a) sales or
use taxes; (b) amounts refunded to customers; or (c) Affiliate Program Sales or Special Program Sales.

“Measuring Period” means the period of time that begins January 1, 2024 and ends December 31, 2024.
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“Qualifying Center” means any Company-Owned Center or Franchised Center that satisfies the following
criteria: (a) the Center was open and operating throughout the entire Measuring Period; (b) the Center
provided us with all data we requested in order to prepare the FPR; (c) the Center is not a Satellite Office;
and (d) the Center does not operate remotely.

3

‘Selected Expenses” includes the following Center expenses:

1. General & Administrative: includes operating expenses not included in any of the below categories
such as office supplies, business insurance premiums, state and local taxes, and utilities.

2. Instructor & TA Labor: includes wages for all teaching and teaching assistant staff. This excludes
wages or salaries for owner or management staff.

3. Marketing: includes all paid marketing efforts spent directly by franchisees, including hosting
events at the Center, sponsorship fees, ad placements, and paid ad campaigns. This excludes the
brand fund contribution (which is included under Royalties & Fees).

4. Rent: includes all payments made to the landlord or property manager to lease the space. This
excludes any utilities (which are included under General & Administrative Expenses).

5. Rovyalties & Fees: includes all payments made to the franchisor and affiliates, including rovalties,
brand fund contributions, technology fees and BCP-LMS Monthly Fees (or equivalent fees).

m isti

For purposes of this FPR, each Center may be referred to as an “outlet.” As of December 31, 2024 (the last day

of the Measuring Period) there were: (a) 36 Franchised Centers in operation, 27 of which are Qualifyin
Centers; and (b) 1 Company-Owned Center in operation, which is a Qualifying Center. The table below
summarizes the outlet statistics and the number of Qualifying Centers:

Franchised 44 _1* 9 36 4* S** 27
Company-Owned 2 0 _1* 1 0 0 1
Total 46 1 10 37 4** SH* 28

* _This outlet was a Company-Owned Center that was sold to a franchisee in 2024. We have classified this
outlet as a Franchised Center.

** One Franchised Center operates as both a Satellite Office and remotely and is included in both figures.

This FPR includes data from both Franchised Centers and Company-Owned Centers. We excluded data from:
(a) 4 Franchised Centers that were open during the Measuring Period because they are Satellite Offices; (b) 5
Franchised Centers that operated remotely; and (c) 2 Franchised Centers that did not operate throughout the

entire operating period (one of which was also operated remotely). There are no material differences between
the operations of the Qualifying Centers and the franchised business offered under this Disclosure Document

that impact the realization of Gross Sales.
Subsets Utilized

The FPR includes 2024 Gross Sales data for the 28 Qualifying Centers described above. We have broken down
the data between Franchised Centers and the Company-Owned Center. We have also separately broken out the
data for 27 Franchised Centers into subsets based on the top 1/3% (highest Gross Sales), middle 1/3, and bottom
1/3 (lowest Gross Sales).
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Financial Performance Representation

All $424,749468.72 $139:121219.47 | $448,558200.04

(3627 Outlets) 8 $7:40046.510 6 4 1715 of 364472227 (56%)
Subset 1 $425749468,72 | $240,932248,56 | $239,960304.91 | $264;6806310,02

(429 Outlets) 8 3 8 6 3 of 124259 (33%)
Subset 2 $209:977248.17 $139,121219.47 | $142,010207.73

(329 Outlets) 1 $84:268144,960 6 0 56 of H-41-9 (67%)
Subset 3 .

(120 Outlets) | SFF302130303 | $7:40046510 | $36:689124.101 | $39:583109.376 | 65 of 124509.(56%)

Al $162:058 | $162;058 | 1 o¢0

o) 51H69:67E | S15444s 50%)1
Outlets) Company. $160,099

Owned

Outlet

Notes to Tables 1 and 2:
%W%%ﬁmmmw

for fra Q : - Franchised Centers from
revenue reports submltted by franchlsees as—wel—l—as nd the POS sys%ems—uﬂ-h—zed system used by the
franchisees. FheWe obtained Gross Sales data has-net-beenaudited:

2-1. In-making the above finaneial performanece representation-{01 company-owned Qualifyins Outlets;werelied
en-the Company-Owned Center from internally prepared financial statements for these-eutlets:this outlet.
The data has not been audited.

2. Historical Data: The data in this FPR is historical and represents the financial results achieved by the
Qualifying Centers for the 2024 calendar year.

3. No Expenses: The financial performance representation in Tables 1 and 2 does not reflect the costs of sales,
operating expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales
figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent investigation of the costs
and expenses you will incur in operating your Center. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the
Franchise Disclosure Document, may be one source of this information.
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2024 Survey of Selected Expenses

We sent out a survey to all Qualifying Centers on January 23, 2025 via email. We received 23 total responses
prior to the February 10, 2025 deadline. Of these responses, 22 are from Franchised Centers and 1 from the
Company-Owned Center.

Gross Sales $468,728 $46,510 $220,717 $216,810 14 of 22 (64%)
Instructor & TA Labor $162.,500 $15.885 $50,318 $54.417 10 of 22 (45%)
Rent $60,000 20,500 $39,500 $38,334 13 of 22 (59%)
Marketing $12.,000 $154 $4,019 $3,965 12 of 22 (55%)
General & Admin $49.109 $6,800 $15,419 $17,830 9 of 22 (41%)
Royalties & Fees* $76.196 $8.642 $39.,523 $37,293 14 of 22 (64%)

Gross Sales Less Selected Expenses $70,045 $65.963 11 0f 22 (50%)

* The definition of “Royalties & fees” has been updated to include “BCP-LMS Monthly Fees.” However, during the

Measuring Period, certain Franchised Centers may have been charged royalties on separate fees such as Curriculum
Distribution fees and RLP fees. These have now been consolidated under the BCP-LMS Monthly Fee for reporting and
royalty calculation purposes.

Gross Sales $160,099
Instructor & TA Labor $41.277
Rent $48.,103
Marketing $4.455
General & Admin 18,214
Royalties & Fees $32.496

Gross Sales Less Selected Expenses 15,553

Notes to Tables 3 and 4:

1. Source of Data: We sent out a survey to all Qualifying Centers on January 23, 2025 via email. We received
23 total responses by the deadline given which was February 10, 2025. All of the data received was

unaudited.

2. Historical Data: The data in this FPR is historical and represents the financial results achieved by the
Qualifying Centers for the 2024 calendar year.

4:3.Selected Expenses Only: The financial performance representation in Tables 3 and 4 does not inelude
anyreflect every cost or expense that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales figures to
obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent investigation of the costs and expenses

you will incur in operating your Center. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the Franchise Disclosure
Document, may be one source of this information.-As-a-franchisee;-you-willineur-expenses;-such-as-payroll;

S
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Some Best in Class Education Centers have sold or earned this amount. Your individual results may
differ. There is no assurance that you will sell or earn as much.

Written substantiation for this financial performance representation will be made available to you upon your
reasonable written request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any financial performance
representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations
either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual
records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Hao Lam at 4820 NE 4th St., Suite
A-107, Renton, Washington 98059 or by phone by calling (425) 880-2688, the Federal Trade Commission, and
the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE 1 - SYSTEM-WIDE OUTLET SUMMARY FOR YEARS 2021-20232022 10 2024

Outlet Type Year Outleti 1?: glee; ftart of Outlettshzt ‘t{l;elrEnd of Net Change
2022202+ 5248 4847 -41
Franchised 20232022 4847 47 -13
20232024 4744 4436 -38
2022202+ 7 74 0-3
Company-Owned 20232622 74 42 -32
20232024 42 21 21
2022202+ 5955 5551 -4
Total Outlets 20232022 5551 5446 -45
20232024 5446 4637 -59

TABLE 2 - TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR YEARS 20212022 10 20232024

State Year Number of Transfers

20222024 0
Florida 20232622 02
20232024 20

20222024 0
Ohio 20232022 92
20232024 20
20222021 01

Texas 20232622 1
20232024 |
20222021 02
Washington 20232622 20
20232024 0
20222021 03

Total 20232022 35
20232024 51
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024

State

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Termin-
ations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
- Other
Reasons

Outlets at
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 20212022 TO 20232024

Outlets at 5 Reacquired Cease.:d Outlets at
Outlets Termin- Non- Operations
State Year Start of . by End of
Opened ations Renewals . - Other
Year Franchisor Year
Reasons
2023 13 0 0 0 0 2 11
2024 11 0 0 0 0 1 10
20222021 3 03 0 0 0 0 36
Washington 2022 3 3 0 0 0 0 6
2023 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
Tetals 20212024 526 01 0 0 0 40 487
Totals 2022 48 3 0 0 0 4 47
2023 47 3 0 0 0 6 44
2024 44 1 0 0 0 9 36
TABLE 4 - STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 26212022 1O 20232024
Outlets
State Year Outlets at Outlets Reacquired Outlets Outlets Sold Outlets at
Start of Year Opened From Closed to Franchisee | End of Year
Franchisee
2022202+ 7 0 0 0 03 74
Washington 20222023 74 0 0 0 32 42
20232024 42 0 0 0 21 21
20212022 7 0 0 0 03 74
Totals 20232022 —_ 0 0 0 32 42
20232024 42 0 0 0 21 21
TABLE 5 - PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024
Franchise Agreements Projected New Franchised Projected New Company-
State Signed But Outlet Not Outlets in the Next Fiscal Owned Outlets in the Next
Opened Year Fiscal Year
Texas 1 1 0
Washington 1 1 0
Total 12 12 0

A list of all current franchisees is attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "F" (Part A), including
their names and the addresses and telephone numbers of their outlets as of December 31, 26232024, In addition,
EXHIBIT "E" (Part B) lists the name, city and state, and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown,
the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not
renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during
our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance
date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to
other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In the last 3 fiscal years, some franchisees have signed confidentiality agreements with us. In some instances,
current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience
with us. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees
will be able to communicate with you.
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There are no: (a) trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered
that we have created, sponsored or endorsed; or (b) independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be
included in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our fiscal year ends on December 31*. Audited financial statements of BiC Franchise System Corporation for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 isare attached to this Disclosure Document as
EXHIBIT "G". In addition, an unaudited balance sheet as of March 31, 20242025 and an unaudited profit and
loss statement from January 1, 20242025 through March 31, 26242025 are attached to this Disclosure Document
as EXHIBIT "G". Because we have not been in existence for 3 years, we cannot provide all of the financial
statements required by the FTC franchise disclosure guidelines.

ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document (or the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document) are
copies of the following franchise and other contracts or agreements proposed for use or in use in this state:

Exhibits to Disclosure Document

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "H"-1  State Addenda

EXHIBIT "H"-2  Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire (Questionnaire may not be signed or used if the
franchisee resides within, or the franchised business will be located within, a franchise
registration state)

EXHIBIT "H"-3  General Release

EXHIBIT "H"-4  Satellite Office Addendum

EXHIBIT "H"-5 Social Media Policy

Attachments to Franchise Agreement

ATTACHMENT "B" Form of Site Approval Notice
ATTACHMENT "C" Lease Addendum

ATTACHMENT "D" Franchise Owner Agreement
ATFACHMENT"E"ATTACHMENT "E" ACH Authorization Form
ATTACHMENT "F" Confidentiality Agreement

ITEM 23 RECEIPT

EXHIBIT "J" to this Disclosure Document are detachable receipts. You are to sign both, keep one copy and
return the other copy to us.
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EXHIBIT "A"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Financial Protection
& Innovation

Department of Financial Protection &
Innovation

320 West 4" Street, #750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500

1-866-275-2677

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of the
State of Hawaii

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

Agents for Service of Process:
Commissioner of Securities of the
State of Hawaii

Department of Commerce and
Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

linois Attorney General
Chief, Franchise Division
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State

Securities Division

Room E-018

302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202
(410) 576-6360

Agent for Service of Process:
Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020

MICHIGAN

Franchise Section

Consumer Protection Division
525 W. Ottawa Street, G. Mennen
Williams Building, 1% Floor
Lansing, MI 48913

(517) 335-7567

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Director of Registration

85 Seventh Place East, #280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-3165
(651) 539-1500

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21 Floor
New York, NY 10005
Phone: (212) 416-8222

Agents for Service of Process:
Secretary of State

99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
State Capitol, 5" Floor, Dept 414 600
East Boulevard Avenue

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505

(701) 328-4712

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Franchise Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue, John O. Pastore
Complex, Bldg 69-1

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9527

SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Labor and Regulation
Division of Insurance Securities
Regulation

124 S Euclid, 2™ Floor

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail
Franchising

1300 East Main Street, 9" Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

Agents for Service of Process:
Clerk of the State Corporation
Commission

1300 East Main Street, 1* Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

(360) 902-8760

Mailing Address:
Department of Financial Institutions

Securities Division
PO Box 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200

WISCONSIN

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

201 W Washington Avenue, Suite
500, Madison, WI 53703

(608) 261-9555
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EXHIBIT "B"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISOR’S AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Corporation Service Company
251 Little Falls Dr.
Wilmington, DE 19808

In states listed in EXHIBIT "A", the additional agent
for Service of Process is listed in EXHIBIT "A"

Exhibit B

Franchise D1



EXHIBIT "C"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Best In Class Education Center Franchise Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of

, 202 (the “Effective Date”) between BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware

corporation (“we” or “us”) and , a(n) (“you”).
1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used—in-thisAgreementnot defined above have the meanings given to

them below:

“Account” means the checking account you designate from which we deduct fees and other amounts owed
to us and our affiliates in accordance with §14.6.

“ACH Agreement” means the ACH Authorization Agreement attached hereto as ATTFACHMENT
"E"ATTACHMENT "E", which authorizes us to electronically debit your Account for amounts owed to us
and our affiliates.

“Acquisition” means either: (a) a competitive or non-competitive company, franchise system, network or
chain directly or indirectly acquiring us, whether in whole or in part, including by asset or stock purchase,
change of control, merger, affiliation or otherwise; or (b) us, or our affiliate or parent, directly or indirectly
acquiring another competitive or non-competitive company, franchise system, network or chain, whether in
whole or in part, including by asset or stock purchase, change of control, merger, affiliation or otherwise.

“Acquired Assets” means any assets associated with your Center that we elect to purchase upon termination
or expiration of this Agreement, as further described in §22.2.22.2(a).

“Affiliate Program” means any program or revenue-generating activity conducted at or in connection with
your Center that is not a standard part of our System but is approved by us.

“Affiliate Program Sales” means the total gross sums—that you collect from all Affiliate Programs
conducted in connection with your Center. Affiliate Program Sales also include amounts that third-party
marketing agencies, such as Groupon, receive and retain from your customers for marketing goods or
services relating to your Affiliate Programs. Affiliate Program Sales do-netineludecxcludes: (a)-any sales
or use taxes you pay to a Governmental Authority; (b) revenuesrevenue you collect and subsequently
refund to thea customer in a bona fide refund transaction; (c) Gross Sales; erand (d) Special Program Sales.

“After-School Program” means the optional educational program you may offer at your Center whereby
students visit every day after school for at least two and one-half (2.5) hours per day and receive one (1)
packet of Math and one (1) packet of English each week.

13 99

“Alternative Channels of Distribution” means any channel of distribution other than retail sales made to
students or their parents while present at a Center or Satellite Office, including, but not limited to: (a) the
sale of educational products (such as educational DVDs, software programs, curriculum, tapes or books)
through direct marketing (such as over the Internet or through catalogs or telemarketing) or from outlets
other than a Center (such as retail stores, schools or other educational facilities); (b) the sale of educational
products or programs (including licensing of the LMS platform) to school districts, home school
organizations, non-profit organizations and other businesses that do not operate under the Marks; (c) the
sale of educational products or services at wholesale; and (d) providing “on-site” tutoring or educational
classes at schools or at students’ homes.

“Anti-Terrorism Law” means Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States of
America (or any successor Order), the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) of 2001 (or any successor
legislation) and all other present and future federal, state and local Laws, ordinances, regulations, policies,
lists, orders and any other requirements of any Governmental Authority addressing or in any way relating
to terrorist acts and acts of war.

113 . 99

b

“Appraised Value” means the fair market value of the Acquired Assets as determined by independent
appraisers in accordance with §22.2(b).
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“BC Portal” means the proprietary online platform owned by LBIS and used by franchisees to manage
student and parent contact information and enrollment data and perform invoicing and payment functions,
as modified by LBIS from time to time.

“BC Printing Software” means the proprictary software owned by LBIS and used by franchisees to print
educational materials, as modified by LBIS from time to time.

“BCP-LMS’ means our proprietary business management platform owned by LBIS and used to operate a
Center, and which incorporates various Technology Systems including BC Portal, BC Printing Software
and LMS. The term includes any modified or successor platform that LBIS designates in the future.

“Business” means the franchised business you operate pursuant to this Agreement.
“Business Data” means, collectively or individually, Customer Data and Operational Data.
“Center” means any Bestdn-ClassEducation-Centerthatis-autherizededucation business that we authorize

to operate under our Marks and use our System A—Gen%eﬁmay—FefeHe—a—Best—Ln—GLass—Edﬂeaﬂeﬂ—GeH{er

“Center Territory” is-definedmeans the protected territory for your Center, as further described in §31.

“Claim” er—Claims”—means any and—al—eclaims,—actions;,—demands;,—assessmentsaction, allegation,

assessment, claim, demand, htlgatlon proceedmg or e%her—feﬂﬂ—e#regulatoryer—adjﬂd*ea{eﬂ'—pfeeedme&
3 = - giriesprocedure, investigation or

inquiry.
“CompetitiveCompeting Business” means any business that meets at least one of the following criteria: (a)

any educational business that derives, or is reasonably expected to derive, at least 50% of its revenues from
the sale of one or more of the following: (i) supplemental education classes and/or tutoring in Mathematics;
(i1) supplemental education classes and/or tutoring in English; (iii) SAT preparation courses and/or
tutoring; (iv) ACT preparation courses and/or tutoring; and/or (v) the sale of any educational products
relating to any of the foregoing types of educational services; (b) any business that solicits, offers or sells
franchises or licenses for a business that meets the criteria in clause (a) of this definition; and/or (c) any
business that services, trains, supports, consults with, advises or otherwise assists any Person with respect
to the development, management and/or operation of a business that meets the criteria in clause (a) of this
definition. A CempetitiveCompeting Business does not include any Center or Satellite Office operated
pursuant to a valid franchise agreement, license agreement or Satellite Office Addendum signed by us or
our affiliate.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) the—Know-How; (b) the—Business Data; (c) the
information in the Manual or comprising the System; (d) terms of the-Definitive Agreements and al

attachments-any amendments thereto; and amendments—thereof:()-the-components-of-the System:((e)all
information—within—er—comprising—the Manualk—and(f) all other concepts, ideas, trade secrets, financial

information, marketing strategies, expansion strategies, studies, supplier information, customer
information, franchisee information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works,
improvements, discoveries, standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings,
policies, processes, procedures, methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations,
studies or other documents that are: (i) are—designated as confidential; (ii) are—known by you to be
considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) are-by—theirnature—inherently—or-reasonably to be considered
confidential- due to their nature. Confidential Information does not include-any information that: (a) is now,
or subsequently becomes, generally available to the public (except as a result of a breach of confidentiality
obligations by you or your Owners, employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was
rightfully #-yeurpessessionpossessed by you or an Owner, without obligation of nondisclosure, before we
disclosed the information to you or the Owner; (¢) is independently developed by you or an Owner without
any use of, or reference to, any Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party
who has the right to transfer or disclose suehthe information to you or an Owner without breaching any
obligation-efa confidentiality covenant imposed on such third party.

“Confidentiality Agreement” means the Confidentiality Agreement that must be signed by certain of your
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employees pursuant to §15.5, the current form of which is attached hereto as ATTACHMENT "F".

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate haveseenredclaim
or secure common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or
display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a Center;-whethernow-in-existence-or-ereated
n-thefutare.

“Customer Data” means and includes any and all data that pertains to students and/or their parents,
including, without limitation, name, address, contact information, date of birth, purchase history,
enrollment history, testing scores and other educational data, and any other information collected about
students or their parents for any purpose.

“Definitive Agreements” means, collectively;: (a) this Agreement;: (b) the Area Development Agreement
pursuant to which this Agreement is executed (if applicable);); (c) any other Franchise Agreement between
you (or your affiliate) and us (or our affiliate) for a Center or any other franchised concept;: and (d) all
ancillary agreements exeeuted—in—eonnection—withrelated to any of the foregoing, including;—witheut

Hmitation,—each—related—  Franchise Owner Agreement—and—Satellite —Office—Addendum—@Gf
apphieablex:-Agreements.

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer or sale of the franchise; or (c) the
relationship between the parties.

“Early Termination Fee” means the $5,000 fee you must pay us if, prior to the expiration of the Term, you:
(a) cease operating your Center or terminate this Agreement without cause; and (b) fail to comply with the
180-day notice and other procedural requirements set forth in §21.1.

113 . 99

“Enrichment Programs” means weekly group tutoring in Mathematics, English and/or STEM.

“Enrichment Sales” means the total amount of yveur-Gross Sales thatis-derived from the sale of Enrichment
Programs.

“Entity” means a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other form of association.

“Equity Interest” means a direct or indirect ownership or beneficial interest in the capital stock of,
partnership or membership interest in, or other equity, ownership or beneficial interest in ara business or
Entity (including voting rights).

113 LS L I

“Excluded Claim” means a Claim that, according to §23, is not subject to mandatory mediation or
arbitration.

“Force Majeure” means acts or circumstances that are beyond a party’s control, including fire, storm,
flood, earthquake, explosion or accident, acts of war or terrorism, rebellion, insurrection, sabotage,
epidemic, failures or delays of transportation and strikes, provided that: (a) the non-performing party

provides-written—netiee-topromptly notifies the other party of the Force Majeure-event-within-three-(3)-days
of becomingaware-of the-oceurrence-of sueh event; (b) the non-performing party is without fault and the

delay or failure could not have been prevented by reasonable precautions by the non-performing party; (c)
nothing herein shall excuse or permit any delay or failure to pay fees or other amounts owed on the
applicable due date; (d) insolvency, lack of required funds or financing, currency fluctuations, currency
devaluations, foreign exchange controls or inflation shall never be deemed Force Majeure; and (e) an
epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, or economic or financial changes caused by an
epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, shall never be deemed Force Majeure except to the
extent a Governmental Authority mandates closure (or prevents the opening) of the Center as a result of
such epidemic or pandemic.

“Franchise Owner Agreement” means the Franchise Owner Agreement attached as ATTACHMENT "D"
that the Owners and their spouses must sign.

“Franchisee Entity” means thean Entityifapplieable; that: (a) signs this Agreement as the franchisee (e
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“you)-if this Agreement is signed by an Entity;): or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its
execution by the original Owners.

“General Release” means our then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims that-you and your
Owners must sign pursuant to: (a) §4-24.2 {in connection with a renewal-ef-yourfranchise rights)renewal;
(b) §26:220.2 €in connection with a Transfer);; or (c) §21.1 {in connection with a “no-cause” termination of
this Agreement by you)-—.

“Gift Card Program Participation Rules” means the policies, procedures, fees and other requirements
pertaining to any gift card program we implement, as further described in §11.10.

“Government Official” means any: (a) officer or employee of a Governmental Authority; (b) commercial or
similar entity owned or controlled by a Governmental Authority, including state-owned and state-operated
companies or enterprises; (¢) public international organization (e.g., United Nations, World Bank); (d)
political party or official thereof; or (e) candidate for political office.

“Governmental Authority” means any national, provincial, state, county, local, municipal or other
government, or any ministry, department, agency or subdivision thereof, whether administrative or
regulatory, or any other body that exercises similar functions, ard-including anya court or taxing authority.

“Gross Sales” means the total gross sums %ha{—yeu—eelrleeﬂ ) collected from all goods and serv1ces sold
from or in connection with your Center;—teg g
with or (b) that otherwise relate to your Center 1nclud1ng advertlslng reventesrevenue, sponsorshlp fees
and business interruption insurance proceeds. Gross Sales also include amounts that third-party marketing
agencies, such as Groupon, receive and retain from your customers for marketing goods or services relating
to your Center. Gross Sales de-net-ineladecxcludes: (a)-any sales or use taxes you pay to a Governmental
Authority; (b) reventesrevenue you collect and subsequently refund to thea customer in a bona fide refund
transaction; (c) revenue derived from the sale of furniture, fixtures or equipment in the ordinary course; (d)
Affiliate Program Sales; er(dand (c¢) Special Program Sales. The Manual may include policies governing
the manner in which proceeds from the sale of gift cards are treated for purposes of calculating Gross Sales.

“Improvement” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a)-the goods or services
offered or sold at a Center, (b) the—method of operation of a Center, (c) the—processes, systems or
procedures utilized by a Center, (d)-the marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or
strategies utilized by a Center or (e) the-trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property

utilized by a Center, whether developed by you, yeurOwners—youremployeesan Owner, an employee or
any other Person-asseciated-with-you-er-yourCenter.

“IndemmnifiedParty™—er—" Indemnified Parties” means_and includes us and each of our past, present and
future owners, members, officers, directors, employees and agents, as well as our parents, subsidiaries and
affiliates, and each of their past, present and future owners, members, officers, directors, employees and
agents.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,
Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Interim Manager” means thea Person we designate to temporarily manage your Center under the
circumstances described in §8.5.

“Interim Term” means a month-to-month extension of the Term under the circumstances described in §4.3.

“IP Dispute” means any: (a) actual or suspected infringement of the Intellectual Property; (b) challenge to
your use of the Intellectual Property; or (¢) claim by any Person, other than us or our affiliate, of any rights
in or to the Intellectual Property.

“Know-how” means all of our trade secrets and other proprietary information relating to the design,
construction, development, marketing or operation of a Center, including, but not limited to: architectural
plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Center; site selection criteria; curricula; instructional
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materials; methods and techniques; standards and specifications; policies and procedures; supplier lists and
information; marketing strategies; merchandising strategies; financial information; and information
comprising the System or included in the Manual.

“Law” means and includes all laws, judgments, decrees, orders, rules, regulations, ordinances, advisory
opinions or official legal interpretations of any Governmental Authority.

“LBIS” means our affiliate LBIS, LLC.

“Learning Management System” or “LMS”’ means the proprietary online platform wwe—designate—te

deliverowned by LBIS and manage—in-personused by franchisees and remetely-condueted—elasses—for
English;math-and—fapphieable, STEM-eourses-teachers to perform various business functions relating to

the operation of a Center, as modified by LBIS from time to time.

“Local Marketing Commitment” means the minimum amount of money you must spend each month on
local advertising and marketing to promote your Center in accordance with §+6-3¢a}10.3(b).

“Losses and Expenses” means and includes any-er—all of the following: compensatory, exemplary and
punitive damages; fines and penalties; attorneys’ fees; experts’ fees; court costs; Travel Expenses and other
costs associated with investigating and defending against-Clatmsa Claim; settlement amounts; judgments;
compensation—for-damagesdamage to reputation or goodwill; and all other costs, damages, liabilities and
expenses associated with any of the foregoing losses and expenses or otherwise incurred by an Indemnified
Party-as-a-result-ofa-Claim.

bl

“Management Training” means our then-current franchise operations and management training program.

“Manager” means a Person you hire to provide onsite supervision and management of your Center and
who meets the criteria and requirements set forth in §8.2.

“Managing Owner” means the Owner you designate and we approve with primary responsibility for the
overall management and supervision of your Center in accordance with §8.1.

“Manual” means our confidential Brand Standards Manual described in §11.2 for the operation of a Center;
as-furtherdeseribed-in-$ -2,

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize Centers to use, including “BestJda-ClassEdueation-Center”BEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER" and the associated logo. The Marks also include any distinctive trade dress used
to identify a Center.

“Operational Data” means and includes all data and information pertaining to the operation of your Center,
including, without limitation, employee data, expense data, financial accounting data and sales data.

“Owner” means a Person who either: (a) directly signs this Agreement as the franchisee-{. either alone or in
conjunction with one or more other Persons): or (b) directly or indirectly (through one or more
intermediaries) owns anyan Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity-(Gthe-franchisee-underthis
T

“PCI-DSS” means the payment card industry data security standard, which is a set of security requirements
established by the following major credit card brands from time to time: American Express, Discover
Financial Services, JCB International, MasterCard Worldwide, and Visa Inc., which standards are set forth
at https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org as of the Effective Date.

“Permitted Transfer” means—éa) a Transfer

D 5 S S et 4 sl B e Al : (a) between
ex1st1ng Owners; or (b) a—"PPansfer—by the Owners to a ﬂewl—y—es%abhs-heénew Franchlsee Entlty for which
such Owners collectively own and control 100% of the Equity Interests: provided. however, that a
Permitted Transfer does not include a Transfer that results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20% of
the Equity Interests in the Business or Franchisee Entity.

“Person” means an individual, Entity, unincorporated organization, joint venture, Governmental Authority,
estate (or executor thereof) or trust (or trustee thereof).
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“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to you, athe two-year period-eftwe-{2)-years after the
termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; provided, however, that if a court of competent
jurisdiction determines the two-year Pest-FermRestrietedPeriod-period is too long to be enforceable; then
Post-Term Restricted Period means a—peried-ofthe one-(1--year period after the termination, expiration or
Transfer of this Agreement.

“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to an Owner, a—period—oftwo(2)yearsthe two-year
period after the earlier to occur of: (a) the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; or (b) the

date on which the Owner no longer owns an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity; provided,
however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines the two-year period is too long to be
enforceable then Post-Term Restricted Period means the one-year period after the earlier to occur of: (a) the

termmatron exp1rat10n or Transfer of this Agreement or (b) the quer—s—"liransfer—ef—ms—er—her—enme

longer owns an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchlsee Entlty

“Prohibited Activities” means and includes any of the following: (a) owning, operating or having any other
interest (e.g.. as an-ewner,partaer;a director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, sharehelder,-creditor,
representative, agent or in any similar capacity) in any—Cempetitivea Competing Business, other than
owning an-interest-of five-pereent(5%)-orless than 5% of the Equity Interests in a Competing Business that

is a publicly--traded company-thatis-a-Competitive Business; (b) disparaging or otherwise making negative
comments about us, any-ef-our affiliatesaffiliate, the System and/or any Center: (this provision does not

prohibit disclosure of truthful information to Governmental Authorities): (¢) diverting or attempting to
divert any business from us-(er-ene-of, our atfiliates-affiliate or another franchisee; and/or franchisees)or

(d) inducing any eustomer-of-ours{or-ofone-ofouraffiliates-orfranchisees)Person to transfer their business

from a Center to a competitor.

“Restricted Territory” means the geographic area within: &) a 25-mile radius from: (a) your Center (and
including your Center’s premises—itself); (b) a—25-mile—radiusfrom—any Satellite Office you develop:
(including your Satellite Office’s premises): and (¢) a25-mieradinsfrom-al-any other Centers-andCenter
or Satelhte OffieesOffice that arels operatmg or under construction as-eftheEffective Date-and remainin
when the Post-Term Restricted Period begins;
provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that-the foregoing Restricted
Territory is too broad to be enforceable; then Restricted Territory means the geographic area within: (&) a
25-mile radius from: (a) your Center (and-including your Center’s premises—itsel)—and). (b) a25-mile
radivs-frem-any Satellite Office you develop- (including vour Satellite Office’s premises).

“Satellite Office” means a Best In Class Education Center that: (a) consists of “temporary space” that is not
subject to a lease of more than 12 months in duration; and (b) consists of space that is shared between you
(or other owner of the Satellite Office) and one or more other businesses or organizations. Examples
include churches, temples, libraries, HOA buildings, YMCAs, Boys & Girls Clubs, community centers,
schools, and similar types of facilities.

“Site _Approval Notice” means the Site Approval Notice attached hereto—as ATTACHMENT
"B"ATTACHMENT "B" that we may issue to you iaeeerdance—with-pursuant to §33.2 and §717.1 to

identify vour Center Territory and the approved site for your Center-and-designate-the-boundaries-of-your
Copes e,

“Site Drawing” means a basic preliminary site drawing consisting of our proposed high-level design and
layout for your Center (and each room within your Center), including our suggestions for the layout and
configuration of required furniture and equipment.

“Site Selection Area” means the geographic area described in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A": and within
which you must find a site we approve for your Center.

“Special Program Sales” means the total gross sums-that you collect from all After-School Programs and

Franchise Agreement Page 6



Summer Camp Programs conducted in connection with your Center. Special Program Sales also include
amounts that third-party marketing agencies, such as Groupon, receive and retain from your customers for
marketing goods or services relating to your After-School Programs and Summer Camp Programs. Special
Program Sales de-netineladecxcludes: (a)-any sales or use taxes you pay to a Governmental Authority; (b)
reventesrevenue you collect and subsequently refund to thea customer in a bona fide refund transaction; (c)
Affiliate Program Sales; erand (d) Gross Sales.

“Successor Agreement” means our then-current form of Best In Class Education Center Franchise
Agreement you must sign pursuant to §4.2 in erder-te—renewconnection with a renewal of your franchise
rights.

“Summer Camp Program” means the optional educational program you may offer at your Center during the
Summer whereby students visit every day, five (5) days per week, for at least two and one-half (2.5) hours
per day, and receive one (1) packet of Math and one (1) packet of English each week.

“System” means the business format and operating system developed for the operation of a Center, the
distinctive characteristics of which include: proprietary curriculum and educational materials; proprietary
technology; trade secrets (if any); methods; techniques; procedures; and operating system.

“Teacher” means any Person who teaches classes or provides tutoring at your Center.

“Technology Systems” means and includes all information and communication technology systems we
specify from time to time, including, without limitation, computer systems, point-of-sale systems, learning
systems, printing systems, webcam systems, telecommunications systems, security systems, music systems
and similar systems, together with the associated hardware, software (including cloud-based software) and
related equipment, software applications, mobile apps, and third-party services relating to the
establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of these systems.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date and expiring on the earlier to occur of:
(a) the fifth (5™) anniversary of the Effective Date; or (b) the date this Agreement is effectively terminated
Lo rennan,

“Third-Party Technology” means any Technology Systems (or components thereof) that are owned by
Persons who are not affiliated with us.

“Total Sales” means the sum of your Affiliate Program Sales, Gross Sales and Special Program Sales.

“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary-Gineladingbyjudicial-award,—order—or

deeree);, assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of:

(a) this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(b) the franchise rights-or intellectual property rights granted by this Agreement (or any interest therein);
(c) the Business eendueted-by-you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(d) the-Center’syour Busmes assets—(ether-than, excluding the sale of furniture, fixtures or equipment in the
ordinary course 2, or

(e) an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity;

including by: merger or consolidation;—by: judicial award, order or decree: issuance of additional Equity

Interests intheFranchisee Entity;—or-by(including public and private offerings); foreclosure of a security
interest by a lender; or operation of Law, will or a trust upon thean Owner’s death ef-an-Owner(including

via the Laws of intestate succession).

“Travel Expenses” means and includes all travel, meals and lodging expenses incurred by us and‘er our
trainers, field support personnel, auditors or other representatives to visit your Center, including: (a)
economy tickets (no red-eye flights); (b) business class hotels (3.5 stars and up); (c¢) up to $50 per Person
per day for meals; and (d) actual costs incurred for local transportation, such as car rental fees plus
insurance costs, taxi fare, Uber fees, etc. Travel Expenses also includes all travel, meals and lodging
expenses incurred by you and your personnel to attend training or conferences.

113 99 33 99
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2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE. We hereby grant you the right and license to own and operate one (1) Center
using our Intellectual Property from a site that we approve. As a franchisee, you will establish and operate
an education center that provides school-aged children with supplemental learning opportunities in the
areas of Mathematics and English as well as SAT and ACT preparation courses. We reserve all rights not
expressly granted to you.

3—FERRIFORIAL RIGHTS AND EIMITATIONSTERRITORY.

3.1.  Territory Description._We will grant you a preteeted—territory (your “Center Territory”) that
includes between 15,000 and 18,000 students between the ages of 5 and 17. We may designate the
boundaries of your Center Territory in any manner we deem appropriate as long as includes a student
population equal to or greater than the minimum student population specified above. We may use
data from any source we deem appropriate to determine the student population within an area. We do
not modify your Center Territory based on student population changes during the Term._Upon
renewal, we reserve the right to modify your Center Territory in accordance with our then-current
territory guidelines and criteria.

3.2. Territory Designation. If we approve the site for your Center priorte-exeention—efbefore signing
this Agreement, therwe will describe your Center Territory in Part D of AFFACHMENT"A" shall
identifythe-geographic-areathat comprisessATTACHMENT "A". Otherwise, we will describe your
Center Territory—H-we-do-net-approve-thesitefor-your Centerprior in the Site Approval Notice we

send to exeeution-of-thisAgreement—thenyou within 15 days after we approve theyour site for-your
Centerspursuant to §7.1. Within five (5) business days after we wit-send you athe Site Approval

Notice-thatidentifies={(a), vou must sign and date the addressfranchisee acknowledgment section and

send us a copy for our records. Our approval of the appreved-site—for—yourCenterand{(b)the
geographic-area-that-comprises—your-Center Territory-site and designation of your Center Territory is

immediately effective and binding at the time we issue the Site Approval Notice even if you do not
sign the acknowledgment; provided, however, you have five (5) business days after receipt of the

Site Approval Notice to suggest changes to your Center Territory (which wil-inelude—between
15,000-and-18;000-students-between-the-ages-of S-and-1+7-may. but need not, accept).

3.1. Territorial Protections & Limitations. During the Term we will not develop or operate, or license
a third party to develop or operate, a Center or a Satellite Office that is physieally-located withinin
the Center Territory except as otherwise provided in this Section with respect to Acquisitions. At any
time during the Term; we reserve the right to engage in Acquisitions;—even—+f-as—a that involve, or

subsequently result ef—&ﬁ%eq&ts}&eﬂ—eﬁ%er—mer%eemﬁemw&basmessesm conversion of the
acquired or acquiring eempany HSHA : per .
company’s outlets to BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTERR outlets even 1f those outlets are
located withinthein your Center Territory. We reserve the right to sell, and license third parties to
sell, competitive or identical goods and services (including under the Marks) within the Center
Territory through Alternative Channels of Distributions—ineluding—within—theCenter Ferritory—and
yowarc-notentitted-to-amy-compensationtor-these-sales,

4. TERM AND RENEWAL.

4.1. Generally. This Agreement grants you the right to operate your Center enly—during the Term.

Provided-that-yousatisfy-all-eonditions-You may renew your franchise rights by signing a Successor
Agreement for a five (5) vear renewal speeified-below—you-term. You may enter into a maximum of

three (3) Successor Agreements—folowing—theAgreement(s). The parties may agree to further
renewals after expiration of the Ferma-third (3") renewal term, but neither party is obligated to do so
(unless required by applicable Law, in which case the same renewal terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement shall apply to subsequent renewals). In order to sign a Successor Agreement you
must satisfy all renewal conditions specified in this Agreement or the Successor Agreement you wish
to renew, as applicable. The Successor Agreement shall be the current form of franchise agreement
we use -grantingto grant franchises as of the expiration of the Term or renewal term, as applicable,
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the terms of which may Vary materlally and substantlally from the terms of thlS Agreement ren

is—obligated-to-do-so—If this Agreement is a Successor Agreement, the Fenewal—picemas—m—yeﬂf
original—franchise—agreement—will -dictate—thelength—ofthe—Term of this Agreement and your

remaining renewal rights, if any, shall be governed by vour original franchise agreement.

4.2. Renewal Requirements. In order to enterinte—a—Sueeessor-Agreementrencw you and the Owners
(as applicable) must:

H(a)  netifirsend us m-writinga notice of your desireintent to enter into a Successor Agreement not
less than 486210 days nor more than 270 days before the expiration of the Term or renewal
term, as applicable;

@H(b) not be in default under any Definitive Agreement at the time you send the renewal notice or
the time you sign the Successor Agreement;

@Gib(c) sign the Successor Agreement and all ancillary documents we require franchisees to sign;
w(d) sign a General Release;
69(e)  pay us a $2,500 renewal fee;

e#0(f) _remodel your Center and upgrade your furniture, fixtures and equipment to eeomphy
withconform to our then-current standards and specifications; and

c#(g) extend the term of your lease for the duration of the renewal term.

We may condition your right to renew on compliance with any minimum customer satisfaction
requirements we develop and uniformly impose. If we elect not to renew or offer you the right to
renew, we will send you a written—notice of non-renewal at least 180 days prior to the expiration
date, which shall set forth the basis for our decision-net-te-renew-or-effer. If you have any objection
to our notice of non-renewal, including a dispute as to the rightte-renew=basis for our decision, you
must send us a notice of objection that sets forth the basis for your objection. Your notice of
objection must be sent to us no later than 30 days after you receive our notice of non-renewal. Your
failure to send us a notice of objection during such 30-day period constitutes your consent to the non-
renewal of your franchise. Our failure to send you a notice of non-renewal at least 180 days prior to

the expiration date shall-eonstituteconstitutes our offer to renew your franchise in accordance with,

and subJect to, the renewal terms and condltlons set forth above. l—f—yea—l%aﬂ%ebjeeﬁeﬂs—te—em

4.3. Interim Term. If you do not sign a Successor Agreement after—the—expiration—of-the Termand
yerbut continue to aceept-the-benefitsefoperate your Center after the Term expires, we may either

treat this Agreement;-thenat-ouroptionthis-Agreementmay-be-treated-either as: (a) expired as of
the Term expiration date ef-the-expiration-ofthe Ferm-with you operating-witheut-afranchiseto-de
so-and in violation of our rights; or (b) continued on a month-to-month basis (the “Interim Term”)
until either party provides the other party with 30 days’ prior writtennotice of the-party s-intentionto
terminate-termination of the Interim Term. Ha-thelattereaseal-ofAll your obligations wil-remain in
full force and effect during the Interim Term, if applicable, as if this Agreement had not expired, and
all obligations and—restrietions—imposed on you upon the—expiration er—termination—of this
Agreementthe Term will be-deemed-te-take effect upon-the termination of the Interim Term.
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5.

TRAINING AND CONFERENCES
5.1. Imtlal Tralnlng—PPogFam The Managrng Owner and erther—yenrall initial M&nager—érf—yeﬂ—h&%a

: ana rg}Managers
must attend—&nd—successfully complete our initialfranchise ooeratlons and mana;ement training

program (“Management Training”) before yeu—epen—your Center opens. To prepare for initial
training, the Managing Owner must complete our virtual training consisting of video-based training
and video calls with our corporate trainers prior to attending initialtraining—at—our—corporate
headguarters:Management Training. As part of our initial training program, we will also provide the
initial onsite training and operational support described in §6.3.

5.2. InitialPost-Opening_Trainin e Bl apendnnnser e

appomt—a new Managrng Owner or Manas_el appomted or hlred after w&eondaet—om’—pre—openmg

i gage Rew 3 anaging Ow A d-your
Center opens must successfully complete oa%then—e&erent—mtml—trammg—program—befer&&ss&mmg
responsibiity for-the-management-of yourCenter-Management Training prior to managing your

Center. We may, but need not, allow your Managing Owner to train new Managers you hire.

5.3.—Periodie Training-We may offer periodic refresher or additionalsupplemental training courses for

your Managing Owner and Managers. We may designate attendance—at-these—training programs

each course as mandatory or optional—We, but will not require attendance at more than five (5)

days of periediesuch training during-any-ealendarper year.

5.5.—Remedial Training—If we determine you-are-not-eperating-your Center is not operating in full
compliance with this Agreement andfor the Manual, we may;—at—eur—eption; require that your
Managing Owner and management—persennelManagers attend remedial training relevant to your
operational deficiencies. We may, but need not, provide additional assistance or training requested
by you at a mutually convenient time.

5.3. Training Locations. Our training programs may take place at any location we designate. We reserve

the right to conduct training programs virtually.

5.7.5.4. Training Fees and Expenses. We provide our pre-epentngpreopening initial training program at

no additional charge (this training is covered by the initial franchise fee, which includes a $10,000
initial training fee). We may charge an additional training fee of $700 per Person for: (a) any new

Managing Owner or Manager that attends eurmanagement-trainingprogram-Management Training

after opening; and (b) any Person who retakes eur—management—trainingprogramManagement
Training after failing a prior attempt. We will waive this fee for any Person attending a previously

scheduled initial training program conducted for another franchisee, but reserve the right to charge
for any costs we incur for training materials. We-alse\We may charge a training fee of up to $350 per
Person per day for any Person who attends remedial training or additional training you request. We
do not charge a training fee for system w1de refresher or engemg pplemental tra1n1ng pregr&ms—we
conduct at our headquarters or wirtaal-tra OFATAS- ~

pe#ee%%ee%f—w&agreﬁo—prowde ons1te tralnlng or assistance, you must also relmburse &s—for
all Travel Expenses we incur, 1nclud1ng as set forth in §6 3. ¥ea—ar&respensrb4%for—aﬂ—%epeﬁses—and
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expenses: All training fees and Travel Expense reimbursements are due 10 days after invoicing
except: (a) as otherwise provided in §6.3 with respect to certain pre-paid expenses; and (b) the

rmanagement—tratning—fee for Management Training, which is due prior to training. You are
responsible for all wages and Travel Expenses you and your personnel incur to attend training.

5.5. Conferences. We may hold periodic conferences to discuss business and operational matters
relevant to Centers. Attendance is mandatory unless: (a) we designate attendance as optional; or (b)
we waive your obligation to attend based on showing of good cause. We will not require attendance
at more than three (3) days of conferences in any calendar year. We may charge you a conference
registration fee of $350 per Person per conference. You are also responsible for wages and Travel
Expenses you and vour personnel incur to attend conferences.

6. OTHER FRANCHISOR ASSISTANCE.

| 6.1. Manual. We provide you with access to our Manual in electronic form during the Term. The Manual
will help you develop and operate your Center. The information in the Manual is confidential and
proprietary and may not be disclosed to third parties without our prior approval.

| Franchise Agreement Page 11



6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

days’—p&er—vwﬁ%en—ne&e%ef—%seeﬂﬁﬁuaﬂeﬂ—pa%eBCP LMS LBIS W111 lel’l'[ you a 11m1tcd

revocable, non-transferable license to utilize our proprietary BCP-LMS business management
platform during the Term solely in connection with the operation of your Center. BPC-LMS was
developed specifically for the management and operation of a Center. The BCP-LMS Monthly Fees
imposed pursuant to §14.3 _covers the licensing fee for BCP-LMS and all associated updates,
maintenance and support. At any time during the Term, LBIS reserves the right to: (a) require you to
sign a software or technology license agreement governing vour use of BCP-LMS: and/or (b) modify
or discontinue BPC-LMS. You must utilize BPC-LMS in accordance with the Manual.

Opening Assistance. Within 30 days after your Center opens, we will send a corporate trainer to
your Center for approximately two (2) days to provide onsite training and operational support. We
will not charge a fee for this assistance, but you must reimburse usfer-all Travel Expenses we incur.
We may require you to pay us $1,500 at least 30 days prior to onsite training as a pre-paid estimate
of the Travel Expenses for the trainer. If the actual Travel Expenses incurred differ from the $1,500
pre-paid estimate then: (a) you must pay us any Travel Expenses that exceed the $1,500 pre-paid
estimate within 10 days of invoicing; or (b) we will promptly refund to you any overpayment if the
Travel Expenses are less than the $1,500 pre-paid estimate. If you request that we send more than
one (1) corporate trainer to your Center to provide onsite training and operational support, you must
also pay an additional training fee of $350 per day (including each work day and travel day, for a
minimum of two (2) days) and reimburse us for the associated Travel Expenses for each additional
corporate trainer you request.

General Guidance. Based on periodic inspections of your Center or reports you submit to us, we
provide our guidance and recommendations on ways to improve the operation of your Center. We
will be available to render advice, discuss problems and offer general guidance to you during normal
business hours by telephone, e-mail or similar methods of communication.

Field Visits. We have the right, but not the obligation, to conduct periodic field visits for purposes of
providing onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the operation and management
of your Center. We may prepare and provide you with a report detailing any problems or concerns
observed during the field visit together with required or suggested changes or improvements to

address or resolve such—problems—or—eoneerns:them. You must implement all required corrective
measures in the time and manner we specify.

Marketing Assistance. As further described in §10.1 and §10.2, we may, but need not, administer
the brand and system development fund and provide other marketing assistance during the Term.

Website. We willcurrently maintain a corporate website for our brand. We will also develepcreate
and host a leeal-webpage for your Center that will: (a) be linked to our corporate website—Y-eour
webpage—willinelude—sueh; and (b) list information about your Center that-we designate—or
appreve-deem appropriate. We muast-apprevecontrol all content on your Center’s webpage; but we
will consider infermation—you—suggestyour suggestions in good faith. We will own the—website
tineluding-your Center’s webpage) and domain name-at-al-times.. We may medifi—and/change or
discontinue theour website fand/or your feealCenter’s webpage} at any time-in-eursele-diseretion.
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7.

6.9.6.8. Purchase Agreements. We may, but need not, negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to

obtain drscounted prrces for us—&ﬂd—eur—franchlsees We wﬂwl—&r:raﬁg%fer—yeu—te—b%ab}%te—pﬁehase

sappl—rer—pays—to—us}—Weor our afflllatc may also purchase eertam—rtemsgood from supphers in bulk
and resell them to you at our cost plus shipping fees and a reasenable-markup (not to exceed 5% of
our cost to purchase the itemsitem).

ESTABLISHING YOUR BUSINESS

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

Site Selection. You must leeateidentify and obtain our approval of the site for your Center within
120 days after the Effective Date. The premisessite must be located within the Site Selection Area
and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. You must send us a complete site report that
includes all demographie;—commereial-and-otherall documents, information, phetegraphsphotos and
wvideosvideo we require. We may accept or reject eachsitesites you propose in our commercially
reasonable judgment. We will—use—best—effortstry to issuenotify vou of our appreval—er
disapprevaldecision within 15 days after we receive all ef—the-requisite materials. Your site is
deemed disapproved if we faitodo not issue our written-approval within the 15-day period. If we
approve the site for your Center prierto-exeeution-ofbefore signing this Agreement, theawe will list
the address of theyour approved site wﬂl—b%hs{ed—m Part C of A—T—'B@GHMEN—T
"AATTACHMENT "A".

Agreemeﬂt—then—wrt-hm—lé—éaﬁ—aﬁerOtherwise, we apprexﬁ%yo&r—s&%wwﬂﬂl—send—yeu—a—%e
Approval—Neﬂe%that—réemrﬁes—éa)hst the address of your approved s1te—aﬂd—€b}—ﬂ%geograph+earea

sﬁ%éees—no{—eoﬁsﬁmféea site is not a representatron or Warranty of any klnd express or 1mp11ed of
the suitability of the site for a Center. It-indieates only thatmeans we believe the site meets our
minimum criteria.

Lease. If you lease the premises for your Center, you must use best efforts to ensure your landlord
signs the prescribed form of Lease Addendum attached to this Agreement as ATTACHMENT "C".
If your landlord refuses to sign—theLease-Addendum—in—substantially—the formattached to—this
Agreementdo so we may either: (a) waive the Lease Addendum requirement (or the provisions
disapproved by the landlord); or (b) require you to find a new site for your Center. You must
promptly send us a copy of your fully executed lease and Lease Addendum for our records. You
must hire a real estate professional to review and negotiate your letter of intent and lease. If you
choose to hire our recommended real estate professional to provide commercial lease review and
negotiation services, we agree to contribute $1,000 towards the fees charged for these services.

Center Design. The Manual includes our standards and specifications for the design, layout,
equipping and trade dress for a Center. After seeuringapproval-efwe approve your site, you must
send us complete and detailed dimensions and specifications of the leased space. After receipt of this
information, we will prepare and send you two (2) alternative Site Drawings for your consideration.
You select the Site Drawing you prefer. If you request additional Site Drawings (or revisions to any
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Site Drawing previously submitted to you);) we may charge you $300 for each additional or revised
Site Drawing we provide;—which—will-be-due10-days—afterinveieing. Our Site Drawings are not
intended to be used as construction plans and have not been prepared to ensure compliance with any
applicable Laws, lease restrictions or landlord requirements. You must hire a licensed and bonded
architect that you propose and we approve. To ensure uniformity and consistency of design, we may
require you to hire an architect we designate. Your approved architect must prepare the initial set of
design plans for your Center. We must approve your initial design plans to ensure they are consistent
with our system standards and the Site Drawing prepared by us and selected by you. After we
approve the preliminary design plans, your architect must prepare detailed construction plans that:
(a) are consistent with the approved preliminary design plans; (b) satisfy all required standards and
specifications in the Manual; and (c¢) comply with all Laws (including, without limitation, the
Americans with Disabilities Act), building codes, permits, lease restrictions and landlord
requirements applicable to the premises. You must submit the final construction plans to us for
approval. The limited purpose of our review is to verify the construction plans are consistent with
our system standards.

7.4. Construction. Felewingeurappreval-efthe-After we approve your construction plans—fer—eur

Center, you must, at your sole expense, construct and equip the premises according to the approved
construction plans and the specifications in the Manual. You must also purchase (or lease) and install
all Technology Systems, equipment, fixtures, signs and other items we require. At all times during
the construction process, you must maintain the minimum general liability and property damage
insurance required by the Manual. We must approve your general contractor and other suppliers you
use to construct your Center.

7.5. Opening. You must open your Center to the public within 180 days after the Effective Date. You
must send us a notice identifying your proposed opening date at least 15 days before opening. We
may conduct a preopening inspection of your Center. You must make all changes and modifications
we_require before you open. You may not open your Center prior to receipt of our written
authorization to open. We will not issue our authorization to open before:

(a)__ the Managing Owner and—yrourManager(orother-Owner)-successfully eempletecompletes

our initial training program;

¢@i(b) you purchase all required insurance policies and farnishprovide us with evidence of
coverage;

@ib(c) you ebtainsecure all required licenses, permits and ether-governmental-approvals:and- from
Governmental Authorities;

(d) we review and approve the construction, build-out and layout of your Center:; and

your othu nrwmnm; obllgdtlons undu this Amcmcnt and thc Mdnudl

If you are in the process of obtaining an E2 Visa and you are unable to open your Center by the
required opening deadline as a result of delays in obtaining your E2 Visa for reasons other than your
neglect, we will grant you a 90-day extension of your opening deadline in exchange for payment of a
non-refundable $2,500 extension fee, which is due at the time you request the extension. B¥

7.6. Relocation. You may relocate your Center with our prior written approval, which we will not
unreasonably withhold. If we allow you to relocate, you must: (a) locate your new Center within the
Site Selection Area (but outside any territory granted to us, our affiliate or any other franchisee); (b)
pay us a $1,000 relocation fee at the time you propose the new site for your Center and reimburse us
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for all Travel Expenses we incur to visit the site; (c) comply with §7.1 through §7.5 with respect to
your new Center (excluding the 180-day opening period); and (d) open your new Center and resume
operations within 30 days after closing your prior Center. You must pay us a separate $1,000
relocation fee for each new site you propose. If we disapprove a site, we will refund to you 75% of
the relocation fee you paid to us for the site we disapproved.

8. MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

Owner Participation. You must designate an Owner with primary responsibility for the

management and operation of your Center (the “Managmg Owner”) T—h%M&ﬁagmg—aner—mast—Qa)

(a) be approved by us after attending an in-person Discovery Day at our corporate headquarters;
(b) have binding decision-making authority on matters involving your Center;
(c) successfully complete all training programs we require;

(d) teach at least one (1) class at the Center on a regular basis during the initial 12 months after
opening;

(e) provide direct onsite management of your Center on a full-time basis until your Center has
satisfied the minimum performance requirements set forth in §12 for at least one (1) year; and

(f) _dedicate best efforts to the management of the Center after satisfying the criteria in §8.1(e)
above (we strongly recommend the Managing Owner continue to dedicate full-time efforts); and

(g) at all times own at least 20% of the Equity Interests in the Business or Franchisee Entity, unless
we waive this requirement.

Managers. You may hire a Person (a “Manager”) to assist the Managing Owner with the-onsite
management and-superviston-of the Center. Any Person you hire as a Manager must: (a) be approved
by us; (b) successfully complete all training programs we require (we may, but need not, allow your
Managing Owner to train new Managers you hire); (¢) meet all of our then-current minimum criteria
and qualifications for Managers (including those pertaining to background checks, education,

attitude and experience); and (d) sign a Confidentiality Agreement. At-altimes—duringnormal
business-hours;-eitherLither the Managing Owner or a trained Manager must be presentonsite at your

Center to-provide-onsite-management-and-superviston-during normal business hours. The Managing
Owner must meniter-and-supervise the aetivitiesofthe-Manager to ensure the Center is operated in

aeeordaneecompliance with this Agreement and the Manual.

Teachers. No Person may teach classes or provide tutoring at your Center other than: (a) the
Managing Owner; (b) a Manager; and (c) any other individual that you hire who satisfies any
minimum competency standards we require (a ‘“Teacher”). Your other Owners can serve as Teachers
if they satisfy all minimum competency standards we require. You must conduct a reasonable
background check on each Teacher. You may not hire any Person as a Teacher whose background
check reveals a criminal record or otherwise raises substantial doubt about the character or
qualifications of the Person. Each Teacher must sign a Confidentiality Agreement. We may impose
additional qualifications for Teachers from time to time. As part of our teacher certification program,
we may require that your Teachers complete periodic refresher training. We reserve the right to
charge a fee of up to $200 per Teacher for the initial certification program and up to $100 per
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Teacher for each recertification program. Any such fees would be due prior to attendance at the
program. We strongly recommend that you implement our recommended teacher compensation
model to improve your ability to attract and retain high quality Teachers.

8.4. Employees. You must determine appropriate staffing levels for the Center to ensure full compliance
with this Agreement and our system standards. You maywill hire, train and supervise employees to
assist you with the proper operation of the Center. You must pay all associated wages, commissions,
fringe-benefits, worker’s compensation premiums and payroll taxes (and other withholdings required
by Law)-due-for-youremployees:). These employees will be employees of yours and not of ours. We
do not control the day-to-day activities of your employees or the manner in which they perform their
assigned tasks. You must inform your employees that you exclusively supervise their activities and
dictate the manner in which they perform their assigned tasks. In this regard, you must use your legal
business Entity name (not our Marks or a fictitious name) on al-employee applications, paystubs,
pay checks, employment agreements;—time—eards; and similar #emsdocuments. We—alse do not
control the hiring or firing of your employees. You have sole authority and responsibility and
autherity-for all employment-related decisions, including employee-seleetion—andhiring, promotion,
hours worked, rates of pay-and-ether, benefits, work assignments, training and working conditions.
We willdo not provide any-adviee-or-guidance or advice on these matters. You must require-that-your

employeesreview—and-sigrensure each employee signs the acknowledgment form we prescribe that
explains the nature of the franchise relationship and notifies the employee that you are his or her sole

employer. You must also post a conspicuous notice for employees in the back-of-house area
explaining your franchise relationship with us and that you (and not we) are the employee’s sole
employer. We may prescribe the form and content of this notice.

8.5. Interim Manager. We have-therightmay, but need not-the-obligationste, designate anindividual-of
ear—eheesmga Person (an “Interim Manager”) to manage your Center if either: (a) ye&r—Maﬂagmg

death—drsabfhty—er—fer—any—ether—reaseiﬁ—aﬁd—you farl to appomt an approved replacement Managing
Owner, who has successfully completed al-training-werequireManagement Training, within 30 days

after your Managing Owner ceases to perform the responsibilities of a Managing Owner for any
reason; or (b) you are—infail to cure a material breach before the expiration of the cure period. The
Interim Manager will cease to manage your Center at such time that you appoint an approved
replacement Managing Owner who has completed training or you cure the material breach, as
applicable. If we appoint an Interim Manager, you agree to: (a) pay us a management fee equal to
$250 per day during the period of time that-the Interim Manager manages your Center—Y-eu—ntst
alse; and (b) reimburse us—for-all Travel Expenses and-ethereests-incurred by the Interim Manager.
The Interim Manager will-havehas no liability to you except for gross negligence or willful
misconduct. We have no liability to you for the-aetivitiesof-an Interim ManagerManager’s actions
unless we are grossly negligent in appointing the Interim Manager.

9. FRANCHISEE-AS ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a complete and
accurate list of your Owners. Upon eur—request, you must previdesend us—with a resolution of the
Franchisee Entity authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of the Franchisee Entity’s

organizational documents and a current Certificate of Good Standing—(erthefunetionalequivalent-thereet)-
AH-Owners. Each Owner of the Franchisee Entity-Cwhether-direet-orindireet). and theirspoeusesthe spouse

of each Owner who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement.

10. ADVERTISING & MARKETING.

10.1. Brand and - Svystem DevelopmentFund. We currently administer a brand and svstem develonment
fund to promote public awareness of our brand and i improve our System. =¥

Séﬁte-m=0n each royalty paymentfce due date you must eentrrbﬂt%te—thepay us a brand fund fcc in
the amount we specify from time to time;- (not to exceed the sum of (a) 3% of Gross Sales plus (b)
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1% of Special Program Sales-). As of the Effective Date, the required contribution is the sum of (a)
2% of Gross Sales (which may be increased to a maximum of 3% of Gross Sales upon 180 days’
prior notice) plus (b) 1% of Special Program Sales. We may use the fund to pay for any of the
following in our sole discretion:

H(a) developing, wmaintaining;,—administering;—direeting,—preparing; or reviewingdistributing
advertising and marketing materials;premetions and programs;

(b) conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways;

(¢) public and consumer relations and publicity;

(d) brand development;

(e) sponsorships_and charitable and non-profit donations and events;

(f) research and development of technology, products and services;

(g) website development and search engine optimization;

69(h)  development-and, maintenance and promotion of an ecommerce platform;

(i) development and implementation of quality control programs;—inelading—the—use—of mystery
sheppers-or and customer satisfaction surveys;

(1) conducting market research;

(k) changes and improvements to the System;

(1) reimbursing us for costs we incur to host franchisee conferences, including: (i) costs we incur to

engage speakers, including reimbursement of Travel Expenses and other costs they incur to
attend the conference; (ii) costs we incur to book the hotel or reserve the venue; (¢) costs we
incur to provide food and beverage to conference attendees; (d) any other out-of-pocket costs
we _incur to host the conference; and (e) the room and board costs incurred by conference
attendees (we do not use the brand fund for Travel Expenses or other costs directly incurred by
us or our staff to attend conferences);
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(m) fees and expenses charged by advertising agencies we engage to provide marketing services;

Eev(n) collecting and accounting for brand fund fees and preparing—and—distributing financial
accountings of the fund;

Eevib(0) any other programs or activities we deem appropriate to promote or improve the
System; and

Eevb(p) direct or indirect labor, administrative, overhead and other expenses incurred by us
and/or our affiliates in—relationrclating to any of these activities, including salary, benefits and
other compensation of any of our (and any of our affiliate’s) officers, direetors;—employees or
independent contractors based upenon time spent working on any brand fund matters described
above;and.

We have sole discretion in determining the content, concepts, materials, media, endorsements,
frequency, placement, location and all other matters pertaining to any-eftheferegoing-marketing or
advertising activities. Any surplus-efentes in the fund may be invested and we may lend money to
the fund if there is a deficit. The fund is not a trust and we have no fiduciary obligations to you with
respect to our administration of the fund. A-finaneial-aceeuntingWe will prepare, and make available
to you upon request, an annual statement of thefund operatlons—ef—th&fuﬂd 1nc1ud1ng deposns e
and disbursements-frem-thefur :

In terms of marketing act1V1tles pald for by the fund we do not ensure that—these ;} expendltures in
(or affecting—any) a given geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the brand fund
contributiensfees paid by franchisees eperating—in that geographic area; or that—anyfranchisee
benefits(b) franchisees benefit directly or in proportion to their fund-contributions—Onee-established;
we-reserve-theright-tebrand fund fees. We may suspend or discontinue the fund at any time #-eur
sele-diseretion-upon-atleast 30 days’ prior notice.

10.2. Marketing Assistance From Us. We will provide reasonable marketing consulting, guidance and
support throughout the Term on an as-needed basis. —We will assist you in developing and
implementing a grand opening marketing plan in accordance with §10.3(a) to promote the opening of
your Center. We may create and make-availabletoprovide you with access to local advertising ane
otherassets such as print marketing materials—fer—rour—purehase-, social media templates and stock
photography. We may: (a) use the brand and-system-development-fund to pay for the creation and
distribution of these materials, in which case there will be no additional charge—We-may-make-; (b)
provide online access to these materials-available-ever-theInternet, in which case you must arrange

Fompeiatee the materials smd—pee—allpebntine—eo S lomntioebe e maes e o
relationships—at your expense; and/or (c) contract with thlrd-party supphers whe—wﬂ-lto create

a@%&n&g—er—ma%ketmg% materlals

10.3. Your Marketing Activities.
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(a) _Grand Opening. Upon execution of this Agreement, you must pay us a nonrefundable
$10,000 grand opening marketing fee (including if you acquire your Center franchise another
franchisee via an approved Transfer). We spend these funds to implement vour approved
grand opening marketing plan over a six (6) month period ending no later than two (2) months

after your grand opening. We may require you to spend these funds directly with third-party
suppliers to implement vour grand opening marketing plan, in which case vou do not pay us
the $10,000 grand opening marketing fee. ¥YourMarketing-A-ectivities-

If you are a United States Veteran or Qualified Educator, we provide an additional $5,000 allowance
toward grand opening marketing activities to promote your Center, which will be utilized during
the six (6) month period described above. A “Qualified Educator” includes a: (i) credentialed
educator; (ii) state certified teacher (active or retired); (iii) licensed childcare professional; (iv)
college educator; or (v) educator employed through an accredited Kindergarten through 12%
orade institution. If you are both a United States Veteran and Qualified Educator, you only
receive a $5,000 allowance (not $10,000).

(b) Ongoing Advertising. You must participate at yvour own expense in all advertising, promotional

and marketing programs we require. You must also develop a strong network of relationships
within your community and with your local school districts.Generally—Commeneing30-days-atter

the-opening-of-your-Center Commencing 30 days after vour Center’s opening date, you must
spend, on a monthly basis, the minimum amount of money we designate (your “Local

Marketing Commitment”) on local advertising to promote your Center. The Local Marketing

Commitment is: (i) $1,500 per month for the second (2") through the 12" month after opening;
and (11) the greater of $1 000 per month or 4% of monthly Gross Sales for the remalnder of the

(c) Standards—fer-Advertising Standards. All —All-advertisements—and-prometions—you—ereate—or

wseyour advertising must be completely factual, conform to the highest standards of ethical
advertising and comply with all Laws. You must ensure your advertisements and promotional
materials do not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others. You must comply with
any minimum advertised pricing policy we establish-fremtime-to-time-.

(d) Extraterritorial Advertising. You may not engage in targeted marketing directed outside your
Center Territory. Marketing that is distributed, circulated or received both within yeurCenter
Ferritory-and outside your Center Territory is not deemed to be “targeted marketing” if: (i) you
use reasonable efforts to limit the circulation or distribution of the advertising to areas withinin
your Center Territory; and (ii) the-majerityefthemost recipients of the advertising are located
withinin your Center Territory and there is only incidental circulation or distribution outside
your Center Territory. The meaning of “targeted marketing” that is “directed outside your
Center Territory” may be further defined in the Manual, but examples include direct mail sent to
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addresses outside your Center Territory, digital advertising sent to devices with IP addresses
registered outside your Center Territory and setting up promotional events that take place
outside your Center Territory.

(e) ApprevalefAdvertising Approval. Prior to use, we must approve all advertising and marketing
programs and materials and-pregrams—you intend to use, including all materials we did not

prepare or previously approve—(and-ineludingmaterials, or that we prepare or approve and you
modify).. We must also approve the media you intend-te-use. You may not use any advertising

materials, programs or media that we have not approved @Gnelading—materials,—programs—or
mediaor that we previeushy-apprevedapprove and later disapprove).. We have 10 business days
to review and approve or disapprove advertising and marketing materials and programs you
submit-fer-apprevak. Our failure to issae—our-approvalapprove them within the 10-_business—
day period constitutes our disapproval._Any advertising you propose and we approve is an
“Improvement” for purposes of §18.5.

(f) Social Media. You may advertise-and-marketpromote your Center using social media; provided
that:

&——(1) you only utilize social media platforms we approve;

G (i) you strictly comply with our social media policy-(as—revised-from-time-to-time) and, upon

our request, sign an agreement acknowledging your acceptance of the terms of our social media
policy; (iii) you immediately remove any post we disapprove; (iv) you contract with any social
media company we designate upon request; and (v) we own all social media accounts relating to

your Center and retain full administrator rights.

(g) Internet and Websites. Without our prior approval, which—we—may—withheld—in—eur—sele
diseretion,—you may not: (i) develop, host, ereate-or otherwise maintain a website (or other

online-or-digital presence-in-connection-with—your-Center,—includingany—-website-bearing) that

references our Marks; (ii) conduct digital or online advertising or marketing, unless we
authorize vou to do so; or (iii) engage in ecommerce.

11. OPERATING STANDARDS.

11.1. Generally. You agree to operate your Center: (a) in a manner that will promote the goodwill of the
Marks; and (b) in full compliance with our standards, this Agreement and the Manual.

11.2. Brand Standards Manual. You agree to establish and operate your Center in accordance with the
Manual. The Manual may contain, among other things:

9(a)__ architectural plans and specifications for the design, dimensions, layout, equipping and trade
dress for a prototype Center;

(b) a list of (i) goods and services (or specifications for goods and services) you must purchase to
develop and operate your Center and (ii) designated and approved suppliers;

@H(c) a description of the autherized-goods and services you—mayseHthat we authorize for sale
from your Center, including class offerings and special programs;

@i(d) specifications, techniques, methods, operating procedures and quality standards; an
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(e) minimum qualifications and criteria for Teachers and Managers;
. ¥ . :
#—opolicies and procedures pertaining to-any-gift-card-program-we-establish;
(vi—policies—and procedures—pertaining—to: (i) reporting and data entry; (ii) accounting and

bookkeeping: (iii) insurance; (iv) marketing and advertising;

G () pelietes—and procedurespertainingto(v) gift card programs: (vi) use of BCP-LMS or other
Technology Systems: (vii) data ownership, use, transfer and protectionssharingand-useand-;
and (viii) any other matters we deem appropriate.

The Manual is designed to establish and protect our brand standards and the uniformity and quality
of the goods and services offered by eurfranchisees-Centers. We can modify the Manual at any time.
Fhe—meodifications—wil-beeome—Modifications are binding at the time we notify you of the
modifieation—{(change. subject to any “grace period” we provide to implement the change).. All
mandatory provisions eentained-in the Manual (whether they—are-included now or in the future) are
binding on you._The Manual may consist of written text as well as videos, tutorials, training
modules, recordings and/or other means of communication.

11.3. Authorized Goods and Services. You must offer all goods and services we require, including the
specific classes, programs and curriculum we specify. Centers are currently required to offer Math
and English classes, SAT and ACT preparation courses, and small group or “private” tutoring for
these subjects and a variety of other high school subjects. You have the option, but not the
obligation, to offer Special Programs, which must be administered in accordance with our policies,
procedures and other requirements. You may only offer Affiliate Programs we approve. We may
condition our approval on any requirements we deem appropriate. You may not offer, sell or
provide: (a) goods or services to anyone other than children between pre-school and 12" grade; (b)
educational classes or tutoring in any subject we have not approved; or (¢) any other goods or
services (including any classes or programs) we have not approved. Further, you may not: (a)
conduct off-site classes or tutoring; (b) sell any goods or services at wholesale; (c) market or sell
through Alternative Channels of Distribution; or (d) use your Center, or permit your Center to be
used, for any purpose other than offering the goods and services we authorize. We may add, modify
or delete authorized goods and services, and you must do the same upon notice from us. Our
addition, modification or deletion of authorized goods or services shall not constitute a termination
of this Agreement.

11.4. Pricing. We will provide you with our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our suggested
retail pricing in your discretion; provided, however, that: (a) we reserve the right to set maximum or
minimum prices on the goods and services you sell (to the extent permitted by applicable Law); and
(b) you must comply with any promotional pricing we require from time to time.

11.5. Customer Payments. You must, at your expense, lease or purchase the necessary equipment and/or
software and have arrangements in place with Visa, MasterCard, American Express and all other
credit card issuers we designate, in order for you to be able to accept such methods of payment from
customers. You must accept debit cards, credit cards, stored value cards, and other non-cash systems
(including, for example, APPEEPAY Apple Pay and/or GOOGEE-WALEETGoogle Wallet) that we
specify. You must acquire and install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with
these non-cash systems.
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11.6. Suppliers and Purchasing.

Generally. You must purchase—er, lease or license, as applicable, all

equipmentooods, services and other items speetfied-in-the Manual-from-time-to-time-tHrequired
by the Manual. You must only purchase goods and services that satisfy all standards and
specifications we designate. You must comply with all sourcing and supplier restrictions we
impose from time to time.

b) System Suppliers. In accordance with the Manual, you must purchase certain goods and

services - exclusively from suppliers we designate or approve—whieh. The Manual may
inelude,—or—betimited—exelustvely—te;designate us or our affiliate): as a designated or

approved supplier. We and our affiliates may generate a profit from these purchases. We are

currently an approved supplier for marketing materials and the exclusive supplier for your email
accounts. Our affiliate is currently the exclusive supplier for BCP-LMS and the educational
materials you acquire and obtain through BCP-LMS. Our right to specify the suppliers you may
use is necessary so we can control the uniformity and quality of goods and services used, sold or
distributed in connection with the development and engeing-operation of Centers, protect our
trade secrets, negotiate bulk purchase discounts; and protect the reputation and goodwill
associated with theour System and the-Marks. You must immediately discontinue purchasing
from any supplier we disapprove.

(c) Approval Process. If you wish to purchase alternative goods or services or you Wish to purchase

from an alternative supplier, you must send us a request for 2 roval that: identifies the
roposed supplier and the goods/services to be purchased; includes all 1nformat10n we

require about the goods/services and the supplier glncludmg the supplier’s qualifications,
reputation, financial strength and production capabilities); and (iii) includes product samples for
examination and testing purposes. We may condition our approval on the supplier’s agreement
to comply with our minimum insurance, indemnification and confidentiality requirements for
system suppliers. We will approve or disapprove your request within 30 days after we receive
all required information and samples. Your request is deemed disapproved if we fail to issue our
approval within the 30-day period. You must reimburse all costs we incur to review suppliers or
goods/services you propose. We need not consider substitute goods or alternative suppliers for
goods that are proprietary or branded with our Marks.

(d) Payment Disputes. You understand that: (i) your failure to timely pay a s¥stem supplier may
jeopardize the supplier’s relationship with us and other franchisees; and a_supplier’s
termination of its relationship with us or refusal to supply goods or services to our franchisees
may cause significant harm to us and our franchisees. Accordingly, you agree to promptly pay
all amounts owed to system suppliers except as otherwise permitted by this Section. If sweyou
have a bona-fide dispute with a supplier that you believe justifies non-payment or partial
payment, you must promptly notify the supplier of the particulars of your Claim and diligently
pursue resolution of the Claim or prosecution of appropriate legal action. Any trade debt that
remains unpaid more than 30 days after its due date constitutes a material breach of this
Agreement unless, before the end of the 30-day period: (i) vou and the supplier agree to

alternative payment terms; or (ii) you initiate appropriate legal action to contest the trade debt.

(e) Supplier Payments. We may receive rebates-of, benefits and other finanetal-consideration from
these-suppliers based on your purchases, weleases or licenses. We may retain these payments
as compensation and reimbursement for time and expenses we incur to negotiate and manage
supplier relationships. We have no obligation to pass them through to you or use them for any
particular purpose- (except as otherwise agreed to by us and a supplier).

Disclaimer of Liability. Provided that we designate or approve system suppliers in good faith

we have no liability to you for their acts, errors or omissions including, without limitation,

defective or tainted goods, delayed delivery or inability to meet demand. With respect to goods

purchased from us or our affiliate, you acknowledge that we or our affiliate purchase the goods
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from third-party manufacturers or suppliers and resell them to you as a convenience. If you

Claim relating to the purchase of goods or services from a system suDDher your sole recourse

shall be against the supplier. If we or our affiliate are the supplier, your sole recourse shall be
against the manufacturer or supplier from whom we or our affiliate acquired the goods unless

both: (i) the Claim arises from our (or our affiliate’s) failure to supply the goods in breach of
our obligations under this Agreement; and (ii) our (or our affiliate’s) failure to supply the goods
1s not caused by a Force Majeure event. We and our affiliates make no warranties or

representations and expressly disclaim all warranties and representations, including the
implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, with respect to

g0ods or services you purchase from system suppliers

11.7. Equipment Maintenance and Changes. You must maintain your equipment in good condition
and promptly reolace or repair deemed-to-haverejected-yourrequestHwefatlto-issue

i e Sair-any equlpment that is damaged WOrn-ou
may require that you change your equlpment—wh*eh—may—requ&e—yea—te—make—aéé&eﬁﬂ
investments.. Our right to require significant-equipmentthese changes is critical to our ability to

administer and change the System and you agree-temust comply with any-suchrequired-changethese
changes within the time period we reasonably specify.

11.8. Technology Systems.
(a) Generally. Fechnelosyv-Systems:

fey—Generalls=—You must acquire and utilize all Technology Systems we require from time to time-,

including BCP-LMS, Technology Systems may relate to matters such as—purchasing;:

distribution of educational materials; remote learning; student enrollment, tracking and
management; purchasing: pricings: accountings;: order entry;: inventory controls; security;

information; data storage, retrieval and transmission;—eustomer; client information;—eustomer;
client loyalty;; marketing;; communications;; copying, printing and scanning;: or any other
business purpose we deem appropriate. We may require that yous—at-yeurexpense; acquire new
or substitute Technology Systems and/or replace, upgrade or update existing Technology
Systems; at vour expense upon reasonable prior notice. You are solely responsible for: (i) the

acquisition, operation, maintenance, updating and upgrading of
i your Technology Systems—m—aeeerd—aﬂe%wﬁh—ﬂ}%M-aﬁ&ai—

é%%e&e%eé (11) the manner in wh1ch your Technologv Systems mtegrate and mterface w1th

our computer system and those of third parties; and (iii) any consequences resulting from

improper use or operation, or failure to properly maintain, update or upgrade, Technology
Systems.

(b) Use and Access. threugh—yeurYou must use Technology Systems_in accordance with the
Manual and comply with all associated data entry policies. You may not load or permit any
unauthorized programs or games on your Technology Systems. You must ensure your
employees are adequately trained in the use of the Technology Systems. You agree to take all
steps necessary to provide us with independent and unlimited access to data collected by or
through your Technology Svstems, including—yeur sales data for purposes of calculating fees
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owed. Upon request, including upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, you must
provide us with the-user IDs and passwords for your Technology Systems.

(c) Disruptions. You are solely responsible for protecting against computer viruses, bugs, power

disruptions, communication lme disruptions, internet access failures, 1nternet content failures,

and attacks by haekefs—aﬂd—ether—unauthorlzed
mtmdepsPersons Upon—e&r request you must obtain and maintain cyber insurance and business
interruption insurance for technology disruptions.

(d) Third-Party Technology. You understand and agree that we and our affiliates: (i) do not own
certain Technology Systems (or components thereof) you must use to operate your Center (i.e.,
Third-Party Technology); and (ii) have no liability to you for any losses, damages or expenses
you _incur_as result of Third-Party Technology not functioning properly. Accordingly, you
hereby: (1) waive any and all Claims against us or our affiliates relating to Third-Party
Technology; and (ii) acknowledge your sole recourse for any liabilities, losses, damages or

expenses you incur due to improperly functioning Third-Party Technology shall be against the
owner or licensor of such Third-Party Technology.

(¢) Email Accounts. At no additional charge, we will provide you with one (1) BEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER® email address for use with your Business. If you request additional
email addresses, we may charge you our then-current fee for each additional email address that
you request (this fee would be added to the technology fee described in §11.8(f)). You must
exclusively use the email address or addresses we provide for all communications with us,
parents, students, customers, suppliers and other Persons relating to your Business. You may

not use any email address we provide for any purpose unrelated to your Business. We will own
the email addresses and accounts but allow you to use them during the Term.

(d)(f) Fees and Costs. You are responsible for all fees, costs and expenses associated with
acquiring, licensing, utilizing, updating and upgrading the—Technology Systems. Certain
components—ef—the—Technology Systems must be purchased or licensed from third-party
suppliers. We and/or our affiliate may develop proprietary seftware;—technology—or—other
compeonents—ofthe-Technology Systems (or components thereof) that swi-become part of our
System. If this occurs, you agree to: (i) pay us (or our affiliate) commercially reasonable
licensing, support and maintenance fees; and (ii) upon request, enterinte-a-sign our prescribed

form of license agreement with-as{erouraffiliate)inaformwepreseribe-governing yeur-use
of the—proprictary seftware,—technology—or-other-component-of-the-Technology Systems: (or
components thereof). We may alse—enter into master agreements with third-party—suppliers
relatingto-any-compenents-licensors of theThird-Party Technology Systems-and charge you for
all-amounts we pay te—thesesupphiersthem based on your use of their seftware—technology;
equipment-or-services—Fhe—Third-Party Technology. We may charge you a technology fee>,

which includes all amounts you pay us and/er our affiliates relating to the-Technology Systems
including amounts paid for proprietary items and amounts we collect from you and remit to

third-party-suppliers based-on—youruse-of theirsystems,software;- Third-Party Technology. The
technology erservices—The-amount-of-the-technology-fee may change based on changes to the
Technology Systems or prices charged by third-party-suppliers parties with whom we enter into
master agreements. The technology fee may include a reasonable administrative fee for the

time, money and resources we invest to administer the technology platform and associated
components, negotiate and manage contracts with third-party licensors, and collect and remit

technology fees owed to third-party licensors on behalf of franchisees under master license
arrangements. The technology fee does not include ary-amounts you pay directly to third-party
suppliers—fer-any-ecomponents—of the TechnologySystems:. The technology fee is due 10 days
after invoicing or as we otherwise specify. We—will list the current technology fee in the
Manual.
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11.9. Remodeling and Maintenance. ¥eu—must—\We may periodically require you to remodel; and
renovate and—make—allimprovements—to—your Center that—we reasonablyrequirefrom—time—to
timeconform to-refleet our then-current standards and specifications. There is no limitation on the
cost of these-remedeling obligations, but we will not require you to significantly remodel or renovate
your Center more than once during any five (5) year period. You may not remodel or signifieanthy
alterrenovate your premisesCenter without our prior written-approval. We needwill not approve any
prepesed-remodeling or alteratienrenovations that dees-noet-ecenformtoconflict with our then-current
standards and specifications. You must maintain your Center in good order and condition, reasonable
wear and tear excepted, and make all necessary repairs, including replacements, renewals and
alterations, at your sole expense, to comply with our standards and specifications. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, you agree to take the following actions at your sole expense: (a)
thorough cleaning, repainting, redecorating of the interior and exterior of the Center’s premises at the
intervals we prescribe (or at such earlier times that such actions are required or advisable); and (b)
interior and exterior repair of the Center’s premises as needed. You must comply with any
maintenance, cleaning or facility upkeep schedule we prescribe.

11.10. Gift Card Program. You must fully participate in any gift card program we establish. In order to
participate, you must: (a) comply with all policies and procedures we establish for participation in
the program; (b) purchase (or license) and utilize all equipment, software, mobile applications
(Apps), technology and others items we designate as being necessary for participation in the
program, and pay all associated fees and costs; and (c) pay us, our affiliate, or a third party
designated by us, all program fees and other amounts we designate as being necessary for
participation in the program (collectively, “Gift Card Program Participation Rules”). The Gift Card
Program Participation Rules may be set forth in the Manual. We may amend the Gift Card Program
Participation Rules at any time and you must immediately comply with all such amendments. We
may determine how gift card proceeds are divided or otherwise accounted for and we may retain
proceeds from unredeemed gift cards. We may also terminate a gift card program and/or require you
to participate in a new, additional or successor gift card program.

11.11. Hours of Operation. Your Center must be open for business after school hours and on Saturdays or
Sundays. Currently, we require that-all Centers be open for business at least two (2) days per week
(we highly recommend one weekday ¢- late afternoon through evening) - and either Saturday or
Sunday). You must comply with these requirements once your Center has been open for at least six
(6) months. You must establish specific days and hours of operation and submit them to us for
approval.

11.12.Customer Satisfaction and Complaints. We may require you to participate in a customer
satisfaction program, in which case we may require that you pay us a program fee (not to exceed
$500 per year) to cover our costs in implementing and administering the program. The program
would involve collecting and evaluating customer data and feedback to determine satisfaction with
your Center and identify potential System modifications to improve customer satisfaction. If you
receive a complaint from a student or parent, you must follow the complaint resolution process that
we specify to protect the goodwill associated with the Marks.

11.13. Quality Assurance Programs. For quality control purposes; we may:—a) periodically: (a) inspect
your Center in accordance with §6-56.5 and §17.1; and/or (b) engage-the-serviees-ofa—hire mystery
shepper=shoppers or quality assurance firmfirms to inspect your Center. Inspections may address a
variety of issues, including customer service, sanitation, Teacher/student interaction, etc. You must
fully cooperate with all inspections. H-we-engage-a-mysteryshopperorquality-assurance-firm;weWe
may require that you directly pay theany mystery shopper or firm_we hire for the cost of the
inspection. Alternatively, we may pay for the cost of the inspection eests—and require you to
reimburse us—w&hm—k@—d-ays—aﬁer—fmﬁem—mg We may implement a scoring system pursuant to which
each Center receives a “grade” or “score” based on the results of the inspection. Your failure to
achieve a passing grade or score constitutes a default under this Agreement. You must take all
actions we specify within the period of time we prescribe in order to rectify any non-compliance
issues revealed during an inspection.
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12.

13.

11.14. Failure to Comply with Standards. You acknowledge the importance of every one of our standards
and operating procedures to the reputation and integrity of the System and the-goodwill associated
with the Marks. If we notify you of a fatlareto—comply—withbreach of our standards or operating
procedures (including;—witheuttHmitatien; failure to previdesubmit required reports in a timely
manner) and you fail to eerreet-the-nen-cemplianee-curc within the time period ef+time-we prescribe,
then,-we may (in addition to anyour other remedies available-te—us-under this Agreement;—we-may)
impose a firenoncompliance fee of up—+e-$500 per occurrence. We may impose an—additionala

separate $100 fine—forfec every 48 hours the same nen-compliancenoncompliance issue remains
uncured foHewing-ourtmpeosition-efafter we impose the initial finefee. Any finesnoncompliance fees
we collect wil-be—deposited—into—the—brandfundare paid in consideration of us refraining from
exercising our contractual right to terminate this Agreement. If you fail to cure a breach before the
expiration of the cure period (if the-brandfund-is—administered-at-the-time-we-impose-thefine)1f

any) and we takestake steps to cure any—default-committedby—you(aftertheexpiration—ofany
&ppheab}%e&r%peﬂed)—me}udmg—w&hem—hm&&&eﬂthe breach (for example, obtaining required
insurance coverage on your behalf or paying amounts you owe to appreved-or—designatedsvstem
suppliers;). then-within10-days-efinveicing you must reimburse us—for-all direet-and-indireet-costs

and expenses we directly or indirectly incur @neladingTFravelExpenses;—if—applieable)—4n—in

connection with our efforts to cure yewrthe default. Your payment of noncompliance fees and

default—@ar—aeeep&ane%ef—thes&ame&n%s—shall expense Ilebul‘SLantS does not b&eens%med—as—a

%e—tem&mafé%thks—Agreemeﬂ{preclude us from termmatmg this Agreement in accordance w1th

§2+.21.2 if the default continues after we collect these amounts.

MINIMUM PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS. You must use best efforts to achieve the following
minimum average monthly Total Sales:

(commelrl[:ia:lsgll:;i l;::l:::lg date) Minimum Average Monthly Total Sales*
Months 1 through 12 $6,000 per month
Months 13 through 24 $9,000 per month
Months 25 through 36 $12,000 per month
Months 37 through 48 $13,500 per month
Months 49 through end of initial term $15,000 per month

We review your compliance with the monthly minimum performance requirements on a quarterly basis,
meaning your failure to achieve the minimum monthly Total Sales for a given month will not be a default
as long as your average monthly Total Sales over the three (3) month review period equals or exceeds the
minimum required average monthly Total Sales amount. We may change our review period at any time. If
you fail to achieve the minimum performance requirement and you are not dedicating full-time efforts to
your Center (i.e., you are not physically present at your Center during substantially all hours of operation),
then we may, but need not: (a) terminate this Agreement; or (b) modify or eliminate your territorial
protections. We will not terminate this Agreement solely on the basis of your failure to achieve the
minimum performance requirement if you are dedicating full-time efforts to your Center (i.e., you are
physically present at your Center during substantially all hours of operation). When you renew, you will be
subject to any minimum performance requirement in effect at the time of renewal.

FRANCHISE ADVISORY COUNCIL. We may, but need not, create a franchise advisory council (FAC)
to provide us with suggestions to improve the System, including matters such as marketing, operations and
new product or service suggestions. We consider all suggestions in good faith but are not bound by them.
The eeuneitFAC would be established and operated according to rules and regulations we periodically
prescribe or approve, including procedures governing the selection of eeunedFAC representatives to
communicate with us on matters raised by the eeuneHFAC. You weuld-have-therightare eligible to be
aappointed as an FAC member of-the—eouneil-as long as you are—netin-defanltundercomply with this

Agreement and yex-do not act in a disruptive; or abusive er-ceunter-produetive-manners;-as-determined-by
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us-in-eur-diseretion-. As a member, you would be entitled to all voting rights and privileges granted to other
FAC members—ef-the—eeuneil. Each member would be—grantedhave one vote on all matters on which
members are authorized to vote.

14. FEES

| 14.1. Initial Franchise Fee. You agree to pay us the initial franchise fee set forth in Part F of
ATTACHMENT "A" in one lump sum at the time you sign this Agreement. The initial franchise fee
is fully earned by us and nonrefundable upon execution of this Agreement.

14.2. Royalty Fee. On the seventh (7™) day of each month; (the “royalty fee due date™), you agree to pay
us a monthly royalty fee equal to the greater of (a) $250 or (b) the sum of (a)}-12% of Gross Sales

generated-during-the-prier-menth-plus (b)-12% of Affiliate Program Sales generated-during-theprior
menth-plas{e)plus 6% of Special Program Sales generated during the prior month.

14.3. BCP-LMS Fees.

(a) Systems Implementation Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, you must pay LBIS a $2.000
fee for the initial setup and configuration of BCP-LMS at your Center.

(b) BCP-LMS Monthly Fee. On each royalty fee due date, you agree to pay LBIS (or us, if we so
instruct) a BCP-LMS Monthly Fee, which is calculated as the sum of: (i) 2% of the Gross Sales
minus Enrichment Sales; (i1) 1% of Special Program Sales; and (iii) Monthly Student User Fees
(calculated in accordance with §14.3(c) below).

(c) Monthly Student User Fees. “Monthly Student User Fees” are calculated by multiplying a “base
fee” (as set forth in the Manual) by the total number of subjects taken by students enrolled at
your Center as of the last day of the immediately preceding month. The base fee is currently $8
per student per subject per month (Mathematics, English and STEM are each considered a
separate “‘subject”); provided, however, that. (i) we may increase the base fee, not more than
once per calendar year, upon at least 90 days’ prior notice; (ii) the maximum annual increase to
the base fee is $2 per student per subject per month; (iii) the maximum base fee that we may
charge at any point during the Term is $15 per student per subject per month; and (iv) if you are
a renewing franchisee who operates a Legacy Center (as defined below), your initial base fee
will be $4 per student per subject per month but will increase by $1 each January 31 until it
equals the standard base fee charged to new franchisees. Monthly Student User Fees applicable
during the first and/or last month of the Term may be prorated if the first and/or last month of
the Term are less than a full calendar month. If the number of subjects taken by a student
changes during the course of a month, then you must pay the Monthly Student User Fee based
on the total number of subjects taken by the student during the month, regardless of how many
subjects are taken by the student at any given point in time during the month. For purposes of
this section, a “Legacy Center” refers to a Center owned by a renewing franchisee who: (i)
purchased the Center from our predecessor, Best In Class Education Center, LLC; (ii) did not
sign a Remote [earning Participation Addendum with Best In Class E-Academy, LLC; and (¢)
elects to continue to acquire and obtain educational materials from LBIS through the BC Portal
without utilization of LMS.

14.3.14.4. Other Fees and Payments. You agree to pay all other fees, expense reimbursements and
other amounts specified in this Agreement in a timely manner as if fully set forth in this §14. You
also agree to promptly pay us an amount equal to all taxes levied or assessed against us based on
goods or services you sell or goods or services we furnish to you (other than income taxes we pay
based on amounts you pay us under this Agreement).

14.4.14.5. Due Date & Late Fee:. Payments are due 10 days after invoicing unless otherwise specified.
If any sum due under this Agreement hasis not been—received by us when due (or there are
insufficient funds in your Account to cover the sum when due);, then in addition to this sum you
must pay us a-$100-ate-fee plus default interest on the amount past due at a rate equal to the lesser of
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15% per annum (pro-rated on a daily basis) or the highest rate permitted by applicable Law. H-ne
due-date-is-speeified-interestbegins-to-run10-daysafter-we-billyou—We will not impose a late fee

for any amount paid pursuant to §44-514.6 if, but only to the extent that, sufficient funds were
available in your Account to be applied towards the payment when due-—Hewever—we-may-impesea
latefeeforany-ameunt-. provided. however, that if we are unable to reasenably—determine due—te
sl o Dl el el peciee U e S e T bilble (he sooieedpesied o D o

amount due because vou fail to record sales or submit Gross Sales reports in a timely manner, i
which-ease-we may assess a late fee on the entire amount that was due. This §44-414.5 shall not
constitute our agreement to accept late payments or extend credit to you. All fees and payments are
nonrefundable unless otherwise noted.

14.5.14.6. Method of Payment. No later than 15 days after the Effective Date, you must send us a

completed and fully executed ACH Agreement authorizing us to electronically debit your designated
Account for all amounts owed to us and our affiliates on the applicable due date (other than fees due
within 15 days after the Effective Date). You must sign all other documents required by us or your
bank to enable us to debit your Account for amounts owed. You must deposit all revenues you
generate into the Account and ensure sufficient funds are available for withdrawal before each
payment due date. If there are insufficient funds in your Account, any excess amounts you owe will
be payable upon demand, together with any late charge imposed pursuant to §14.5. We may also
impose a $50 NSF fee for each instance where either: (a) there are insufficient funds in your Account
to cover amounts owed when due; or (b) a check you issue to us is returned due to insufficient funds.

15. BRAND PROTECTION COVENANTS.

(53]

15.1.

15.2.

Reason for Covenants. The Intellectual Property, training and assistance we provide would not be
acquired except through implementation of this Agreement. You agree that competition by you, the
Owners or Persons associated with you or the Owners (including family members) could seriously
jeopardize the-entireour franchise system because you and the Owners reeeivedreceive an advantage
through knowledge of our day-to-day operations and Know-how-related-to-the-System-—-Aecordinghy
yor. You and the Owners agree to comply with the covenants deseribed—in—this—Seetionin §15 to
protect the Intellectual Property and our franchise system.

Knew-how-andlntellectual Property & Confidential Information. You and the Owners agree to:

H——(a) refrain from using the-knew-hew-any Intellectual Property or Confidential Information
in any business or eapaeityfor any purpose other than the operation of your Center pursuant
to this Agreement;

GH——(b) maintain the confidentiality of Knew-hew-and-etherour Confidential Information at all
times;

—(c) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing anykKnew-hew—er
other-Confidential Information; and

(d) take all steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential

15.3.

Information; and (e) stop using the Knew-hewlIntellectual Property and Confidential Information
immediately upon the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Agreement (and-any Owner who
ceases to be an Owner before the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Agreement must stop
using the Knew-howlntellectual Property and Confidential Information immediately at the time he or
she ceases to be an Owner).

Unfair Competition. You and the Owners may not engage in any Prohibited Activities during the
Term or Post-Term Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you and the Owners may have
an interest in a CempetitiveCompeting Business during the Post-Term Restricted Period as long as

the CempetitiveCompeting Business is not located within,—(and does not previde—competitive
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edueational services—to-students—wheo-restde-withinsoperate) within the Restricted Territory. If you or
an Owner engagesengage in a Prohibited Activity during the Post-Term Restricted Period (other than
having an interest in a CempetitiveCompeting Business permitted by this Section), then the Post-
Term Restricted Period applicable to you or the non-compliant Owner, as applicable, shall be
extended by the period of time during which you or the non-compliant Owner, as applicable,
engaged in the Prohibited Activity. For purposes of clarity, you and the Owners remain bound by
any non-competition covenants in other Definitive Agreements that remain in effect for a period of
time that extends beyond the expiration of the Post-Term Restricted Period under this Agreement,
and the expiration of the Post-Term Restricted Period under this Agreement does not in any way
diminish your or the Owners’ obligation to comply with such covenants.

15.4. Family Members. Because (2) an Owner could circumvent the intent of §4515 by disclosing Knew-
hewConfidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, parent, sibling, child; or
grandchild) and (b) it would be difficult for us to prove anysueh-breachwhether the Owner disclosed
Confidential Information to the family member, each Owner agrees that he/ or she will be presumed
to have violated the terms of §4515 if aany member of his/ or her immediate family engages in any
Prohibited AetivitiesActivity during the Term or Post-Term Restricted Period or uses or discloses
Knew-how-Confidential Information. However, the Owner may rebut this presumption with
evidence conclusively showing he or she did not disclose knew-hewConfidential Information to the
family member.

15.5. Employees. You—must—ensure—al—ofyeurAll employees, officers, directors, partners;—members;
independent contractors and other Persons associated with you or your Center whe-may-have-aceess

to—our—Knew-hewmust sign and send us a Confidentiality Agreement before having—aeceess
teaccessing our Knew-hewConfidential Information. You must: (a) use best efforts to ensure these
individuals comply with the Confidentiality Agreements;-as-applieable; (b) immediately notify us of
any breach that comes to your attention; and (c) reimburse-us—for all expenses we incur to enforce a
Confidentiality Agreement, including attorneys’ fees and court costs.

15.6. Covenants Reasonable. You and the Owners agree that: (a) the terms-efthis-covenants in §4515 are
reasonable both in timeduration and #-seepe-ef-geographic areascope; (b) our use and enforcement
of eevenants-similar to-these-deseribed-abevecovenants with respeette-other franchisees benefits you

and the Owners in—thatit-prevents—othersby preventing them from unfairly competing with your

Center; and (c) you and the Owners have sufficient resources, business experience and opportunities

to earn an adequate 11V1ng whlle complymg with the teFms—ef—thﬁ—é%AleU—AN-B—PH-E—OWN-ERS

OTHERWISE-BNENFORCEEABEE-C ovenants in §15

15.7. Breach of Covenants. You and the Owners agree that: (a) any failure—to—eomply—withbreach of
§4515 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable damage to us and/or other franchisees for which
there is no adequate remedy at Law; and (b) we are entitled to injunctive relief if you or an Owner
breaches—§1+Sbreach §15, together with any other relief available at equity or Law. We will notify
you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a court requires that-weus
to post a bond despite our mutaal-agreement to the contrary, the regquiredbond amount ef-the-bend

may not c¢xceed $1,000. H-an—injunction—is—wrongfully—issued.—you—may-scck—dissolution—of the
njunction—as—your—sole  remedy-—You-hereby—waive—all-Claims—for-damages—resultingfrom-—a
wrongfully—issuedinjunetion—None—of the remedies available to us under this Agreement areis

exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at Law or in
equlty, including m]unctlve rehef spemfic performance and recovery of monetary damages No

16. YOUR OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES
16.1. Insurance. For your protection and ours, you agree to maintain the following insurance policies:

(a)  “all risk” property insurance—eeverage—en. including coverage for fire, vandalism and
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malicious mischief, with minimum coverage for full replacement cost, covering all assets used

m—th%epemﬂea—ef—yea-r—@emer—(mcludmg mventory, furniture, ﬁxtures equlpment and

eevefag%hm&s—etlaﬂeas{—ﬁaﬂ—rep}aeeme&t—eestothel propelty used to opelate the Center

¢9(b) comprehensive general liability insurance against claims for bodily and personal injury,
death and property damage caused by or occurring in conjunction with the operation of your
Center, containing minimum liability protection of $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate;

@ib(c) business interruption insurance providing coverage for 100% of all financial obligations for
a minimum period of six (6) months (including fees owed to us, which are deemed to include
average monthly royalty fees and brand fund contributions imposed during the 12-month period
preceding the event triggering coverage under the insurance policy);

w(d) sexual assault and molestation of minors insurance with minimum liability protection of (ai)
$100,000 combined single limit per occurrence and $300,000 in the aggregate (for the initial
three (3) years of operation) and (bii) $500,000 combined single limit per occurrence and
$500,000 in the aggregate (for remainder of Term);

&9(e)  worker’s compensation and employer’s liability insurance as required by Law;
&#)(f) any insurance required under your lease or by Law; and
Gr(g) any other insurance we specify in the Manual from time to time.

These policies reflect our minimum requirements and may not be adequate to fully protect your
interests. You may wish to procure additional coverage. You must provide us with proof of
coverage: (a) prior to openings; (b) within 10 days after anya policy renewal; and at(c) any other time
on demand. You agree—temust obtain these policies from licensed insurance carriers with—anrated

A-M-—Best-ratingof <A or better by AM Best. Each policy must satisfy all requirements in the
Manual and be endorsed to: (a) name us fand our membersowners, officers; and directors;—and

employees) as additional insureds; (b) eem&m—a—wawer—by—thH&sufaﬂe%eamer—efwmve all
subrogation rights against us; and (c) provide that-we-reeeiveus with at least 10 days’ prior written
notice of the termination, expiration, cancellation or modification of the policy. H—We may
disapprove any policy that fails to meet these criteria, we-may—disapprove-the-peliey-and you must
immediately secure a new policy meeting our criteria. Upon 10 days’ notice, we may increase the
minimum liability coverage amount of any policy and/or require different or additional types of
insurance, including excess liability (umbrella) insurance, due to inflation, identifieation—of-special
risks, changes in Law or standards of liability, higher damage awards or other relevant changes in
circumstances. If you fail to maintain a required policy; we may, at our option, obtain the policy on
your behalf. If we do so, you must promptly sign any application or other form required to obtain the
policy and reimburse usfer-all premiums and other costs we incur.

16.2. Books and Records. You must prepare complete and accurate books, records, accounts and tax
returns pertaining to your Business and keep copies for at least five (5) years after their preparation.
We may require you to prepare your books and records in compliance with our bookkeeping and
accounting standards and policies in the Manual. You must maintain, and upon our request furnish to
us by email or mail a written list of all of your students together with the names and contact
information of the students’ parents. You must send us copies of your books and records within
seven (7) days of our request. You must provide us with independent access to your QuickBooks
Online account (or any other online accounting program you use) with permission to read all reports.

16.3. Reports.

(a) _Generally. You must prepare all reports reports we require including, without limitation, the
reports described below. Reports must be prepared in the form and manner we specify. You
must send us a copy of any required report upon request. We may independently access your
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16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

Technology Systems to retrieve and compile Business Data and generate any reports we deem
appropriate, including sales reports. You must provide copies of monthly bank statements.

(b) Report of Initial Investment Costs. To assist us in updating our Franchise Disclosure Document

you must complete and send us a report, in the form we designate, listing all expenses you incur
in _connection with the development and opening of your Center. You must send us the
completed report within 60 days after the opening date of your Center.

(c) Sales Reports. No later than the-seventh(7")-day—ef each menthroyalty fee due date, you must
prepare and send us a monthly statement of your:—a) Total Sales for the prior month (broken
down between Gross Sales Spe01al Program Sales and Afﬁlrate Program Sales)—and—éb}

m1scalculate Total Sales (or any component thereof) you must not1fy us of the error no later
than the end of the next menthbyreporting period. Otherwise, you will not be entitled to anya
refund or credit of any—fees pa1d to us based on preV1ously reported Total Sales (or any

component thereof)

(d) Advertising Expenditure Reports. No later than the 10" day of each month, you must prepare
and send us a monthly report detailing your expenditures incurred during the prior month on
local advertising required by §10.3(b). All advertising expenditure reports must include copies
of receipts for the reported expenditures.

Financial Statements. No later than the 15" day of each month, you must prepare and send us a
monthly balance sheet and profit and loss statement for your Business in the format we prescribe.
Within 90 days after the end of each calendar year, you must prepare and send us a balance sheet (as
of the end of the calendar year) and profit and loss statement for the prior calendar year. Financial
statements must be: (a) verified and signed by you certifying to us that the information is true,
complete, and accurate; (b) prepared on an accrual basis in compliance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles; and (c) submitted in any format we reasonably require. We may require that
your financial statements be reviewed or audited by a certified public accountant if you submit
materially inaccurate financial statements on a prior occasion. You must send us a copy of any
financial statement required by this Section upon request. You_hereby authorize us to disclose
Operational Data to prospective franchisees, Governmental Authorities and ethersother Persons for
any reasonable business purpose, provided the disclosure is not prohibited by applicable Law.

Legal Compliance. You must secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and

regulatory approvals and operate your Center in complrance Wrth all appllcable Laws ¥eu—must

Reportable Events. You must notify us within two (2) business days after you become aware of any

of the following (each, a “Reportable Event™):

(a) the occurrence of an incident at your Center involving significant personal injury;

(b) the issuance of a citation or notice of violation by a Governmental Authority (or the
commencement of an inquiry you believe is reasonably likely to lead to a citation or notice of
violation) relating to a health or safety matter involving your Center;

(¢) the commencement (or written threat) of an action, suit or proceeding against you, your Owners
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and/or your Center that is reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect you, your Center
or the goodwill associated with the Marks; or

(d) the conviction or indictment of any Owner, Manager or Teacher for a felony or other crime
reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect you, your Center or the goodwill associated
with the Marks.

16.6.16.7. Data Ownership and& Protection-efData. We are the exclusive owner of all Business
Data, regardless-ef-whether suech-Business Data-is-collected by you, us or anetherany other Person.
We hereby grant you a license to utilizeuse the Business Data solely for purposes of operating your
Center in compliance with this Agreement. You must protect all Customer Data-and-etherpersenal
data with a level of control proportionate to the sensitivity of data. You must adhere to applicable
privacy Laws with respect to data which, if compromised, could have a negative impact on our
image or consumer confidence. You agree-to—(a)ymust comply with all applicable data protection
Laws and anmyour data processing erand data privacy policies in the Manual:and-b) (if any). Upon
request, vou must sign any data processing and/or data privacy agreement required by us or by
Law. You further agree to:

H9——(a) obtain, maintain and adhere to all applicable compliance standards established by PCI-
DSS;

GH——(b) establish appropriate administrative, technical and physical controls consistent with Law
and PCI-DSS to preserve the security and confidentiality of any-credit card informations- (in
any form-whatseever;) that you store, process, transmit or come in contact with;

Gi—(c) promptly notify us if you suspect, or there is;-e+-has been, a security breach or potential
compromise of any-sueh-credit card information;

v—(d) provide us with updates regarding the status of PCI-DSS;—which-update-may-be-through-a
via completed PCI AOC (Attestation of Compliance), PCI-DSS SAQ (Self-Assessment

Questionnaire) or other methed-mutually--agreed method; and
&4 (e) promptly notify us of any PCI-DSS noncompliance—PEHDSS—requirements to discuss your

remediation efforts and timeline.
17. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

17.1. Inspections. For quality control purposes and to ensure compliance with this Agreement, we (or our
representative) may enter your Center, evaluate your operations and inspect your books, records,
accounts and tax returns. We will determine the scope of the inspection, which may include, among
other things:

(a) examining and copying your books, records, accounts and tax returns;

é9(b) inspecting and testing your equipment;

¢i(c) monitoring classes and Teacher/student interactions at your Center;

w(d) evaluating the condition of your Center for cleanliness, sanitation and state of repair;
&9(e)  monitoring and speaking with your staff; and

&#9(f) contacting and speaking with your landlord, students and parents of students.

We may conduct the—inspeetioninspections at any time and—without prior notice. Puring—the
inspeetion;—weWe (or our representative) will use reasonable efforts to minimize any interference

with the operation of your Center. You and your employees must cooperate and not interfere with the
inspection. You consent to us accessing your Technology Systems and-retrieving—anyto retrieve

Business Data—we-deem—appropriate—in—connection—with—the—inspeetion._ You must install security

cameras in your classrooms to enable us to monitor your classes remotely and provide feedback.
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17.2. Audit. We may audit your books and records at any time. You must fully cooperate with us and any
third-partyPerson we hire to conduct the audit. If an audit reveals an understatement of Gross Sales,
Special Program Sales or Affiliate Program Sales, you must immediately pay us all additional fees
you owe together with any late fee imposed pursuant to §14-4—Each-audit-will-be-performed-at-our
eostunless—theaudit14.5. You must reimburse us for the cost of any audit (including reasonable
accounting and attorneys’ fees and Travel Expenses incurred by us or the auditor) that: (a) is

required due to your failure to provide information we request, preserve records or file reports as
required by this Agreement; or (b) reveals an understatement of Gross Sales, Special Program Sales

or Afﬁhate Program Sales by at least 3%—m—wh+eh—eas&yewm&swenﬁb&m%us—fer—ﬂ&%ees{—ef—the

audit-costs:"0. WL b(,dl thc Lost of all other audits. Y()Lu 1L1mbu1samgnt of our dudlt costs does not
preclude us from terminating this Agreement

18. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

18.1. Ownership and Use. You acknowledge that: (a) we are (or our affiliate is) the exclusive owner of
the Intellectual Property and the associated goodwill; and (b) your right to use the Intellectual
Property is derived solely from this Agreement;—and—(e)-yourright-to-usetheInteHectual Property
and is limited to a license to operate your Center during the Term pursuant to, and only in
compliance with, this Agreement and the Manual. You may not use the Intellectual Property in
connection with the sale of any unauthorized product or service or in any other manner not expressly
authorized by us. Any unauthorized use of the Intellectual Property constitutes an infringement of
our rights. You must comply with all provisions in the Manual governing use of the Intellectual
Property. You will not acquire any goodwill, title or interest in or to the Intellectual Property.

18.2. Changes te-Intellectual Property Changes. We may change the Intellectual Property at any time in
our sole discretion, including by—ehanging-the Copyrighted Materials, Know-how, Marks and/or
System or discontinuing the licensing of LMS and/or the BC Portal to Centers. You must implement
all Intellectual Property changes we require in accordance with our instructions. If we require you to
discontinue use of any-ef-our primary Masks;Mark, BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER", we
will reimburse you for your reasonable documented expenses of compliance;—inelading- (changing
signage, brochures, stationary, etc—Exeeptfer.). Other than the foregoing reimbursement obligation
setforth-in-the precedingsentenee, we have no liability to you for any expenses, losses or damages
you incur (including loss of goodwill associated with a Mark) resultingfremanydue to a change to
the Intellectual Property.

18.3. Use of Marks. You agree to: (a) use the Marks as the sole identification of your Center; provided,
however, that you must identify yourself as the independent owner of your Center in the manner we
prescribe—Yeu-agree-to:(a: (b) prominently display the Marks in the manner we prescribe on or in
connection with any advertising, promotional materials, displays, receipts, stationery and forms we
designate to give notice of tradetrademark and service mark registrations and copyrights; and (bc)
obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations required by applicable Law. You may not: (a) use
the Marks in any modified form or as part of a corporate or trade name or with any prefix, suffix, or
other modifying words, designs or symbols (other than logos leensedwe license to you—by—this
Agreement); (b) use the Marks when signing a contract, lease, check or other agreement or in any
other manner that may cause confusion or imply we are liable for your obligations; (c) register; or
attempt to registers—anyMarks{ a Mark, or ethertrademarksa trademark confusingly similar to the
Marks)a Mark, with anya Governmental Authority; or (d) challenge or contest the validity or
ownership of our Marks.

18.4. Use of Know-how. We disclose our proprietary Know-how to you during training programs, in the
Manual and through other guidance furnished during the Term. You wiHdo not acquire any interest
in the Know-how other than the right to utilize it—, during the Term, solely for purposes of
developing and operating vyour Center in striet—aeeerdaneecompliance with the—terms—ef—this
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Agreement:

eperaﬂea«a#ye&e@en{eed&rmg—ﬂﬁermthc Manual

18.5. Improvements. If you (or anyefyour OwnersOwner or employees-eoneetrvesemployee) conceive of
or develop an Improvement, you must send us a wwritten—notice describing the

Improvement. You must obtain our approval prior to using amy—suehthe Improvement. Any
Improvement we approve may be used by us and any third-partiesPerson we authorize to operate a
Center, without any obligation to pay royalties or other fees to you or any other Person. You or
your Owner or employee, as applicable, must assign ownership of the Improvement to us or our
designee, without charge, together with all associated intellectual property rights—te—the
Imprevement, including the right to grant sublicenses. Inretarn;,-we-wilautherizelf applicable Law
precludes you from as%1gn1ng ownership to us, then you must glant us a perpetual royalty- free
license to use § i §

18.6. Infringements, commercialize and Claimssublicense the Improvement in any manner we deem
appropriate.
18.6. IP Dlsnutes You must 1mmed1ately notlfy us of any—éa)—appareﬂt—mfm}gemeﬂt—eﬁth%ln%eﬂeemal

Dronerty enge o

thts—m—th%hﬁeﬂeemal—llfepeﬂy— I[P Dlspute You may n t ommumcate Wlth any Person other than
us and our counsel in connection with any-such-infringement—challenge-or-elaim-the [P Dispute. We
have sole discretion in deciding what action, if any, to take in response to the-infringementchalenge
or—elaim-an [P Dispute. We may—exclusively control anyall litigation erand other
preeeedingproceedings relating to the—infringement—challenge—or—elaim-IP Disputes. You must
execute all documents, render all assistance, and perform all acts that are;—n—our eeunsels
epintem;counsel deems necessary or advisable to protect or maintain our interest in the litigation-or
proceeding and/or protect the Intellectual Property.

19. INDEMNITY. You agree to indemnify the Indemnified Parties and hold them harmless for, from and

against any and all Losses and Expenses ineurred-by—any-ofthemthey incur as a result of or in connection
with:

(a) the marketing, use or operation of your Center;

¢p(b) the breach of amya Definitive Agreement committed by you or your OwnersOwner or
affiliatesaffiliate;

¢i(c) the breach of amyan agreement with a third party committed by you or your OwsaersOwner or
affiliatesaffiliate;

(d) any representations made by you or your Owner to a transferee in connection with a Transfer;

&) (e) any Claim relating to taxes or penalties assessed-by-anya Governmental Authority assesses against

us that-are-direethyrelatedtoas a direct result of your failure to pay or perform functions required of
you under this Agreement;

ea(f)_ libel, slander or disparaging comments made by you or any of your Owners, officers, employees or
independent contractors regarding the System, a Center or an Indemnified Party; (this provision does
not apply to disclosure of truthful information to Governmental Authorities);

&#(g) any labor, employment or similar type of Claim pertaining to your employees (including Claims
alleging we are a joint employer of your employees) or our relationship with you or your Owners
(including Claims alleging we are an employer of you and/or any of your Owners); or

¢vii)(h) any actions, investigations, rulings or proceedings conducted by any Governmental Authority
(including the United States Department of Labor, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or
National Labor Relations Board) relating to your employees.
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20.

You and your Owners must immediately notify us of any Claim or proceeding described above. The
Indemnified Parties shal-have the right, in their sole discretion. to: (a) retain counsel of their choosing to
represent them with respect to anythe Claim; and (b) control the response thereto and the defense thereof,
including the right to enter-into-an-agreementto-settle the Claim. You may participate in suehthe defense at
your expense. You must fully cooperate and assist the Indemnified Parties with the-defense of the Claim-
Yewmust and reimburse the-Indemnified Partiesfor-all ef theircosts and expenses they incur in defending
suaehthe Claim; including, without limitation, mediation, arbitration or court eests-and-reasonable-attorneys”
feeswithin10-days—of receipt-of an—inveice—itemizing such-eosts—and-expenses, expert fees and Travel
Expenses incurred by attorneys or expert witnesses to attend proceedings or hearings relating to the matter.
Your indemnification obligations survive, and continue in full force and effect after, the Transfer,
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

TRANSFERS

20.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure to the
benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement, provided that
we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for any obligations incurred by us prior to
the effective date of the assignment. We may also delegate our obligations under this Agreement to
one or more Persons without assigning the Agreement.

20.2. By You. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to you and the Owners. We
are granting you franchise rights in reliance upon the character, skill, attitude, business ability and
financial resources of you and your Owners. Because this Agreement is a personal services contract,
neither you nor any Owner may engage in a Transfer (other than a Permitted Transfer) without our
prior written—approval. Any Transfer (other than a Permitted Transfer) without our approval shal
beis void and eenstituteconstitutes a breach of this Agreement. We will not unreasonably withhold
our approval of a proposed Transfer if all of the following conditions are satisfied:

H(a)__we believe the proposed transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial
resources to own and operate a Center and meets our minimum criteria for franchisees;

¢9(b) you and your affiliates and Owners are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements;

@i(c) the transferee’s owners successfully complete, or make arrangements to attend, the initial
training program (and the transferee pays us any applicable training fee);

&)(d) your landlord consents to the assignment of your lease to the transferee, or the transferee is
diligently pursuing an approved substitute location within the Site Selection Area;

&n)(e)  the transferee and its owners obtain all licenses and permits required by applicable Law to
own and operate the Center;

e#)(f) the transferee (i) agrees to discharge and guarantee al—ef—your obligations under this
Agreement and any other agreementrelating—to—the—Business, 1nclud1ng—wﬁhe&t—hmﬁ&&eﬁ
contracts (including, customer contracts and supplier contracts;) and_(ii) signs any agreement we
require to confirm the foregoing;

vi(g) the transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of franchise agreement (unless we;
in-our-sele-diseretion; instruct you to assign this Agreement to the transferee);) except that: (ai)
the Term and renewal term(s) shall be the Term and renewal term(s) remaining under this
Agreement unless we specify otherwise; and (bii) the transferee need not pay a separate initial
franchise fee;

@viii)(h) yew-the transferee agrees to remodel yeurthe Center and upgrade all furniture, fixtures and
equipment to eemply—withconform to our then-current standards and specifications (er—you
obtaina-commitmentfrom-the-transfereeto-do-sethese changes must be completed within 12
months after the Transfer or such shorter period of time that-we apprevespecity);

x)(1)__you or the transferee pay us a transfer fee equal to 60% (or 40% if the buyer is an existing
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franchisee of ours) of our then-current initial franchise, without taking into account any
potential discounts on the then-current initial franchise fee, to defray expenses we incur in
connectron with the Transfer (fﬁ%h%traﬁsfere%—fetmd—b%a—bfekeﬁﬁee&gagﬁ%ewmt%a}se
t in addition to the
transfer fee, you must relmbumc us for any commission we pay our broker if our broker finds
the transferee);

() you and your Owners sign a General Release—ef—all—elaims—arising—before—or
et s e e L

b

(k) you agree to subordinate the transferee’s financial obligations to you to the transferee’s
financial obligations owed to us pursuant to the franchise agreement (we may require you to
enter into a written subordination agreement);

&i(1) we choose not to exercise our right of first refusal described in §20.5; and

i (m) you or the transferring Owner, as applicable, and the transferee satisfy any other
conditions we reasonably require as a condition to approval of the Transfer.

Our consent to a Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of any elaimsClaims we may-have against the
transferor;-nershall-it be-deemed-a—waiver-of or our right to demand the transfereefully comply with
all terms of the franchise agreement.

20.3. Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval, but you
must: (a) give us at least 10 days’ prior written—notice; and (b) upon our request, cause any—Entity
that-was-the former Franchisee Entity-immediatelyprior-to-the PermittedFransfer to sign a corporate
guarantee in the format we require to secure performance of the new Franchisee Entity’s financial
obligations under all Definitive Agreements- (if the Permitted Transfer results in a new Franchisee
Entity). You and the Owners (and-the transferee) must sign all documents we reasonably request to
effectuate and document the Permitted Transfer.

20.4. Owner Death or Disability-ef-an-Owner. Within 180 days after thean Owner’s death or permanent
disability-efan-Owner;, the Owner’s Equity Interest in the Owner’s-ownership—interestBusiness or

Franehlsee Entltv must be assrgﬂedTransferred to another aner—er—te—a—tlﬁ&rd—party—w%apﬁrev%ny

§20 3. An Owner is deemed to have a permanent d1sab111ty” only 1f %h%Per—seﬂhe/ she has a medlcal
or mental problem preventing the—Perserhim/her from substantially complying with his—er—/her
obligations under this Agreement or etherwise-operating the CenterBusiness in the manner required
by this Agreement and the Manual for a continuous period of at least three (3) months.

20.5. Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner desireswish to engage in a Transfer, you or the
Owner, as applicable, must obtain and send us) a bona-fide offer executed by the purchaser after
completion of due diligence. We have 30 days after reeceipt-efreceiving the offer to decide whether to
purchase the interest for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the offer, except we
may substitute cash for any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer. If we notify you within
the 30-day period that we intend to purchase the interest, you or the Owner, as applicable, must sell
the interest to us. We will have an additional 3660 days to prepare for closing. We-will-be-entitled-to
recetve—from—youYou or the Owner, as applicable, must provide us with all customary
representations and warranties given-by-youfasregarding the seHertitle to and condition of the assets)
or the-Owner—(as—theseller-of the-ownership—interestEquity Interest that we purchase, or; at our
eleetienoption, the representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not exercise our
right of first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the purchaser
pursuant to the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of §26-2-¢20.2, including our approval
of the transferee}—Hewever,—f. If the sale is not completed within 120 days after deliveryefwe
receive the offer-te—us, or there is a material change to the terms of sale, we will again have the right
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of first refusal specified in this Section. Our right of first refusal shall not apply to a Permitted
Transfer.

21. TERMINATION

21.1.

21.2.

By You. You may terminate this Agreement if we commit a material breach and fail to cure within
90 days after receipt of a default notice specifying the nature of the breach. You also may terminate
this Agreement without cause if: (a) you provide us with at least 180 days’-witter notice of your
intent to terminate; (b) you allow us to market and resell your Center during the 180-day notice
period and you sell to any buyer we propose immediately following the introduction (i.e., you may
not delay consummation of the sale until the end of the 180-day notice period); (c) you have paid all
amounts owing to us; and (d) you and your Owners sign a General Release. If, prior to the expiration
of the Term, you either terminate this Agreement without cause or cease operating your Center, but
fail to provide us with at least 180 days’ prior written notice and comply with the procedures above,

we may charge you liquidated damages in the amount of $5,000 (the “Early Termination Fee™)—The
EarlyFerminationFee”). which is paid for the-lost profits we incur based-endue to your premature
termination or closure without complying with the notice and other procedural requirements set forth
above. The Early Termination Fee is in addition to any other remedies (including damages) to which
we are entitled based on your breach of the Franchise Agreement (other than claims for lost profits).
If you terminate in accordance with §21.1, you must still comply with your post-termination
obligations described in §22 and all other obligations that survive the expiration or termination of
this Agreement.

TFermination—By Us—Without CurePeriod. We may;,—in—our—sele—diseretion; terminate this
Agreement, effective upon five-(5)-days—writtendelivery of a notice;—witheut-eppertunity-to-etre of

termination, for any of the following reasons, all of which constitute material events of default and
“good cause” for termination, and without opportunity to cure except for any cure period expressly
set forth below:

(a)__if you beeemeare insolvent by—reasen—ofdue to your inability to pay your debts as they
become due;

@d(b) if you file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any pleading seeking any reorganization,
liquidation, dissolution or composition or other settlement with creditors under any Law, or you
are the subject of an involuntary bankruptcy (which may or may not be enforceable under the
Bankruptcy Act of 1978);

@ib(c) if your Center, or a—substantial-pertiensubstantially all of theits assets-assectated—with—your
Center, are seized;— by a Government Official or taken over or foreclosed by—a-Gevernment

Official-in—the—cxcreisc—ot-his—or-her-dutics—or—scizedtaken—over-orforcelosed by a

creditor, lienholder or lessor;

w(d) if a final judgment against you remains unsatisfied for 30 days funless a supersedes or other
appeal bond has been filed)::

&9(e) if a levy of execution has been made upon the license granted by this Agreement or any
property used in your Business and is not discharged within five (5) days of the levy;

G#(f)_if the Managing Owner fails to satisfactorily complete initial training as required by §5.1;

vi—if you fail to ebtain-eur-appreval-efypeuridentify an approved site-within—thetimeperiod
(vi—ifyeufailte, secure a fully executed lease and Lease Addendum withinthetimeperiod

9(g) Hyeufail-teor open your Center within-thetimeperiodrequired-by-before the associated
deadlines set forth in §7.1, §7.2 or §+557.5, respectively:;
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&9(h) _if you abandon or fail to operate your Center for three (3) consecutive business days; unless
thefatlareis-due to Force Majeure (in which case §25.6 governs) or another reason we approve;

&h)(1) if a Governmental Authority suspends or revokes a license or permit held-by—you—-oran
Owner-thatis-required to_lawfully operate the Centers—eveni-you-or-the-Ownerstill-maintain

appealrights unless the suspension/revocation is overturned within 20 days thereafter;

i) Hyewmanage-or-if you operate yourthe Center in a manner that presents a health or safety
hazard to your students, employees or the public_and fail to cure within 24 hours after notice

from us;

(k) if you underreport Gross Sales, Special Program Sales and/or Affiliate Program Sales by at least
3% on two (2) or more occasions;

Eevb(1) if you fail to pay any amount owed to us, our affiliate or an approved or designated supplier
within 10 days after demand for payment; (subject to your right to dispute, in good faith,
amounts owed to third-party suppliers in accordance with §11.6(d));

Eevi)(m) if you underrepeor p

by—at—leastévé—aﬁer—hawng—eemaﬁ&ﬁgfall to tlmelv notlfv us of a s+m+1&r—b¥e&eh—th&t—was
ewredReportable Event in accordance with §21-316.6;

(n) #yewif you (or an Owner) (i) are subject to a material administrative disciplinary action or (ii
plead no contest to, or are convicted of, a felony or other material crime;

(0) if you (or an Owner) fail to comply with a material Law applicable to your Center;

(p)_if you (or an Owner) commit an act that can reasonably be expected to materially and adversely
affect the reputation of the System or goodwill associated with the Marks:

(q) if vou (or an Owner) make a material misrepresentation to us at any time;

G (1) if you (or an Owner) make an unauthorized Transfer;

&ix9)(s) if you make(or an wrautherizedOwner) use of-the Intellectual Property in an unauthorized
manner;

eg—if you (or an Owner) breach any—ef-thea brand protection eevenants—deseribedcovenant in
§455

() H-yeu—er-an—Owner—breaches—any—of-the representations—setforthl15_or representation in
§24-424.3,

Eadb(u) if amyan Owners— (or thetheir spouse—ef-any—Owner;) breaches a Franchise Owner

Agreement;

Eeddib(v) if you fail to meet the minimum performance requirements described in §12 and the
Managing Owner has not dedicated full-time efforts to the Center;

Gadr(w) if the lease for your premises is terminated due to your default;
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(x) if we send you reeetve-three (3) or more wvalid-default notices frem—us—within anya 12-month
period (even if the-defaultswere-cured);

Eoer-if we (or

Goevirf-we—erany our affiliate-ef-eurs—terminates—) terminate any Definitive Agreement—, other
than an area development agreement), due to a default committed by you (or your affiliate-

ye&or an Owner—faﬂ—t&eemply—w%h):

(z) if you (or an Owner) breach any other provision of this Agreement, including any mandatory

provision in the Manual)}-er—any—other Definitive—Agreement,—which—shall-constitate“good
e&&s#fer—t%n&&eﬁ—hmless—sﬂeh and fail to cure w1th1n 30 davs after recemt of a default is

0 nOthG

If we send you a default notice pursuantte—§2+3;-we may cease to perform our obligations under
this Agreement until you cure the breach, unless our failure to perform would materially impair vour

ability to cure.

21.4.21.3. By Mutual Agreement-te-Terminate. If you and we mutually agree in writing to terminate

this Agreement, yeu—and-we—will-any notice or cure period that might otherwise apply shall be
deemed te-have-waived-anyrequired-notice-period.

22. POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS.

22.1. Obligations of You and the Owners. After the termination, expiration or Transfer of this
Agreement, you and the Owners agree to:

(a) _immediately cease use of the Intellectual Property;

(b) comply with all post-term covenants described in §15 or a Franchise Owner Agreement;

(c) cancel all fictitious or assumed name registrations relating to your use of the Marks;

(d) return all copies of any proprietary software we provided to you and delete all such software
from your computer memory and storage:

@b(e) pay us all amounts you owe fincluding, if applicable, the Early Termination Fee;—if

(f) provide us with a list of current, former and prospective students and parents;

(2) comply with our data retention policies relating to Business Data;

(h) transfer Customer Data (and, if we so request, assign all customer contracts) to us or our
designee;

(1) comply with our instructions to return-ex, destroy or transfer all copies of the Manual;aH and
Copyrighted Materials and all signs, brochures, advertising and promotional materials, forms
and other materials bearing the Marks or containing Confidential Information;
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22.2.

&9(j)__ alter the interior and exterior of the premises to the extent necessary—, or to the extent we
require), to prevent any further resemblance to or connection with a Center or our System
including;-witheutHimitation; repainting the exterior and interior with new colors; and removing
trade dress ﬁxtures; s1gnage; wmdow decals and décor 1tems assoc1ated W1th a Center—

&)(k) notify all telephone, listing and domain name registration companies of the termination or
expiration of your right to use: (ai) any telephone numbers and/or domain names associated
with your Center; and (bii) any regular, classified or other telephone directory listings
associated with the Marks (you hereby authorize the foregoing companies to transfer such
telephone numbers, domain names and listings to us and you authorize us, and appoint us and
any officer we designate as your attorney-in-fact to direct these companies to transfer the
telephone numbers, domain names and listings to us if you fail or refuse to do so); and

&xii)(1) provide us with satisfactory evidence of your compliance with the above obligations within
30 days after the effective date of the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement.

Subsections v——xrand—xi)(h), (i), (j)_and (k) above shall not apply if you Transfer your
Center to an approved transferee or we exercise our right to purchase your Center. If an Owner

transfers his or her entire Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity but you continue to
operate the Center pursuant to this Agreement, then this Section shall not apply to you (or to any
remaining Owner) and the former Owner shall be subject only to the obligations set forth in
subsections (a) and (b).

Right te Purchase Faeility and AssetsOption.

(a) Generally. Upon the—termination or expiration of this Agreement; we have the option to
purchase your Center and/or its assets—at—tia:rr—mafket—va}ae If we choose to_exercise th+sour

purchase option, fa a : - :
ef—e*pﬁaﬁeﬁ—ef—thﬁ%greemeﬁt—We—we w111 notlfy you of the speel-ﬁ&l-tefns—assets we w1sh to
purchase (the “Acquired Assets™)}—We”) within 20 days after the termination or expiration date.

If we exercise our purchase option we may require that: (i) you te-assign your lease to us at no
additional charge- (if you lease the premises); or (ii) you or your affiliate enter into a lease with
us upon standard and commercially reasonable leasing terms, including rent at fair rental value,
for a term of 10 years or such shorter term that we specify (if you or your affiliate own the real
estate). The purchase price for the Acquired Assets will be: (i) the purchase price established by
the parties (if mutually agreed upon); or (ii) the Appraised Value established in accordance with
§22.2(b)_below. We may, at our option, assign our purchase option to a designee of our

choosing.
(b)——=Seleeting Oualified Appraisers—Eachparty-shall-appeint-anAppraisal Process. If the parties

cannot_agree on_the purchase price, the purchase price shall be the Appraised Value
established in accordance with this Section. “Appraised Value” means the fair market value
of the Acquired Assets as of the date this Agreement is terminated or expires, as applicable;
provided, however, that fair market value shall not include any value for goodwill and/or the
franchise rights granted by this Agreement. The parties shall attempt to mutually agree upon
a single independent appraiser-with-experience-appraisingbusinesses-comparable-to-a-Center
inthe United-States—This-. If they fail to do so, either party may demand the appointment of
the appraisers shetbemed oot S0 e e the Lesslaslion e ersiention o
thisAgreement-by-giving writternotiee-toin accordance with the following: (i) no later than

15 days after the demand, each party shall appoint one (1) appraiser and notify the other

party of the name—and-address—ofthe—appraiser—appointed appraiser’s name and contact

information; and (ii) no later than 30 days after the demand, the two (2) appraisers appointed
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23.

by the parties will jointly am)omt a third (3") am)ralser If either party falls to appomt an
appralser W1th1n the h : .

015-day perlod
then w&hm%@—day&aft%@hat—th&m@—@%—appfaﬂem—shaﬂ—appe%a—thﬁd—é Yappraiser—H
the-twoe—(2)the appraiser appointed by the other party shall be deemed the single appraiser
approved by the parties. You must promptly provide any documents or information

requested by the appraisers-fail-to-agree-on-the-third(3™)-. If a single appraiser within-the-30-
day period;—thenathird (3")is appointed, the purchase price shall be the Appraised Value

establlshed bv the appralser—shaﬂ—be—appeﬂﬁed—by%heﬂ%neﬂe&n%ﬁmﬁm%&seﬁ&ﬁeﬂ

%hey—shaﬂ—tss&%aﬁeﬂﬁepeﬁ—aﬂd—ﬂ&%ppﬁmed—\%amralsers are aooomted the Durchase
price shall be: (i) the value-determinedAppraised Value agreed upon by the-agreement-of-the

%hre%@)—appfﬁsefs—lrfat least two (2) of the thre&é}—ai%efs—agfe%eﬂ—a—smgl%ahi%these

eq&aﬂy—bear—th%lf none of the appraisers agree upon the ADDralsed Value Each party shall

promptly pay 50% of the cost of the appraisal.

(e)(c) Closing. OneeThe parties shall memorialize the Appraised—Value-has-been-determined;—we

have-60-additional-days-te-prepareforacquisition by executing the elosing—We-will-be-entitled
to-receive-fromyou-allform of Asset Purchase Agreement we reasonably prescribe, which shall

include customary representations and warranties given—-by—you—as—regarding title to and the
seHercondition of the Acquired Assets-and. At closing you must transfer good and clean title to
the Acquired Assets, subject to any exceptions we—agree—to-set forth in the Asset Purchase
Agreement, and we must pay you the purchase price. We may deduct from the Appraised-Valae
alb-purchase price: (i) any amounts you owe us or our affiliates under this-Agreement-orany
otherany Definitive Agreement;Agreements including, if applicable, liquidated—damagesthe
Early Termination Fee and/er other damages owed (other than lost profits) as a result of our
termination of this Agreement due to your breach-; and (ii) the amount of any liabilities we
assume on your behalf, including future rent and pre-paid liabilities carried by your Business.
We will have at least 60 days after the purchase price of the Acquired Assets has been
established to close the transaction.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION.
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23.1. Negotiation and Mediation. Except as otherwise provided below with respect to Excluded Claims,
the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any Dispute through informal discussions and
negotiations. If these efforts are unsuccessful, the-partiesagree-tocither party may submit the Dispute
to mediation before a mutually-agreeable mediator prior to arbitration. All negotiations and
mediation proceedings (including witheuttmitatiensall discovery conducted thereins—as—welas—all
and statements and settlement offers made by either party or the mediator in connection with the
mediation): (a) shall be strictly confidential;; (b) shall be-censidered-as—compromise-and-constitute

“settlement negotiations” for purposes of theFederal Rules—of Evideneefederal and state rules of
evidence;; and (c) shall not be admissible or otherwise used for any purpose in eonneetion—with-any
court or arbitration proceeding—for—any—purpese (except evidence that would otherwise be
discoverable or admissible shall not be excluded from discovery or made inadmissible simply
because of its use in mediation). The mediator may not be called as a witness for any purpose in any
court or arbitration proceeding—for—any—purpese-. Any Dispute involving elaimsClaims alleging a
breach of §15-andfer, §18 and/or §22 (referred to as “Excluded Claims”) wiHis not be-subject to
mandatory negotiation or mediation unless both parties agree otherwise.

23.2. Arbitration. If thea Dispute is not resolved by mediation within 60 days after eithera party makes a
demand for mediation, the—parties—willthen either party may submit the Dispute to mandatory and
binding arbitration conducted pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American
Arbitration Association—{the—<AAARules”).. The party filing the arbitration must initially bear the
cost of any arbitration fees or costs. The arbitrators will not have authority to award exemplary or
punitive damages. Any Dispute involving an Excluded Claim willis not be-subject to mandatory
arbitration unless both parties agree otherwise.

23.3. Litigation. If a Dispute involves an Excluded Claim, then either party may file a lawsuit in any state
or federal court of general jurisdiction in accordance the choice of venue provision set-forth-below.
The parties hereby express their clear and unequivocal intent that a court, rather than a mediator or
arbitrator, shal-havehas exclusive jurisdiction to decide the threshold issue of whether a Dispute

involves an aleged-Excluded Claim (i.e., whether there—are—any elaims—alegingClaim alleges a
breach of §4+5-and/15, §18 or §4822).

23.4. Venue. All mediation, arbitration and litigation shall take place in the county in which we maintain
our principal place of business at the time the Dispute arises (currently, King County, Washington).

The parties irrevocably waive any objection to such venue and;—with—respeet—to—litization
proeeedings;-submit consent to the jurisdiction of such courts.

23.5. Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If we-or-youmust-enforce-this Apgreementin-a jadieial-erDispute is
resolved through an arbitration or judicial proceeding, the substantially prevailing party wil-beis

entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting and legal fees
and arbitration or court costs. In addition, if you or an Owner breach any term of a Definitive
Agreement, you must reimburse us for all reasonable legal fees and other expenses we incur relating
to-suehas a result of the breach, regardless of whether the breach is cured prior to commencement of
formal dispute resolution proceedings.

23.6. Waivers. UNLESS PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY BISPUTECLAIM (OTHER

THAN FOR PAYMENT OF MONIES OWED OR A—OEAHON-—OE$I5—OR—SHAN
EXCLUDED CLAIM) MUST BE BROUGHT BY FILING A WRITTEN DEMAND FOR

MEDIATION WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FOLLOWING THE CONDUCT, ACT OR OTHER
EVENT OR OCCURRENCE GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM, OR THE RIGHT TO ANY
REMEDY WILL BE DEEMED FOREVER WAIVED AND BARRED. WE AND YOU
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE: (a) TRIAL BY JURY; AND (b) THE RIGHT TO
ARBJ—T—KA—T—LQNARBITRATE OR LITIGATE A DISPUTE ON A CLASS ACTION BASIS;HN
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24. REPRESENTATIONS.

24.1.

24.2.

24.3.

Corporate Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your obligations
hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any ether-agreement to
which you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your affiliate’s) assets may
beare bound; (b) violate any order, writ;—injunction, decree, judgment or ruling of amya
Governmental Authority; or (¢) violate any applicable Law. If the franchisee is an Entity, you and
the Owners also jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the Franchisee Entity is
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its formation and
has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform eaeh—ef—its
obligations hereunder; and (b) the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly
authorized by all requisite corporate action and this Agreement shall-constituteconstitutes the legal
valid and binding obligation of-theFranechisee Entity. and shall-beis enforceable against, the
Franchisee Entity in accordance with its terms.

General Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that
you and the Owners are aware that: (a) other franchisees may operate under different forms of
agreement and our obligations and rights with respect to franchisees differs materially in certain
circumstances; and (b) we may negotiate terms or offer concessions to other franchisees and we have

no obligation to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that, to the best of your and their knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any Owner
is subject to being “blocked’ under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any Owner, nor any
of their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of amyan Equity Interest
in yeuthe Business or Franchisee Entity) or related parties is, or has ever been: (i) a terrorist or
suspected terrorist within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified by name—<er,

alias, pseudonym-e¥, nickname) or address on any Terrorist List, including-es the list of “Specially

Designated Nationals” or “Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office
of Foreign Assets Control (texts currently available at www.home.treasury.gov); and (c) you and the

Owners are in compliance with, and shall continue to comply with, the Anti-Terrorism Law and all
other U.S. Laws ¢either—currently in effect, or enacted in the future)}prehibiting, that prohibit
corrupt_business practices, money laundering or the aid or support of Persons who conspire to
commit acts of terror against any Person or government-that-are-in-effect-within-the United-States

iea. The foregoing representations and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and

warranties for the duration of the franchise relationship. Accordingly, you agree-te-netify—us-must
immediately #a—writingnotify us of the occurrence of amyan event or the-development of amnya

circumstance that might render any of the foregoing representations and warranties false, inaccurate
or misleading.

25. GENERAL PROVISIONS

25.1.

25.2.

Governing Law. Except as governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. §§ 1051, et seq.), this Agreement and the franchise relationship shall be governed by the
Laws of the State of Washington (without reference to its principles of conflicts of law), but any Law
of the State of Washington that regulates the offer and sale of franchises or business opportunities or
governs the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this Section.

Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement creates a fiduciary relationship between the
parties or is intended to make either party a general or special agent, legal representative, subsidiary;
joint venture, partner, employee or servant of the other for any purpose. Throughout the Term you
must, in all dealings with third parties, conspicuously identify yourself as a franchisee and the
independent owner of your Center. We may require that you display a written notice of independent
ownership, in the form we prescribe, at any location within your Center that we specify. You must
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also include a written indication of independent ownership on all agreements, forms, letterhead,
advertising materials, business cards and other materials that we specify. Neither party is-permitted
temay: (a) make any express or implied agreement, warranty or representation, or incur any debt, in
the name of or on behalf of the other;; or (b) represent that our relationship is other than franchisor
and franchisee. In-addition,neitherNeither party wil-beis obligated by any agreementsagreement or
representationsrepresentation made by the other that-are-netparty unless expressly authorized by this
Agreement.

25.3. Severability-and-Substitutien. Each section and-subseetion-of this Agreement;- (and any—portion
thereof;shall- be-considered-) is severable. If applicable Law imposes mandatory nen-watvable-terms
or-conditions-that conflict with a—previsien—ef-this Agreement, the terms er-eeonditions-required by
such Law shall govern to the extent of the inconsistency. If a court [[[or arbitrator||| concludes that
any promise or covenant in this Agreement is unreasonable or unenforceable:«&), we or the court
[[[or arbitrator||| may modlfy such promise or covenant to the minimum extent necessary to make it
enforceable: craty—mr e F he—minirmum F

25.4. Waivers. Each party may waive any obligation imposed on the other party in writing. Neither party
shall-beis deemed to have waived or impaired any of its eentraetual-rights under this Agreement—,
including the right to require strict compliance with all terms of this Agreement or terminate this
Agreement due—toif the other party’s—failureparty fails to comply with such terms), by virtue of:
(a) any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement; (b) any failure,
refusal or neglect by eithera party to exercise any right under this Agreement or require the other

party to strictly comply with its-ebligations-underany term of this Agreement; (c) our waiver, failure
or refusal to exercise any of our rights with respect to other franchisees; or (d) our acceptance of

paymentspayment from you after your breach.

25.5. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, you must make a timely written request
for approval;—and-the. Our approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval within the
requlred per10d of time, we shall be deemed to have dlsapproved your request—l%w&denyhappfeval

25.6. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed-te-be in breach of this
Agreement if such party’s failure to perform its obligations results from an event of Force Majeure;
provided, however, that an event of Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure to perform
for more than 180 days. If the period of non-performance exceeds 180 days from receipt of notice of
the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability to perform has not been affected may immediately
terminate this Agreement by giving writtennotice of termination to the other party.

25.7. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their respective executors,
administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor
shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a party to this Agreement;
provided, however, that the additional insureds listed in §16.1 and the Indemnified Parties are
intended third-party beneficiaries under this Agreement with respect to §16.1 and §19, respectively.

25.8. Integration. THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
PARTIES AND MAY NOT, EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY §11.2 AND §25.3, BE CHANGED
EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN DOCUMENT SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. In addition, our issuance
of thea Site Approval Notice attached-hereto-as ATFTACHMENT"B" shall be deemed to amend this
Agreement to identify the approved site fer-your-Center-and—yeur Center Territory for vour Center,
regardless of whether you countersign and/or return the Site Approval Notice. Any email or-ether
informal electronic communication shall not be deemed to modify this Agreement unless it is signed
by both parties and speeifiealhyexpressly states it is intended to modify this Agreement. The
attachment{s)attachments are part of this Agreement, which; together with any Amendments or
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Addenda executed on or after the Effective Date, eenstitatesconstitute the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties;-and-there. There are no other oral or written understandings or agreements
between us-and-youthe parties about the subject matter of this Agreement. As referenced above, all
mandatory provisions of the Manual are part of this Agreement. Any representations not specifically
contained in this Agreement made before entering into this Agreement do not survive after the
signing of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim any of the
representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document. No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement or (b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other Persenperson acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

25.9. Covenant of Good Faith. If applicable Law implies into this Agreement a covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, the covenant shallmay not imply any rightsright or ebligatiens—that-areobligation
inconsistent with the express terms efthis-Agreement-hercof. This Agreement, and the relationship
of the parties inherent in this Agreement), grants us discretion to make decisions, take actions and/or
refrain from taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under this
Agreement that may favorably or adversely affect your interests. We will use our judgment in
exereistng-theto exercise this discretion based on our assessment of our own interests and balancing
theseour interests against the interests of our franchisees—(ineladingeurselves—and-ouraffiliatesif
applieable);, but without considering the individual interests of you or any other partienlar
franchisee.

25.10.Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative
and no exercise or enforcement by eithera party of any right or remedy under this Agreement swilt
preeludeprecludes any other right or remedy available to such party under this Agreement or by
lawLaw.

25.11.Survival. All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration or
Transfer of this Agreement, or the Transfer of an eswnership-interestEquity Interest in the Business
or Franchisee Entity). shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its
termination, expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire,
including, without limitation, §14, §15, §17, §19, §22, §23 and §25.

25.12. Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit or
construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the Sections
contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this Agreement
refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this Agreement is
applicable to one or more Persons, and the singular usage includes the plural and the masculine and
neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the possessive.

25.13. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

25.14.NetieeNotices, All notices and notifications given under this Agreement must be in writing; and

must be delivered by: (a) hand;-email(to-the tast-email-address-provided-by-thereeipient) delivery:;
(b) registered or first-elasscertified air mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; (c) special

delivery service (e.g.. Federal Express, DHL, UPS, efc.); or (d) email, in each case to the following
addresses (which may be changed upon 10 business daysdays’ prior written-notice):

YOU: As set forth in Part A of ATTACHMENT "A"

US: BiC Franchise System Corporation
4820 NE 4™ St., Suite A-107
Renton, Washington 98059
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
Email: hao@bestinclasseducation.com
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Notice shall-be-eonsideredis deemed given aton the timecarliest to occur of: (i) the date delivered by

hand;—erene—(+; (ii) the third ( 3“1) business day after sondine b email o sompaeble clectionio

system—or-three—(3)-business—days—after-placed in the mail;-postageprepaid—by—certiticd-mail
provided to special delivery services in accordance with a—returrreceiptrequestedclause (b) or (c)

above; or (iii) the first (1*) calendar day after sent by email.

25.15.Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

[Signature Page Follows]

X ok ok
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The parties te-thisAgreementbelow have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware

corporation
By:
Name:
Title:
YOU (If you are an Entity): YOU (If you are not an Entity):
a(n) Name:
By:
Name: Name:
Title:
Name:
Name:
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ATTACHMENT "A"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS
A. Franchisee Details-
Name of Franchisee: [ ]
Is the franchisee one or more natural perseasPersons signing in their individual capacity? _ Yes: No:
Type of Entity and State of Formation* (if applicable): [ ]

* [f the franchisee is a business Entity, each natwral-persenPerson holding a direct or indirect ownership
interestlquity Interest in the businessFranchisee Entity, and spouse of each such persenPerson who is a
natural Person, must sign the Franchise Owner Agreement concurrently with the execution of this
Agreement.

The following table includes the full name of each natural-persenPerson holding a direct or indirect
ownership-interestEquity Interest in the franehise{Business or thefranehisee-businesskFranchisee Entity-, as
applicable), along with a description of their ewnership-interestEquity Interest.

% OwnershipEquity Direct or Indirect
Owner’s Name % Fquit P c :
Interest (if indirect, describe nature of interest)

Notice Address:—f

[}

Attention:
Email:

B. Site Selection Area-

The Site Selection Area referenced in the Franchise Agreement shal—eensistconsists of the following

geographic area:
t 1

]

* The Site Selection Area is not your territory and there are no protections associated with this area.

C. Approved Site:

We hereby approve the site listed below for your Center.

Approved Address: [ ]

* If'the site for your Center has not been approved by us at the time this Agreement is signed, we will send
you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with §7.1 listing the address of your approved site.
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D. Center Territory-

The Center Territory referenced in the Franchise Agreement consists of, and shall eensistefbe limited to, the
following geographic area (as may be further depicted on the map attached below):

[ ]

If thereraf%aﬂy—ehanges—te—the zl-p—eedes—er—e%her—boundarles that deﬁne yeu%the Center Temtory hang
during the term-ofthe Franeh i i ; e

ws--writing Term, the boundarles of your Center Terrltory shai—lwﬂl remain unaffected and w1ll continue to
be defined by the zip-ecedes-er—other-boundaries that were in effect as of the Effective Date and(as may be

depicted on thea map en-thefoHowing page-attached below). You may provide suggestions for the Center
Territory but we ultimately have sole discretion to determine the boundaries of your Center Territory.

[Insert Map Below (if applicable)]

*If yowr—CenterTerritory—is-we do not defined-atapprove the timeyow-=signsite for vour Center before this
Agreement is signed, we will send you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with §3-within{5-days-after
S—l—Eé—élﬁpFG-%l—B 2 1o zdennﬁ the geogr an/m area that commzse? vour Center Territory, which-wi-inelude

Z g  will include

1 5 000 to ] 8, 000 students between the ages of 5 and 1 7. You wzll have f ive (5) business days to respond

and request adjustments to the boundaries of the Center Territory. If you do not request any adjustments

during the five (5)-day period, then the Center Territory we provide is deemed final and confirmed and
there will be no subsequent adjustments-

F. Initial Franchise Fee.

You agree to pay us the following initial franchise fee (check appropriate box):
$45,000 (for 1* Center)
$40,000 (for 2™ Center)
$35,000 (for 3™ or subsequent Center)
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ATTACHMENT "B"
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FORM OF SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

[See Attached]
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SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

BiC Franchise System Corporation (“we” or “us”) is issuing this Site Approval Notice (this “Notice”) to

(“you”), effective ,202___, in connection with the Best
In Class Education Center Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) that we executed with you on
, 202 . The purpose of this Notice is to confirm our approval of the site you proposed for

your Center and our designation of the boundaries of your “Center Territory”.

Approved Address:

Pursuant to §7.1 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby approve the site listed below for your Center:

Center Territory:

Pursuant to §33.2 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby designate the following geographic area as your
“Center Territory” under the Franchise Agreement (as may be further depicted on the map attached on the
following page):

[ ]

If %her%af%aﬂ%ehaﬂges—t&the ﬂp—eeées—er—e%her—boundarles that define yeﬂfthe Center Terrltory chan ge durmg
the terss sre

writingTerm, the boundarles of your Center Terrltory sh&Hwﬂl remain unaﬁected and w111 continue to be
defined by the zip-eedes-or-otherboundaries that were in effect as of the Effective Date and(as may be depicted
on thea map attached on the following page-). You may provide suggestions for the Center Territory but we
ultimately have sole discretion to determine the boundaries of your Center Territory-

% sk sk

By signing below, you and we agree that: (a) the address identified in this Notice shall be deemed the approved
site for your Center established and operated pursuant to the Franchise Agreement; and (b) the geographic area
described in this Notice under “Center Territory” shall be deemed your Center Territory under the Franchise
Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that our acceptance of the site you proposed is in no way a
representation by us that your site will be successful. Rather, our acceptance merely indicates the site meets our
minimum standards and requirements.

We request that you sign below and send us an executed copy of this Notice to acknowledge your receipt.
However, your failure or refusal to sign below will not invalidate or otherwise affect our designation of your
approved site or Center Territory. Our designation of your approved site and Center Territory, as set forth in this
Notice, shall be binding on you effective as of the effective date listed in the first paragraph in this Notice.

Franchisor Franchisee

BiC Franchise System Corporation [ ]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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ATTACHMENT "C"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LEASE ADDENDUM

[See Attached]
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Lease Addendum

This Lease Addendum (this “Agreement”) is executed as of , 202 by and among BiC Franchise
System Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Franchisor™), [ ], a(n) [ 1, with
principal offices located at | ] (“Landlord”), and [ ], a(n) [ ], with
principal offices located at [ ] (“Tenant”).

Background

A. On | ], 202[ ], Franchisor and Tenant executed a Best In Class Education Center Franchise
Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”), pursuant to which Franchisor granted Tenant the right and
obligation to develop, open and operate a Best In Class Education Center franchised business at the
premises described in Exhibit “A” (the “Premises™).

B. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, Landlord and Tenant are executing a lease agreement
(the “Lease”), pursuant to which Landlord will lease the Premises to Tenant.

C. To protect Franchisor’s rights and interests under the Franchise Agreement, Landlord agrees to grant
certain rights to Franchisor as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Default Notices. Landlord agrees to provide Franchisor with copies of all written default notices sent to
Tenant at the same time such notices are sent to Tenant. Landlord agrees to send such copies to Franchisor
by email and registered mail as set forth below (Franchisor may change the notice email and address from
time to time by sending written notice to Landlord):

Email: haolam@emaithao@bestinclasseducation.com

Mail: BiC Franchise System Corporation
4820 NE 4th St., Suite A-107
Renton, Washington 98059
Attention: Hao Lam

2. Right to Cure. If Tenant defaults under the Lease, Franchisor has the right (but not the duty) to cure such
default within 15 days following the expiration of any applicable cure period. In such event, Franchisor
may immediately commence occupancy of the Premises as the tenant under the Lease without obtaining
Landlord’s or Tenant’s consent. Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease to another Best In Class
Education Center franchisee or to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does, Franchisor
must first obtain Landlord’s written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither
unreasonably withhold nor delay its approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in
writing. No assignment permitted under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will
cause any rental acceleration.

3. Right to Assign. At any time (including, without limitation, upon the expiration or termination of the
Franchise Agreement), and without Landlord’s prior consent, Tenant may assign the Lease to Franchisor.
In such event, Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease to another Best In Class Education Center
franchisee or to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does, Franchisor must first obtain
Landlord’s written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither unreasonably withhold nor
delay its approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in writing. No assignment
permitted under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will cause any rental
acceleration.

4. Right of First Refusal. Landlord hereby grants Franchisor the first right of refusal to lease the Premises as
the new tenant upon the expiration or termination of the Lease. Franchisor shall have a period of 30 days
after the expiration or termination of the Lease to decide whether to exercise its right of first refusal.
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Expiration or Termination of Franchise Agreement. Landlord agrees that the expiration or termination of
the Franchise Agreement shall constitute a default under the Lease, giving Franchisor the right, but not the
obligation, to cure such default by succeeding to Tenant’s interests under the Lease in accordance with §2
above.

Acknowledgement of Rights. Landlord acknowledges Franchisor’s rights under the Franchise Agreement
to enter the Premises, without being guilty of trespass or any other tort or crime, to: (a) make any
modifications or alterations to the Premises that Franchisor deems necessary to protect its franchise system
or trademarks; and (b) remove any trade fixtures, interior or exterior signs and other items bearing
Franchisor’s trademarks or service marks upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement.

Modification of Lease. Landlord and Tenant will not amend, modify, supplement, terminate, renew or
extend the Lease without Franchisor’s written consent.

Miscellaneous.

(a) In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the Lease, the
terms of this Agreement control.

(b) All of the terms of this Agreement, whether so expressed or not, are binding upon, inure to the benefit
of, and are enforceable by the parties and their respective personal and legal representatives, heirs,
successors and permitted assigns.

(c) The provisions of this Agreement may be amended, supplemented, waived or changed only by a
written document signed by all the parties to this Agreement and making specific reference to this
Agreement.

(d) This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which is an original, but all of
which together constitute one and the same instrument.

In witness whereof, this Agreement has been executed the date and year first above written.

FRANCHISOR:

BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware corporation

By:

Name:

Date:

LANDLORD:

By:

Name:

Date:

TENANT:

By:

Name:

Date:
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EXHIBIT “A” TO LEASE ADDENDUM

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES
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ATTACHMENT "D"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

[See Attached]

Franchise Agreement Attachment D



FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

This Franchise Owner Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by: (a) each of the undersigned
ownersOwners of Franchisee (defined below); and (b) the spouse of each such ewsnerOwner who is a natural
Person, in favor of BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its successors and assigns

(“us—)—&peﬁ—ﬂ&%tems—aﬂd—em&dmens—sekfefﬂa—m—thﬂ%gfeemenﬁg Each signatory to this Agreement is
referred to as “you”.

+—Definitions—Forpurposes—of this—Asreement—the followingDEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms not

defined above have the meanings given to them below:

efdeﬁned below the meanmas leen to them in the Franchlse Agreement—&&é—&l—l—reka%ed—a«gfeemeﬂ%s—ﬁgneé

“Development Agreement” means, if applicable, the Area Development Agreement pursuant to which the

Franchise Agreement was executed.
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“Franchise Agreement” means the Best In Class Education Center Franchise Agreement executed by
Franchisee with an effective date of ,202

“Franchisee” means

“Restricted Period” means the two—(2)—-year period after the earliest to occur of-the—foHewing: (a) the
termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement; (b) the date en—whieh—Franchisee assigns the
Franchise Agreement to another persernPerson with respect to whom neither you nor your spouse helds-any

direet-or-indirect-ownership—interestown an Equity Interest; or (c) the date en—whiehneither you eease-te
benor your spouse own an ewnerofEquity Interest in the Business or Franchisee er-yourspeouse-ceases—+to

be-an-owner-of Kranchiseeas-apphieablebntity; provided however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that-thisthe two-vear period eftime-is too long to be enforceable; then Restricted Period means
the one-)--year period after the earliest to occur of-the-follewing: (a) the termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement; (b) the date en—whieh—Franchisee assigns the Franchise Agreement to another
persernPerson with respect to whom neither you nor your spouse helds—any—direct-orindirectownership
interestown an Equity Interest; or (c) the date en—whiehneither you eease—te—benor your spouse own an
ewner-of Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee er-yourspeouse-ceases-to-be-an-owner-of Eranchisee;
as-apphieableEntity.
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2. BaekgroeundBACKGROUND. In your capacity as an ewner—efFranchisee;-Owner (or the spouse of an
ewnerOwner) of Franchisee, you may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that
protecting the Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that-you could
seriously jeopardize our-entire franchise system if you were to unfairly compete with us or misuse our
Intellectual Property. In addition, you understand that certain terms of the Franchise Agreement apply to
“ewnersOwners” and not just Franchisee. You agree to comply with theterms-efthis Agreement-in-order
to: (a) avoid damaging our System by engaging in unfair competition; and (b) bind yourself to the terms of
the Franchise Agreement applicable to ewnersOwners.

3. BRAND PROTECTION COVENANTS.

(a)

Intellectual Property and Confidential Information. You agree to:

H——(i) refrain from using the Intellectual Property or Confidential Information in any capacity or
for any purpose other than the operation of Franchisee’s Center in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement and Manual,

¢H—(i1) maintain the confidentiality of the Knew-hew-and-ether-Confidential Information at all
times;

@i—(ii) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing Confidential
Information; (iv) take all reasenable-steps we ea%onably requlre to prevent unauthorized use

Confidential Informtion; and

69— (v) immediately stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information at such

time that you are ne-tongeran-owner-of Franchisee-(or your spouse is) no longer an ewner-of

Owner. You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement developed

(b)

by you, including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable lawLaw precludes you from assigning
ownership ef-any—to us, then you agree to perpetually license the Improvement to us, then—such

Improvement—shall-be—perpetually licensed—by—you—to—us—free of charge, with full rights to use,

commercialize and sublicense the same.

Unfair Competition. You may not engage in any Prohibited Activities at any time: (i) that you are ar

owner-of Franchisee-(or while-your spouse is-an-ownerof Franchiseeas-applieable) an Owner; or (ii)
during the Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may have an interest in a
CompetitiveCompeting Business during the Restricted Period as long as the CempetitiveCompeting

Business is not located within-(and does not previde-competitive-educational services-to-students-whe
reside—withimoperate) within the Restricted Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited

AetivitiesActivity during the Restricted Period (other than having an interest in a
CompetitiveCompeting Business permitted by this Sectiony;) your Restricted Period will be extended
by the period of time during which you were-engagingengaged in the Prohibited Activity—(any. Any
such extension of time will not be-censtrued-asconstitute a waiver of your breach or etherwise-impair
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any of our rights or remedies relating to your breachjy-—. For purposes of clarity, you remain bound by
any non-competition covenants in other Definitive Agreements that remain in effect for a period of
time that extends beyond the expiration of the Restricted Period under this Agreement, and the
expiration of the Restricted Period under this Agreement does not in any way diminish your obligation
to comply with such other covenants.

(c) Family Members. Beeause—yourYou could circumvent the purpose of this-Agreementi3 by disclosing
Knew-hoewConfidential Information to an-immediate family membermembers (i.e., parent, sibling,

child; or grandchild) and it would be difficult for us to prove any—suehyour breach;. For that reason
you wil-beare presumed to have breached this Agreement if a—member-ef-youran immediate family
member: (i) engages in awya Prohibited AetivitiesActivity at any time that-you are prohibited from
engaging—in—theProhibited-Aetivities-doing so; or (ii) uses or discloses Confidential Information.
However, you may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively showing you did not disclose
Knew-hewConfidential Information to the family member.

(d) Covenants Reasonable. You agree that: (i) the terms—ofthis-Agreementcovenants in §3 are reasonable
beth-in timeduration and in-seepe—ef-geographic areascope; and (ii) you have sufficient resources,

business experience and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the-terms—ef
thisAgreement— YOU-HEREBY-WAIVE ANY RIGHT-TO-CHALLENGE-§3-OF THIS AGREEMENT-AS
BEING-OVEREY-BROAD; UNREASONABEE-OR - BNENFOREEABLE:these covenants. Although you and
we beth-believe the covenants in this-Agreement-§3 are reasonable; we may-at-any-time-, upon written
notice to you, unilaterally modify the terms-efthe-brand protection covenants in §3 of this Agreement;
upen-writtenneotice-to-you;- by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing the definition
of a CempetitiveCompeting Business, shortening the duration of the Restricted Period, reducing the
geographic scope of the Restricted Territory and/or reducing the scope of any other covenant imposed
upon you under §3 of this Agreement to ensure that-the-terms—and covenants are enforceable under
applicable lawlLaw.

(e) Breach. You agree that: (i) any failure to comply with §3 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable
damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (ii) we are
entitled to injunctive relief if you breach §3 together with any other relief available at equity or law.
We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a court
requires that we post a bond despite our mutual agreement to the contrary, the requiredbond amount ef

the bond may not exceed $1,000. If an injunction is wronglully issucd. you may seck dissolution of the
frmeden—se s wele remedy— er—hersbirnise Ll elaione Lo deeees ol Deon o
wrongfully—issued—injunection—None—of theremedies available to us under this Agreement areis

exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity,
1nclud1ng mJunctlve rehef spe01ﬁc performance and recovery of monetary damages Ne%lraﬁn—held—by

O o 5 O O

4. ion : : d
RESTRICTIONS We must approve all persensPersons who he}d—a—d—rreet—er—mdrreet—ewners-hiﬁ

interestown an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee—Aeeerdinghy Entity. If yvou are an Owner, you

agree that you will not—d—xreetly Transter an Equltv Interest in the Busmess or mda—ree%f—er—by—eperat}en—ef

FranehrseeFranchrsee Entltv except in accordance with th%terms—and—eendrtrens—set—feﬁh—m—&O of the

Franchise Agreement.

5— Finaneial Seeurityz: FINANCIAL SECURITY. In order to secure Franchisee’s financial obligations

under the Franchlse Agreement and all anerHary—agreements—%eeute%#Fr&neknse&m—eennee&en—wrth

Deﬁmtwe As_reements (collectlvely, the “Secured Agreements—)—g you—jemﬂy—aﬂd—several-ly— helebi
personally and unconditionally: (a) guarantee to us and our sueeessersuccessors and assigns, that

Franchisee shall punctually fulfil all of its payment and other financial obligations under the Secured
Agreements; and (b) agree to be personally bound by, and personally liable for, each and every monetary
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provision in the Secured Agreements. You waive:

H9——(1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by us of the foregoing undertakings;

¢—(i1) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness guaranteed;

¢—(iii) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness guaranteed;

—(iv) any right you may have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other
persenPerson as a condition of liability; and

&9——(v) the defense of the statute of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection of any
indebtedness hereby guaranteed.

5.__You agree that: (a) your direct and immediate liability under this guaranty shall-beis joint and several with
Franchisee and all other signatories to this Agreement; (b) you will render any payment required under the
Secured Agreements upon demand if Franchisee fails to promptly do so; (c) your liability shallis not be
contingent or conditioned upon our pursuit by—as—of any remedies against Franchisee or any other
persenPerson; and (d) your liability shalwill not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any
extension of time, credit or other indulgence that-we may-grant to Franchisee or te-any other persenPerson,
including the acceptance of any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any
elaimsClaims, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this guarantee, which shal-beremains
continuing and irrevocable during the term of each efthe-Secured AgreementsAgreement and following the
termination, expiration or transfer of each efthe-Secured AgreementsAgreement to the extent any financial
obligations under any—sueha Secured AgreementsAgreement survive such termination, expiration or
transfer. This guaranty will continue unchanged by the occurrence of any bankruptcy of Franchisee or any
assignee or successor of Franchisee or by any abandonment of one or more of the Secured Agreements by a
trustee of Franchisee. Neither your obligation to make payment in accordance with the terms of this
undertaking nor any remedy for enforcement shaltwill be impaired, modified, ehanged;released or limited
in any manner whatsoever by any impairment, modification;-change, release or limitation of the liability of
Franchisee or its estate in bankruptcy or of any remedy for enforcement, resulting from the operation of any
present or future provision of the U.S. Bankruptcy Act or other statute, or from the decision of any court or
agency.

___Dispute Resolution-REPRESENTATION. You represent to us that vou received a copy of the executed
Franchise Agreement.

6-7. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be brought in
accordance with the dispute resolution preeeduresprovisions set forth in the Franchise Agreement:

Netwrthstaﬂdmg—th%feregemg— Whl(,h are mcorr)oratcd mto thls As_lument bv 1queme as 1fany—d+spute

th—xs—AgFeement—sh&H—peevaﬁ—tullv set forth herein. You acknowledge and agree that ayour breach of th1s

Agreement by—yeu—shall-eenstituteconstitutes a material event of default under the Franchise
Agreement, permitting us to terminate the Franchise Agreement in accordance with theits terms
thereof.

7.—MiseellaneeusMISCELLANEOUS.

(a) If either party hires an attorney or files suit against the other party for breach of this Agreement, the
losing party must reimburse the prevailing party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(b) This Agreement wit-beis governed by—eeﬂstmed—aﬂd—enfe%eed—uﬁéer the l-awsLaws of Washlngton

() Any elaim;Claim or defense—er—eause—ef—aetion you may have against us or against Franchisee,
regardless of cause or origin, cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement of this Agreement.

(d) Each section of this Agreement;—inehading—eachsubseetion- (and portion thereof;) is severable. If any
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section;—subseetion—_(or portion ef-thisAsgreement-thereof) is unenforceable, it shall not affect the
enforceability of any other section;subseetion- (or portion—Fhe-parties-agree-that-the- thercof). A court

may impese-suchtimitations—on—the—termsrevise any provision of this Agreement as—it-deems—inits
diseretionto the extent necessary to make such—terms—reasenable—inseope—duration—and-geographie

areathe provision enforceable.

(e) Yeouagreethat-weWe may deliver to you any notice-er-etherecommunication contemplated by this
Agreement in the same manner and to the same address listed in the notice previstensprovision of the
Franchise Agreement and any such delivery shall be deemed effective for purposes of this Agreement.
You may change the address to which notices must be sent by sending us a written notice requesting
such change, which notice shall be delivered in the manner and to the address listed in the Franchise
Agreement.

DachbE e Do o oo oL
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I-witness-whereefeach of the undersigned has executed this Agreement as of the date or dates set forth below.

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:
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ATTACHMENT "E"
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ACH AUTHORIZATION FORM

[See Attached]
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AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Franchisee Information:

Franchisee Name Business No.

Franchisee Mailing Address (street) Franchisee Phone No.

Franchisee Mailing Address (city, state, zip)

Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different from above)

Franchisee Fax No. Franchisee Email Address

Bank Account Information:

Bank Name

Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)

[1 Checking [] Savings

Bank Account No. (check one) Bank Routing No. (9 digits)
Bank Mailing Address (city, state, zip) Bank Phone No.
Authorization:

Franchisee hereby authorizes BiC Franchise System Corporation (“Franchisor”) to initiate debit entries to Franchisee’s account with the Bank
listed above and Franchisee authorizes the Bank to accept and to debit the amount of such entries to Franchisee’s account. Each debit shall be
made from time to time in an amount sufficient to cover any fees payable to Franchisor pursuant to any agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee as well as to cover any purchases of goods or services from Franchisor or any affiliate of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to be bound
by the National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) rules in the administration of these debit entries. Debit entries will be initiated
only as authorized above. This authorization is to remain in full force and effect until Franchisor has received written notification from
Franchisee of its termination in such time and in such manner as to afford Franchisor and the Bank a reasonable opportunity to act on it.
Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of any changes to any of the information contained in this authorization form at least 30 days before such
change becomes effective.

Signature: Date:

Name:

Title:

Federal Tax ID Number:

NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.
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ATTACHMENT "F"
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

This Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by the undersigned ( ) in favor of BiC Franchlse System
Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its successors and assigns (“us

e

1.

Definitions-FEor-purpeses-of this Agreement;the folewingDEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms that are not

defined above have the meanings given to them below:

“Business Data” means all data pertalmng to Franchisee’s Center, students (and student parents) and
business operations, s s ot : whether
collected by you, Franchlsee us or any other person.

“Center” means a Best In Class Education business that provides school-aged children with supplemental
learning opportunities in the areas of Mathematics and English as well as SAT and ACT preparation

courses ODeratmg undel the Marks. —Gen%means—a—Best—In—@L&ss—Ed&e&Heﬂ—bﬂsmess—that—prewées

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) the-Know-How; (b) the-Business Data, including the
names, contact information and other data pertaining to current, former, or prospective Center students; (c¢)
theinformation in the Manual or comprising the System; (d) terms of the Franchise Agreement (and alt
related agreements) 51gned by Franchisee in connection W1th the Center—aﬂd—all—&ttaehments—therete and

Maﬂﬂal;—aﬁd—éf@) all other concepts, 1deas, trade secrets, ﬁnan01a1 mformatron, rnarketmg strategles,
expansion strategies, studies, supplier information, eustemerstudent and parent information, franchisee

information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works, improvements, discoveries,
standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings, policies, processes, procedures,
methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations, studies or other documents that are: (i)
are-designated as confidential; (ii) are-known by you to be considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) are-by
their—nature—inherently—er—reasonably to be considered confidential: due to their nature. Confidential
Information does not include any-information that: (a) is now, or subsequently becomes, generally available
to the public (except as a result of a breach of confidentiality obligations by you, Franchisee or
Franchisee’s owners, employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was rightfully in your
possession, without obligation of nondisclosure, before the-information—was-diselosed-to—you-by—uswe (or

any person associated with us) or Franchisee (or any person associated with us-er-Franchisee);) disclosed

the information to you; (c) is independently developed by you without any use of, or reference to, any
Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right to transfer or
disclose suehthe information to you without breaching any-ebligatien-efa confidentiality covenant imposed
on such third party.

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate haveseenredclaim
or secure common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or
display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a Center;-whethernow-in-existence-or-ereated
in-thefutare.

“Franchisee” means the Best In Class Education Center franchisee for whom you are an efficerdireetor;
employee or independent contractor.

“Improvement” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a)-the goods or services
offered or sold at a Center, (b) the—method of operation of a Center, (c) the—processes, systems or
procedures utilized by a Center, (d) the—marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or
strategies utilized by a Center or (e) the-trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property
utilized by a Center, whether developed by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,
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Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Know-how” means all of our trade secrets and other proprietary information relating to the design,
construction, development, marketing or operation of a Center, including, but not limited to: architectural
plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Center; site selection criteria; curricula; instructional
materials; methods and techniques; standards and specifications; policies and procedures; supplier lists and
information; marketing strategies; merchandising strategies; financial information; and information
comprising the System or included in the Manual.

“Manual” means our confidential brand standards manual for the operation of a Center.

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize Centers to use, including “Best1n—ClassEdueationCenter”BEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER" and the associated logo. The Marks also include any distinctive trade dress used
to identify a Center.

“System” means the business format and operating system developed for the operation of a Center, the
distinctive characteristics of which include: proprietary curriculum and educational materials; proprietary
technology; trade secrets (if any); methods; techniques; procedures; and operating system.

Baekground BACKGROUND. You are an—efficer—direetor; employee or independent contractor of
Franchisee. As a result of this association, you may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You
understand that protecting the Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and
that you could seriously jeopardize our entire-franchise system if you were to unfairlycompete-with-us—1n
erdertomisuse our Intellectual Property. To avoid such damage, you agree to comply with the terms of this
Agreement.

3— Know-How—and—Intellectual —Property-INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY & CONFIDENTIAL

3.

INFORMATION. You agree to:

H—(a) refrain from using the Intellectual Property or Confidential Information in any eapaeitybusiness

or for any purpose other than the operation of Franchisee’s Center;

¢iH——(b) maintain the confidentiality of the - Knew-hew-and-ether-Confidential Information at all times;

— (c) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing awyKnew-hew—er—ether

Confidential Information; and

69—(d) take all steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential
Information; and (e) immediately stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information
at such time that you are no longer an efficer—director,—employee or independent contractor of
Franchisee.

You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement developed by you,
including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from assigning ownership ef-any
Imprevementto us, then such Improvement shall be perpetually licensed by you to us free of charge, with
full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

Family Members-—Beeauseyou-FAMILY MEMBERS. You could circumvent the purpeseintent of this
Agreement by disclosing Knew-hewConfidential Information to an-immediate family membermembers

(i.e., parent, sibling, child; or grandchild) and it would be difficult for us to prove any-suehyour breach;. For
that reason you wil-beare presumed to have breached this Agreement if a-member-of-youran immediate

family member uses or diselosed—the Know-hew—Hewever,—youdiscloses Confidential Information. You

may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively showing you did not disclose Kneow-
hoewConfidential Information to the family member.
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6-5. BreachBREACH. You agree that: (a) any failure to comply with this Agreement is likely to cause
substantial and irreparable damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at
law; and (b) we are entitled to injunctive relief if you breach this Agreement together with any other relief
available at equity or law. We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a
bond. If a court requires that we post a bond despite our mutual agreement to the contrary, the requiredbond

amount efthe-bend-may not exceed $1,000. Han-injunctionis-wrongfullyissued;-you-may-seek-dissolution
of-the-injunction—as—your-sole-  remedy-—You-hereby—watve-all-claims—for-damages—resulting{from-a
wrongfully-issued-injunetion—None-of the remedies available to us under this Agreement areis exclusive of

any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including
m]unctlve rehef spe01ﬁc performance and recovery of rnonetary damages—Ne—eLam—helé—by—yeu—ag&mst

7:6. MiseeHaneousMISCELLANEOUS.

(a) If we hire an attorney or file suit against you for breach of this Agreement and we prevail, you must
reimburse us for our reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(b) This Agreement wil-beis governed by—eeﬁs&ued—aﬁd—e&fereed—&nder the laws of Washington-and-the
courts—in—thatstateshall-have jurisdietion—over—any. Any legal proceedings arising out of this

Agreement_must be brought exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in King County.
Washington.

(c) Each section of this Agreement;-inecladingeachsubseetion (and portion thereof;) is severable. If any
section;—subseetion—_(or portion ef-this—-Agreement-thereof) is unenforceable, it shall not affect the
enforceability of any other section;-subseetion- (or portion—Fhe-partiesagree-thatthe- thereof). A court

may inpese-such-limitations—on—thetermsrevise any provision of this Agreement as—itdeems—in—its
diseretionto the extent necessary to make sueh-termsthe provision enforceable.

This Confidentiality Agreement is executed as of the date set forth below.

By:
Name:
Date:
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EXHIBIT "D"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Area Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of , 202 (the
“Effective Date”) between BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“we” or “us”) and
> a(n) (“you™).

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used-in-thisAgreementshallnot defined above have the meanings given

to them below-—Any-eapitalized-termused-in-this-Agreement-thatis, or if not defined below-shal-have, the
meantrgmeanings given to saeh-termthem in the Initial Franchise Agreement-(as-defined-belowy-.

“Developer Entity” means thean Entity that: (a) signs this Agreement as the area developer (Fes—you)if
this Agreement is signed by an Entity:); or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its execution by the
original Owners.

Development Business” means the business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement consisting of
developing and opening Centers within the Development Territory.

“Development Schedule” means the schedule described in §4.1 and Part BC of ATTACHMENT "A" for
the development of the Centers within the Development Territory.

“Development Territory” means the geographic area described in Part €D of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer ardor sale of the area development
rights; or (c) the relationship between the parties.

“Franchise Agreement” means a Best In Class Education Center Franchise Agreement executed by us and
you (or your affiliate) for the development and operation of a Center pursuant to this Agreement.

29

“General Release” means our then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims that you and your
Owners must sign pursuant to §7.2 in connection with a Transfer.

“Initial Franchise Agreement” means the Franchise Agreement executed by you concurrently with the
execution of this Agreement for the first Center to be established pursuant to this Agreement.

“Initial Franchise Fee” means the initial franchise fee you must pay for each Center to be developed under
this Agreement as set forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Owner”—eor—OwnersOwner” means a Person who meets any of the following criteria: (a) the Person
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directly signs this Agreement as the area developer-¢, either alone or in conjunction with one or more other
Persons):: (b) the Person directly or indirectly ¢through one or more intermediaries) owns anyan Equity
Interest in the Development Business or Developer Entity-Gfthe-area-developerunder-thisAgreementis-an
Entity):: (c) the Person directly signs a Franchise Agreement as the franchisee—{, either alone or in
conjunction with one or more other Persons):; and/or (d) the Person directly or indirectly ¢through one or
more intermediaries) owns amyan Equity Interest in any affiliate of yours that executes a Franchise
Agreement as authorized by §6.

“Permztted 7 ransfer means—éa) a Transfer

%Oﬁ—ewnershkp—mterest—m—th%afea—developer—fraﬂelme (a) between ex1stmg Owners or th%Develeper

Entity-as-applicable—and/or(b) aTransfer-by the Owners to a newhyestablishednew Developer Entity for

which such Owners collectively own and control 100% of the Equity Interests; provided, however, that a
Permitted Transfer does not include any Transfer that results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20%
of the Equity Interests in the Development Business or Developer Entity.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement and expiring on the
earlier to occur of: (a) the é&t&by—wh&eh—openmg date listed in the Development Schedule for the last
Center you are required to open-the ; - : s e; or (b) the
date this Agreement is effectively termmated—for—aﬂy—re&soﬂ

“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary-Gineladingbyjudicial-award,—order—or

deeree);, assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of:

(a) this Agreement (or any interest therein);
(b) the area development rights granted by this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(c) the business—eondueted-byDevelopment Business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or any
interest therein); or

(d) an Equity Interest in the Development Business or Developer Entity—(ineladingpublie-and private
offerings);;

including by: merger or consolidation;—by; judicial award, order or decree; issuance of additional Equity

Interests in-the DeveloperEntity—or-by(including public and private offerings): foreclosure of a security

interest by a lender; or operation of Law, will or a trust upon thean Owner’s death ef-an-Owner-of-the

DeveloperEntity-(including via the Laws of intestate succession).

2. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS. Subject to the terms and-conditions—of this Agreement, we
hereby grant you the right and obhgatlon to develop, open and operate each of the Centers referredllsted to
in the Development Schedule : § 4 3 v

Agreement does not grant you any rlghts or hcenses to use our Intellectual Property

3. TERRITORIAL PROTECTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. During the Term we will not develop or
operate, or license a third party to develop or operate, a Center or Satellite Office that is physiealiy-located
withinin the Development Territory other than: (a) any Center or Satellite Office that is operating, under
development, or for which a franchise agreement or Satellite Office addendum has been executed, in each
case as of the Effective Date, and that is (or will be) located withirin the Development Territory; and (b)

any Center or Satellite Office otherwise permitted by this Section-in-econnection-with-Aequisitions.. At any
time during the Term we reserve the right to engage in Acquisitions;—even—if—-as—a that involve, or

subsequently result eilaﬂ—Aquc&srt}oﬂ—eﬂ%er—mor%eompet&W%b&smessesm conversion of the acquired or

acquiring s g = ; 4 andcompany’s outlets to
BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER” outlets even 1f those outlets are located withinin the
Development Territory. We also reserve the right to sell, and license third parties to sell, competitive or
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identical goods and services (including under the Marks) through Alternative Channels of Distribution,
irrespective of whether the sales take place in the Development Territory.

4. DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS

4.1. Development Schedule. You must develop, open and operate all Centers referred-tolisted in the
Development Schedule. Satellite Centers are not counted for purposes of determining your
compliance with the Development Schedule. You must develop and open each Center in strict
compliance with the opening dates set forth in the Development Schedule. We may, in our sole
discretion, extend the time periods listed in the Development Schedule, but only if you demonstrate
to our reasonable satisfaction you used best efforts in attempting to comply with your development
obligations and the need for additional time is due to unforeseeable delays and not due to your
neglect, misconduct or lack of funding. The opening date listed in the Development Schedule for a
given Center may be earlier than the opening date required under the terms of the associated
Franchise Agreement. In order to comply with the Development Schedule; you must open each
Center by the opening date listed in the Development Schedule even if such date is earlier than the
opening date required by the associated Franchise Agreement.

4.2. Reasonableness of Development Schedule. You represent that you: (a) have conducted your own
independent investigation and analysis of the prospects for development of the Centers in the
Development Territory; (b) approve the Development Schedule as being reasonable and viable; and
(c) recognize that any breach of the Development Schedule is a material breach of this Agreement.

4.2.4.3. Site Selection. All Centers you develop pursuant to this Agreement must be located in the

Development Territory. You must select athe specific site withinthe Development-Territory-for each

Center in compliance with our then-current site selection criteria. EaechWe must approve the site you

seleet-is—subjeet-to—ourpriorapprovalfor each Center in accordance with the applicable Franchise
Agreement.

4.3.4.4. Franchise Agreements. You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Center. You must
sign the Initial Franchise Agreement for your first (1*) Center at the time you sign this Agreement.

We will not review or approve a proposed site until you sign the applieableassociated Franchise
Agreement-for-the-propesed-site-. Each Franchise Agreement shall be our then-current form of-Best
In—Class—FEducation—Center_Franchise Agreement, the terms of which may vary materially and
substantially from the terms of the Initial Franchise Agreement. The development fee includes and is
deemed to satisfy the Initial Franchise Fee imposed under each Franchise Agreement executed
pursuant to this Agreement. You have no right to construct or operate a Center until the parties have
signed thea Franchise Agreement and all ancillary agreements for that Center. You must develop,
open and operate each Center in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and the Manual.

4.4.4.5. Additional LeeationsCenters. You may not develop any Center other than the Centers listed in
the Development Schedule unless we, in our sole discretion, permit you to enter into a new area
development agreement, which will be upon such terms that we specify, after you develop all
Centers listed in the Development Schedule.

5. DEVELOPMENT FEE. At the time you sign this Agreement, you must pay us the development fee set
forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A", which is calculated as the sum of the total aggregate Initial
Franchise Fees for all Centers listed in the Development Schedule. The development fee is fully earned and
nonrefundable upon execution of this Agreement.

6. AREA-DEVELOPER-AS ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a
complete and accurate list of your Owners. Upon eurrequest, you must previdesend us-with a resolution of
the Developer Entity authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of %he—Develeper—Enﬂ-ty—sns
organizational documents and a current Certificate of Good Standing -
You may form a separate Entity to enter into each Franchise Agreement provided that: (a) the Person or
Persons owning the Equity Interests (and the percentage of the Equity Interests owned) in each such Entity
must be the same Person or Persons owning the Equity Interests (with the same percentage of the Equity
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Interests owned) in the Developer Entity; and (b) each such Entity guarantees the performance of all other
Entities forrned under the author1ty of this §6 A—l—l—ehreetEach Owner and indireet-Ownersthe spouse of the
useseach Owner who is a natural

Person must sign a Franchrse Owner Agreement

TRANSFERS
7.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure to the

benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement, provided that

we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the performance of our obligations
under this Agreement up to the effective date of the assignment.

7.2. By You. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to you and the Owners. We
are granting vou area development rights in reliance upon the character, skill, attitude, business
ability and financial eapaeityresources of you and your Owners. TherefoereBecause this Agreement is
a personal services contract, neither you nor any Owner may engage in a Transfer (other than a
Permitted Transfer) without our prior weitten—approval. Any Transfer (other than a Permitted
Transfer) without our approval shall-beis void and eenstituteconstitutes a breach of this Agreement.
We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of a proposed Transfer if all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

(a) we believe the proposed transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial

resources to develop, own and operate all of the remaining Centers to be developed under this
Agreement and meets our minimum criteria for area developer franchisees;

(b) vou and your Owners and affiliates are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements:

(c) the transferee’s owners successfully complete, or make arrangements to attend, the initial
training program;

¢)(d) the transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of area development agreement
(unless we, in our sole discretion, instruct you to assign this Agreement to the transferee),
except that: (ai) the Term shall be the Term remaining under this Agreement; (bii) the transferee
need not pay a separate development fee; and (eiii) the Development Schedule and
Development Territory shall be the same Development Schedule and Development Territory
specified in this Agreement (modified to reflect the development obligations satisfied prior to
the Transfer);

&9(c) _you assign all Franchise Agreements to the transferee in accordance with the transfer
provisions under each such Franchise Agreement—, including payment of any transfer fee
imposed under each such Franchise Agreementy;;

() _you and your Owners sign a General Release—ef—all—elaims—arising—before—or
copernpamr s i e e e

(2) we choose not to exercise our right of first refusal described in §7.5; and
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7.3.

e#b(h)you or the transferring Owner, as applicable, and the transferee satisfy amyall other
conditions we reasonably require as a condition to our approval of the Transfer.

You may not: (a) transfer less than yeur—entireremainingarea—all development rights remaining
under this Agreement (i.e., you may not retain the right to develop any Center); or (b) transfer your

area—development rights to multiple transferees. Our consent to a Transfer shall not constitute a
waiver of any Claims we may have against the transferorsnershall-it-be-deemed-a—waivereof or our
right to demand the transferee fully-comply with all terms of the area development agreement.

Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval, but vou
must: (a) give us at least 10 days’ prior written—notice; and (b) upon our request, cause awyEntity
that-was-the former Developer Entity #mmediatelypriorto-the PermittedTransferto sign a corporate
guarantee in the format we require to secure performance of the new Developer Entity’s financial
obligations under all Definitive Agreements (if the Permitted Transfer results in a new Developer
Entity). You and the Owners (and the transferee) agree to sign all documents we reasonably request
to effectuate and document the Permitted Transfer.

7.4.

7.5.

Owner Death or Disability-ef-an-Owner. Within 180 days after thean Owner’s death or permanent
disability—ef—an—Owner, the Owner’s ewnership—interestEquity Interest in yewthe Development

Busmess or th%fﬁaﬂelm%as—appheab}%Develooer Ent1tV must be assrgnedTranSferred to_another

eead-r&eﬁs—eﬂ’erson in comnhance w1th 87 2 &nless—ﬂ&%&ss*g&maﬁ—q-&ahﬁes—&s—a—?elﬁﬁed%&lﬁfeﬁ

Eorpurpeses-ofthisSeetionsanor §7.3. An Owner is deemed to have a “permanent disability” ealy-if
thePersenthe/she has a medical or mental problem that prevents the-Perserhim/her from substantially

complying with his-er-/her obligations under this Agreement for a eentinuous-period of at least three

(3) months.

Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner desireswish to engage in a Transfer, you or the
Owner, as applicable, must obtain and send us} a bona-fide offer executed by the purchaser after
completion of due diligence. We have 30 days after receipt of the offer to decide whether to purchase
the interest for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the offer(hewever;, except we
may substitute cash for any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer).. If we notify you
within the 30-day period that we intend to purchase the interest, you or the Owner, as applicable
must sell the interest to us. We will have an additional 3860 days to prepare for closing. We-will-be
entitled-to—reecetvefrom—youYou or the Owner, as applicable, must provide us with all customary
representations and warranties given-by-you-{asregarding the seHertitle to and condition of the assets)
or Equity Interest that we purchase, or the-Owner{as-the seler-ofthe-ownership-interesty-or-at our
electionoption, the representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not exercise our
right of first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the purchaser
pursuant to the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of §7.2-, including our approval of the
transferee}—Hewewver—if. If the sale is not completed within 120 days after deliveryefwe receive the
offerte—us, or there is a material change to the terms of sale, we will again have the right of first
refusal specified in this Section. Qur right of first refusal shall not apply to a Permitted Transfer.




8.1. By Us. We may terminate this Agreement effective %Gdays—after—gwmg—yeﬂ—w&tteﬂunon dehverv of
a notice of ¢h S Fou
termination—-will-end, for any of the followmg reasons, all of Wthh constltute materlal events of
default and “good cause” for termination, and without opportunity to cure except for any cure period
expressly set forth below:

(a) if we terminate any Definitive Agreement due to a default committed by you or one of your
Owners or affiliates; or

(b) if you (or an Owner) breach any provision of this Agreement and fail to cure within 30 days
after receipt of a default notice.

8.2. Bv Mutual Agreement. If vou and we mutually agree in writing to terminate this Agreement, any
notice or cure period that might otherwise apply shall be deemed waived.

9. EFFECT OF TERMINATION. Termination of this Agreement ends all your rights and development
obligations under this Agreement, including WAFHOUTF—EIMITATION,—your interests in the

Development Territory and right to OPEN-ADBDITIONAL-CENTERSsion new Franchise Agreements or
open new Centers. We will not refund any portion of the development fee.

9.10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any Dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be resolved
pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions in the Initial Franchise Agreement. All such dispute resolution
provisions are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement.

10.11. REPRESENTATIONS.

10.1.11.1 Corporate Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and
warrant to us that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your
obligations hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any ether
agreement to which you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your affiliate’s)
assets may-beare bound; (b) violate any order, writ;-injunction, decree, judgment or ruling of anya
Governmental Authority; or (¢) violate any applicable Law. If the developer is an Entity, then you
and your Owners also jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the Developer Entity
is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its formation
and has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform eaeh—ef-its
obligations hereunder; and (b) the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly
authorized by all requisite corporate action and this Agreement shall-eenstituteconstitutes the legal,

valid and binding obligation of- ity, and shall-beis enforceable against, the
Developer Entity in accordance with its terms.

10.2.11.2. General Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant

to us that: (a) other areca developers may operate under different forms of agreement and our
obligations and rights with respect to area developers differs materially in certain circumstances; and
(b) we may negotiate terms or offer concessions to other area developers and we have no obligation
to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

10.3.11.3. Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and vour Owners jointly and severally represent and
warrant to us that, to the best of vour knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any

Owner is subject to being “blocked” under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any Owner,
nor any of their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of anyan Equity
Interest in yeuthe Development Business or Developer Entity) or related parties is, or has ever been:

1) a terrorist or suspected terrorist within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified

by name-(er, alias, pseudonym-e¥, nickname) or address on any Terrorist List, including-en the list
of “Specially Designated Nationals” or “Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury
Department’s  Office  of Foreign Assets Control  (texts currently available at
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www.home.treasury.gov); and (¢) you and the Owners are in compliance—with, and shalwill
continue to comply, with; the Anti-Terrorism Law and all other U.S. Laws (either-currently in effect,

or enacted in the future)-prehibiting, that prohibit corrupt business practices, money laundering or
the aid or support of Persons who conspire to commit acts of terror against any Person or
government-that-are-in-effeet-within-the United-States-ef Ameriea. The foregoing representations
and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and warranties for the duration of the franchise
relationship. Accordingly, you agree—te—netify—us—must immediately in—writingnotify us of the
occurrence of amyan event or the-development of amya circumstance that might render any of the
foregoing representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

H-12. GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1.12.1. Governing Law. This Agreement and the franchise relationship shal-beare governed by the
laws—of-theStateLaws of Washington (without reference to its principles of conflicts of law);, but
any law-efthe-State-of Washington Law that regulates the offer and sale of franchises or business
opportunities or governs the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its
jurisdictional requirements are met independently without reference to this Section.

11.2.12.2. _ Severability. Each section and-subseetion-of this Agreement;- (and any-portion thereof;shal
be-considered) is severable.

12 aivers. Each art may waive an lication im n th th r art 1n riting. Waivers;

deemed to have waived or 1mQalred any of its contractual rights under this Agreement—(2 including
the right to require strict compliance with all terms of this Agreement or terminate this Agreement
due to the other party’s failure to comply with such terms}, by virtue of: (a) any custom or practice of
the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement; (b) any failure, refusal or neglect by eithera
party to exercise any right under this Agreement or require the other party to strictly comply with its
obligations under this Agreement; (c) our waiver, failure or refusal to exercise any of our rights with
respect to other area—developers; or (d) our acceptance of paymentspayment from you after your
breach.

12.4. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, vou must make a timely written request
for approval. Our approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval within the required period
of time, we shall be deemed to have disapproved your request

11.4.12.5. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed-te-be in breach
of this Agreement if such party’s failure to perform its obligations results from an event of Force
Majeure; provided, however, that an event of Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure to
perform for more than 180 days. If the period of non-performance exceeds 180 days from receipt of
notice of the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability to perform has not been affected may
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving writteanotice of termination to the other party.

11.5.12.6. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their respective
executors, administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this Agreement is
intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a party to this
Agreement.

11.6.12.7.  Imntegration. THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CHANGED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN

DOCUMENT SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. Any email or—ether informal electronic
communication shall not be deemed to modify this Agreement unless it is signed by both parties and
specifically states it is intended to modify this Agreement. The attachment(s) are part of this
Agreement, which; together with any Amendments or Addenda executed on or after the Effective
Date; constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties;-and-there. There are no other
oral or written understandings or agreements between us-and-youthe parties about the subject matter
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of this Agreement. Any representations not specifically contained in this Agreement made before
entering into this Agreement do not survive after the signing of this Agreement. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended to disclaim any of the representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure
Document. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waivin

any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement or (b)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person

acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

11.7.12.8. Covenant of Good Faith. [f applicable Law implies into this Agreement a covenant of good
faith and fair dealing, the covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that-are-inconsistent with
the express terms ef-this-Agreementhereof. This Agreement—, and the relationship of the parties
inherent in this Agreement), grants us discretion to make decisions, take actions and/or refrain from
taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under this Agreement that may
favorably or adversely affect your interests. We will use our judgment in exercising the discretion
based on our assessment of our own interests and balancing those interests against the interests of
our franchisees—(ineluding—ourselves—and-our—affiliatesifapplieable);, but without considering the

individual interests of you or any other partiesar-franchisee.
11.8.12.9.  Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are

cumulative and no exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this
Agreement will preclude any other right or remedy available under this Agreement or by lawLaw.

11.9.12.10. __ Survival. All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration
or Transfer of this Agreement—, or the Transfer of an ewnership—interestEquity Interest in the
businessDevelopment Business or Developer Entity}, shall continue in full force and effect
subsequent to and notwithstanding its termination, expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied
in full or by their nature expire.

11.10.12.11. _Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define,
limit or construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the
Sections contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this
Agreement refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this
Agreement is applicable to one or more Persons, and the singular usage includes the plural and the
masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the possessive.

11.11.12.12. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

11.12.12.13. NetieeNotices. All notices and notifications given under this Agreement must be in writing
and must be provided in accordance with the Notice Provision of the Initial Franchise Agreement.

11.13.12.14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.
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The parties te-thisAgreementbelow have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware
corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

YOU (If you are an Entity): YOU (If you are not an Entity):

a(n) Name:
By:
Name: Name:
Title:
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ATTACHMENT "A"
TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS

A. Area Developer Details-

Name of area developer: [ ]

Is the area developer one or more natural persensPersons signing in their individual capacity? Yes:
No:

Type of Entity and State of Formation* (if applicable): [ ]

* If the area developer is a business Entity, each natwral—personPerson holding a direct or indirect
ownership-interestlquity Interest in the businessDeveloper Entity, and spouse of each such personPerson
who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement concurrently with the execution of this
Agreement.

The following table includes the full name of each natural-persenPerson holding a direct or indirect
ownership—interestEquity Interest in the area—developer—franchise (Development Business or the—area
developer—businessDeveloper Entity—, as applicable), along with a description of their ewnership
interestEquity Interest.

. . Direct or Indirect
Owner’s Name % Ovwnershipllquity Interest . . X
(if indirect, describe nature of interest)

Notice Address:
[ 1
| |

Attention:

Email:

B. Fees:
e The Initial Franchise Fee shall be: (a) $45,000 for the first Center to be developed pursuant to this
Agreement; (b) $40,000 for the second Center to be developed pursuant to this Agreement; and (c)
$35,000 per Center for each additional Center to be developed pursuant to this Agreement.

e The development fee shall be $
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C. Development Ferritory—Schedule

You agree-temust comply with the following minimum development obligations as specified in §4 of the
Agreement:

NUMBER OF CENTERS OPENED CUMULATIVE NUMBER OF CENTERS

DEVELOPMENT PERIOD ENDING*
- DURING DEVELOPMENT PERIOD OPENED AND IN OPERATION

1 year after Effective Date

2 years after Effective Date

3 years after Effective Date

4 years after Effective Date

S years after Effective Date

6 years after Effective Date

7 years after Effective Date

8 years after Effective Date

9 years after Effective Date

10 years after Effective Date

Total Number of Centers to be Developed: | ]

* The required opening date for a given Center is the last day of the Development Period in which the
Center must open.

D. Development Territory

The Development Territory consists of, and shall be limited to, the following geographic area, as may be
further depicted on a map attached below or on the following page:

[ ]

If the boundaries that define the Development Territory change during the

Term, the boundaries of your Development Territory will remain unaffected and will continue to be defined
by the boundaries that were in effect as of the Effective Date (as may be depicted on a map attached below or
on the following page).

[Insert Map (if applicable)]
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EXHIBIT "E"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL

[See Attached]
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Part A (Current Franchisees)

EXHIBIT "F"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF FRANCHISEES

The following table lists franchisees that were open as of December 31, 26232024,

FRANCHISEES OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
California Dublin FoBeDeterminedOperating remotely 925-226-8848 Monika Sharma
California Elk Grove 7811 Laguna Blvd, Ste. 165 916-525-7274 Jenny Tran

~aliforni . . : . | 12346 : T
California Pleasanton Fe-Be DeterminedOperating remotely 925 587-9449 Shwetali Jakate
California San Francisco 780 Broadway 415-333-9168 Kevin Lee
California San Francisco 4451 Mission St, Ste. 101 415-333-9168 Yan Fang Chen
California San Jose 1701 Lundy Ave, Ste. 201 408-441-8462 Yau Chor Yeung
California Sunnyvale 704-744724 South Wolfe Rd (669) 257-0505 Rahul Jain

~aFformiat - NINEY it Rd_Ste 2C —

~aliforni ; ;g - | E;; 5 3186 1 g]j
California Palo Alto 490 California Ave, Ste 100 (650) 272-6581 Shan Zhao

Florida Brandon 1221 Kingsway Rd 813-713-9874 Rajitha Nidadavolu
Florida®** Land O’Lakes Operating remotely 813-406-4220 Rajitha Nidadavolu
Florida Tampa 10323 Cross Creek Blvd, Ste C 813-406-4220 Rajitha Nidadavolu

Georgia Milton 13920 Hwy 9 N, Ste 110 (678) 332-2100 Chris Ruttle

Georgia Johns Creek 3875 Johns Creek Pkwy, Ste D (678) 332-2100 Chris Ruttle
Maryland Ellicott City 3570 St Johns Ln 410-988-2545 Aarti Bhargava

Nevada Reno 10855 Double R Blvd, Ste B2 775-229-8255 Priya Mani
New Jersey West Windsor 64 Princeton Hightstown Rd, Ste 6 609-799-0050 Sehr Fatima

Ohio Mason 5412 Cedar Village Dr. 513-445-9876 Lakshmi Vytla

Ohio Mayfield Heights 5869-Mayfield RdOperating remotely 440-459-2197 Daniel Akben

Ohio Solon 34186 Aurora Rd 440-459-2197 Daniel Akben

Texas Allen Operating remotely 972-656-9242 Su Subramanian

Texas Bee Cave 12400 State Hwy 71 W, Ste. 505 737-484-1370 Susan Salazar

Texas Cedar Park 12160 W Parmer Lane, Ste 100 512-375-3245 Madhumati Junnare

Texas Cypress 12706 Grant Rd 346-704-0547 Veronica Reyna

Texas Cypress 7955 Barker Cypress Rd 832-409-1031 Veronica Reyna

Texas Katy 4950 Katy Gaston Rd. 832-437-2316 Ira Giri
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FRANCHISEES OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Texas McKinney 1800 South Independence Pkwy, Ste. 130 972-656-9242 Su Subramanian
Texas Plano 141 W Spring Creek Pkwy, Ste. 433 469-847-0238 ”G"H*gohneg“gl\zla"”g
Texas Richmond 18440 W Airport Blvd 908-500-3954 Ira Giri
Texas Spring 375 Sawdust Rd 832-422-9398 Veronica Reyna
Washington Bellevue 13219 NE 20th St, Ste 203 425-453-9532 Paige Wilson
Washington Bothell 20806 Bothell-Everett Hwy, Ste. 101 425-368-3069 Surendra Mohan
Washington Issaquah 1505 NW Gilman Blvd, Ste. 6 425-272-1328 Cambridge Liu
Washington®** Issaquah 2550 NE Park Dr. 425-272-1328 Cambridge Liu
Washington Redmond 16981 Redmond Way 425 900-1545 Sanjeev Gupta
Washington*#* Redmond 10735 Cedar Park Crescent NE 425-292-1838 Sanjeev Gupta
Washington®** Sammamish 825120 228th Ave. NE 34;%;??; 23 Cambridge Liu
* * These outlets are “satellite locations” as described in Item 20 of the Disclosure Document.

** These franchisees are also area developers that committed to open multiple franchised businesses under the
terms of an area development agreement.

The following table lists franchisees with signed franchise agreements that were not open as of December 31,

20232024,
FRANCHISEES NOT OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024
State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
6787 York Castle Ct
T Fri 469-440-962 Manjul 1
exas TiSCO Frisco, Texas 75035 69-440-9623 anjula Vedala
Washington Mill Creek 4008 133rd St SE 425-332-3956 Surandra Mohan

* These franchisees are also area developers that have committed to open multiple franchised businesses under
the terms of an area development agreement.

tart B (Former Franchisees Who Left System During Prior Fiscal Year)

State City Current Business Phone or Last Known Home e W)
Phone
California Anaheim HillsEremen 714-912-4148¢510)1468-0436 Olga JollyHensChau
California lerranee Anaheim Hil 310y210-4030714-912-4148 VanitaAgsarwalOlga Jolly
FleridaCalifornia [upertinolandOaks 8131454-7852408-768-1335 Sangeetha PadmanMNirjharShah
Herida®*Californiqd Los AngelesTampa 323-461-1512¢8433454-7852 Nirfhar-ShahThiThi Ma
OhioCalifornia San DiegoMayﬁe}d 858-866-6446330)-64+-0H5 Manoj JaiswalHaishanPeiris
- Sobebes
OhieCalifornia San JoseSelen 330)64-061H5408-622-8186 Pik Shan FungHaishanPeiris
OregonNew Jersey BeaverterMoorestow 503y 8F8-8867856-924-6063 KarnikaFhaveriRuchika Arora
FexasNew Jersey HewstonSouth Orangg 832672-4322973-327-9775 Carole-SaidAlissa Gardenhire
Texas toundReekCedar Par €512)520-25214-496-6914 SamathaBurlaMadhumati Junnare
Fexas Spring (214 718-2505 Yemmmi-bemma
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If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
| franchise system.
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EXHIBIT "G"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[See Attached]
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EXHIBIT “G”-1
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

INTERIM UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS/HER
OPINION WITH REGARD TO THE CONTENT OR FORM.
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BiC Franchise System Corporation

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2024

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts $57,611.77
Accounts Receivable $23,991.25
Other Current Assets $0.00
Total Current Assets $81,603.02
Other Assets $8,668.00
TOTAL ASSETS $90,271.02
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities $10,903.02
Total Liabilities $10,903.02
Equity
Owner's Equity 100,000.00
Retained Earnings -21,270.54
Net Income 638.54
Total Equity $79,368.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $90,271.02

Exhibit F-3

Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Balance Sheet

BiC Franchise System Corporation
As of March 31, 2025

DISTRIBUTION ACCOUNT TOTAL
Assets
Current Assets
Bank Accounts $8,431.55
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable (A/R) 36,588.00
Total for Accounts Receivable $36,588.00
Other Current Assets
Undepsited Funds
Total for Other Current Assets 0
Total for Current Assets $45,019.55
Fixed Assets
Other Assets
Deferred Tax Asset 5,015.00
Security deposits 2,548.00
Total for Other Assets $7,563.00
Total for Assets $52,582.55
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable (A/P) 10,495.00
Total for Accounts Payable $10,495.00
Credit Cards
Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue - Current 6,269.00
Due to related parties -$17,848.08
Income Tax Payable 318.00
Payables 0
Brand Development Fee Payable 753.72
Curriculum License Fee 92254
Remote Learning Platform License Fee 6,319.00
Technology Fee 1,550.00
Total for Payables $9,545.26
Total for Other Current Liabilities -$1,715.82
Total for Current Liabilities $8,779.18
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Revenue 17,462.00
Total for Long-term Liabilities $17,462.00
Total for Liabilities $26,241.18
Equity
Retained Earnings -12,042.26
Net Income -61,616.37
Owner's Equity $100,000.00
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BiC Franchise System Corporation

Profit and Loss
January - March, 2024

TOTAL
Income
Royalty Income 36,015.12
Total Income $36,015.12
GROSS PROFIT $36,015.12
Expenses
Advertising & Marketing 807.87
General Business Expenses
Business Licenses & Permits 2,478.08
Conference & Event Fees 1,895.00
Memberships & Subscriptions 9,250.85
Office Expenses -0.64
Overhead Expense Reimbursement 6,225.99
Professional Development 4,750.00
Total General Business Expenses 24,599.28
Legal & professional services
Accounting fees 2,250.00
Legal Fees 4,890.00
Total Legal & professional services 7,140.00
Travel
Airfare 985.11
Hotel & Lodging 1,603.76
Meals & Entertainment 79.61
Vehicle Rental & Ride Share 160.95
Total Travel 2,829.43
Total Expenses $35,376.58
NET OPERATING INCOME $638.54
NET INCOME $638.54
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Balance Sheet

BiC Franchise System Corporation
As of March 31, 2025

DISTRIBUTION ACCOUNT TOTAL
Total for EQuity $26,341.37
Total for Liabilities and Equity $52,582.55
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Profit and Loss

BiC Franchise System Corporation
January 1-March 31, 2025

DISTRIBUTION ACCOUNT TOTAL
Income
Renewal Fee 7,500.00
Royalty Income 57,176.67
Total for Income $64,676.67
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit $64,676.67
Expenses
Advertising & Marketing 21,131.67
Commissions & fees 2,000.00
General Business Expenses 0
Bank Fees & Service Charges 3.99
Computer & Internet 5,053.95
Conference & Event Fees 7,760.00
Meals & Entertainment 1,098.65
Memberships & Subscriptions 23,438.15
Office Expenses 1,384.16
Office Supplies 41.09
Overhead Expense Reimbursement 27,709.23
Total for General Business Expenses $66,489.22
Legal & professional services 0
Legal Fees 3,000.00
Total for Legal & professional services $3,000.00
Outside Service 23,122.28
Travel 0
Airfare 2,075.11
Hotel & Lodging 3,802.91
Meals & Entertainment 3,045.25
Parking & Other Miscellaneous 403.12
Vehicle Rental & Ride Share 1,223.48
Total for Travel $10,549.87
Total for Expenses $126,293.04
Net Operating Income -$61,616.37

Qther Income
Other Expenses
Net Other Income 0

Net Income -$61,616.37

Exhibit F-7 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



EXHIBIT “G”-2
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BIC Franchise System Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report
And Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2024 and Period from February 10, 2023 to
December 31, 2023
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Metwally CPA PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
2901 Corporate Cir, Flower Mound, Texas 75028

Cell: 214-200-5434 (Mohamed Metwally) Mmetwally @ metwallycpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Stockholders of
BIC Franchise System Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIC Franchise System Corporation {the Company), which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the related statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31,
2023 and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of BIC Franchise System Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of BIC Franchise System Corporation and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 5 to the financial statements, the Company has extensive transactions and relationships with its
affiliates. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements may not be indicative of the results of operations that
would have been achieved if the Company had operated without such affiliations. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about BIC Franchise System Corporation’s ability to continue
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not abselute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
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from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considerad material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticsm throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures indude examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disdosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the drocumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectivensess of BIC
Franchise System Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Concude whethear, in our judgment, there are condifions or events, considered in the aggregate, that ralse

substantial doubt about BIC Franchise System Corporation's ability to continue as a golng concern for a
reasonable period of fme.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal contral related matters that we identifled
during the audt,

Metnlly cPA PLLL

Metwally CPA PLLC
Flower Mound, Texas
May 27,2025
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 4,056 S 58,720

Accounts receivable 84,744 18,219

Due from related parties 38,835 -

Other assets 2,548 -
Total Current Assets 130,233 76,939
Non-Current Assets

Deferred income taxes 3,539 8,668
Total Non-Current Assets 3,539 8,668
Total Assets S 133,772 S 85,607

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 10,813 s 6,878

Due to related parties 12,747 -

Deferred revenue, current portion 6,269 -
Total Current Liahilities 29,829 6,878
Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion 17,462 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 17,462 -
Total Liahilities 47,291 6,878
Stockholders' Equity

Common stock with par value 0.01 per share

10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding

Additional paid-in capital 100,000 100,000

Accumulated deficit {13,519) {21,271)
Total Stockholders' Equity 86,481 78,729
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity S 133,772 $ 85,607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Statements of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2024 and Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

2024 2023

Revenues

Royalties S 236,521 S 61,905

Other franchise related fees 56,550 19,823

Brand fund income 26,599 10,319

Transfer fees 21,100 27,500

Initial franchise fees 16,269 5,000
Total Revenues 357,039 124,547
Operating Expenses

General and administrative 124,392 37,020

Marketing and advertising 79,694 22,291

Legal and professional 83,877 16,826

Contractors 55,877 78,349
Total Operating Expenses 343,840 154,486
Operating Income / (Loss) 13,199 {29,939)
Other Income (Expense)

Income tax benefit (expense) (5,447) 8,668
Net Income / (Loss) S 7,752 S (21,271)

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Statements of Stockholders Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2024 and Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Common Stock - No Par Value Additional Total
v Accumulated ;
Paid-In . . Stockholders
Shares Amount . Deficit )
Capital Equity
Balance At February 10, 2023 10,000,000 3 “ 3 w 3 " 3 «
Net income (loss) - (21,271) {21,271)
Stockholders' contributions - 100,000 - 100,000
Balance At December 31,2023 10,000,000 $ - % 100,000 $ (21,271) S 78,729
Net income {loss) - - 7,752 7,752
Balance At December 31, 2024 10,000,000 $ - $ 100,000 S (13,519) S 86,481

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2024 and Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

2024 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income S 7,752 S (21,271)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Deferred {income)/expenses taxes 5,447 {8,668)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (66,525) {18,219)
Due from related parties (38,885) -
Other assets (2,548) -
Accounts payable 3,616 6,878
Due to related parties 12,747 -
Deferred revenue 23,731 -
Net Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities {54,664) (41,280)

Investing Activities
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities - -

Financing Activities

Stockholders' contributions - 100,000
Net Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities - 100,000
Net Change In Cash And Cash Equivalent During The Year/period (54,664) 58,720

Cash and cash equivalent - beginning of the year/period 58,720
Cash And Cash Equivalent - End of The Year/Period S 4,056 3 58,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
December 31, 2024 and 2023
Notes To Financial Statements

1. COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

BIC Franchise System Corporation (the Company) was formed in the state of Delaware on February 10, 2023, for the
purpose of offering franchise opportunities to entrepreneurs who want to develop and operate a Best-in-Class Center.
The Company offers qualified individuals the right to operate an education center that provides school-aged children
with supplemental learning opportunities in the areas of Mathematics and English as well as SAT and ACT preparation
courses under the “Best in Class” mark.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in understanding and evaluating the
Company’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company's
management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements.

A. Basis of Accounting

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”).

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include bank accounts and cash in transit for bank deposits
with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

C. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable arise primarily from royalty fees, technology fees and brand funds and are carried at their estimated
collectible amounts, net of any estimated allowances for credit losses. The measurement and recognition of credit losses
involves the use of judgement. The management's assessment of expected credit losses includes consideration of
current and expected economic conditions, market and industry factors affecting the Company’s customers ({including
their financial condition), the aging of account balances, historical credit loss experience, customer concentration, and
customer creditworthiness. Management evaluates its experience with historical losses and then applies this historical
loss ratio to financial assets with similar characteristics. The Company’s historical loss ratio or its determination of risk
pools may be adjusted for changes in customer, economy, market or other circumstances. The Company may also
establish an allowance for credit losses for specific receivables when it is probable that the receivable will not be
collected, and the loss can be reasonably estimated. Amounts are written off against the allowance when they are
considered to be unccllectible, and reversal of previously reserved amounts are recognized if a specifically reserved item
is settled for an amount exceeding the previous estimate.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 the allowance for credit losses is considered immaterial and accordingly, no
allowance for credit losses has been recorded.
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D. Federal Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes utilizing the liability method recognizing taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized
in the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. The deferred taxes represent the future tax return consequences
of those differences, which will either be deductible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in the period when the new rate is enacted.

E. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions. At various times during the vear,
the total amount on deposit might exceed the $250,000 limit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC). The Company believes that it mitigates credit risk by depositing cash with financial institutions having high credit
ratings.

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of our Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, costs, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. It is at least reasonably possible that a change in the estimates
will occur in the near term.

G. Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements in order to conform to the 2024 presentation.
There were no changes to previously issued financial statements as a result of the reclassifications.

H. Advertising and Marketing
Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the year incurred.
I.  Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognhized in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company
adopted ASU 2021-02 Franchisors - Revenue from Contracts with Customers {Subtopic 952-606) effective with the
application of ASC Topic 606. The ASU provides a practical expedient to ASU2014-09 Revenue from contracts with
Customers {Topic 606). The new guidance allows franchisors to simplify the application of the guidance about identifying
performance obligations for franchisors that perform pre-opening services by allowing a franchisor to account for pre-
opening services as distinct if they are consistent with those included in a predefined list of pre-opening services.

Franchise Fees

The franchise arrangement between the Company and each franchise owner is documented in the form of a franchise
agreement and, in select cases, a development agreement. The franchise arrangement requires the Company as
franchisor to perform various activities to support the brand and does not involve the direct transfer of goeds and
services to the franchise owner as a customer. Activities performed by the Company before opening are distinguished
from the franchise license. Therefore, the Company recognizes franchise fees as two performance obligations. The
nature of the Company’s promise in granting the franchise license is to provide the franchise owner with access to the
brand’s intellectual property over the term of the franchise arrangement.
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The transaction price in a standard franchise arrangement consists of {a) franchise/development fees; (b) Marketing,
brand development and royalties Fees and (c) IT Fees; {(d) Annual Conference Fees. The Company utilize ASC 606 five-
steps revenue recognition model as follows:

e Identify the contract with the customer.

¢ |dentify the performance cbligation in the contract.

s Determine the transaction price.

s Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations.

e  Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

The terms of the Company’s franchise agreement will be as follows:

e The Company will grant the right to use the Company name, trademark and system in the franchisee’s franchise
development business.

e The franchisee is obligated to pay a non-refundable initial franchise fee.

s The franchisee is obligated to pay a monthly royalty, marketing, IT, and annual conference fees. Certain other
fees are also cutlined in the agreement.

Franchise revenues are recognized by the Company from the following different sources: The Company recognizes
franchise fees as two (2) performance obligations. The first, pre-opening services, including access to manuals, assistance
in site selection, and initial training, have been determined to be distinct services offered to franchisees. Pre-opening
services are earned over a period of time using an input method of completion based on costs incurred for each
franchisee at the end of each year.

The second, access to the franchise license, has been determined to be distinct. The amount allocated to the franchise
license is earned over time as performance obligations are satisfied due to the continuous transfer of control to the
franchisee. Franchise and development fees are paid in advance of the franchise opening, typically when entering into
a new franchise or development agreement. Fees allocated to the franchise license are recognized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the term of each respective franchise agreement. Initial franchise agreement terms are typically
5 years while successive agreement terms are typically 5 years.

Variable Considerations

Franchise agreements contain variable considerations in the form of royalty fees and brand development (advertising).
These fees are based on franchisee sales and are recorded as revenue and recognized as these services are delivered
because the variable payment relates specifically to the performance obligation of using the license. The Company
collects funds from franchisees to manage the brand level advertising, marketing, and development program. The fee is
based on a percentage of the gross sales less any amount paid towards sales tax, payable monthly.

Contracts Assets and Liabilities Balances

The Company incurs costs that are directly attributable to obtaining a contract, for example, commission fees, broker
fees, and referral fees. Under ASC 606, costs that are directly associated with obtaining a contract are to be capitalized
and recognized over the term of the agreement. Capitalized costs are included in deferred expenses on the
accompanying balance sheet. As such, direct franchise license costs are recognized over the franchise and renewal term,
which is the performance obligation, and is typically the franchise agreement’s term. If a customer is terminated, the
remaining deferred expense will be recognized to expenses.

Deferred revenue consists of the remaining initial franchise fees to be amortized over the life of the franchise
agreements. Deferred revenue is a result of the collection of the initial franchise fee at the time of the signing of the
franchise agreement and will fluctuate each year based on the number of franchise agreements signed.
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Other Income

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023, other income
comprises curriculum License fees, remote learning platform license fees, and technology fees.

J.  Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASU No. 2016-02 — Leases (Topic 842) is effective for the calendar year 2022. The standard requires lessees to
recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for most leases with terms longer than twelve months. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this standard on its financial statements and determined that it doesn’t have any lease that
meet the requirement to recognize a right-of-use asset and liability because the Company doesn’t have any long-term
leases.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses ({Topic 326): Measurements of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13, along with subsequent clarifications and improvements
(collectively, ASC 326), replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in prior U.S. GAAP with a methodology that
instead reflects a current estimate of all expected credit losses on financial assets, including receivables. ASC 326
requires that the Company measure and recognize expected credit losses at the time the asset is recorded, while
considering a broader range of information to estimate credit losses including country specific macroeconomic
conditions that correlate with historical loss experience, delinquency trends and aging behavior of receivables, among
others. ASC 326 is effective for the Company since inception. There was no impact on the Company’s financial
statements as a result of the implementation of this standard.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company maintains its cash balance in U.S. noninterest-bearing transaction accounts which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. On December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company’s cash
balance didn't exceed the FDIC insurance limit.

The Company considers all cash in the bank and investments in highly liquid debt instruments with maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had approximately $4,056 and
$58,720 respectively in cash in its bank accounts.

4, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Rovalty receivable S 15,521 s 13,219
Initial franchise fees receivable 30,000 -
Transfer fee receivable 26,000 5,000
Other franchise-related fees receivable 10,594 -
Brand fund income receivable 2,629 -
Total Accounts Receivable $ 84,744 $ 18,219
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5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BIC Franchise System Corporation and Best in Class Education, LLC are affiliated entities under common ownership. As
of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Company had outstanding receivables from its affiliate amounting to $14,527 and
$0, respectively, representing shared revenue collected on behalf of BIC Franchise System Corporation.

As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Company had outstanding receivables from its owners amounting to $24,358
and S0, respectively. These balances represent amounts due from the owners for obligations incurred during the normal
course of business.

The Company conducts business with Lam’s Tutoring Service, Inc. where the same member of the Company also has an
ownership interest with this Company. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023 the entity has balance due to Lam’s Tutoring
Service, Inc. $12,747 and $0 respectively.

The following is a summary of transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2024 and period from
February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023:

Expenses 2024 2023

Brand development fees expense - related party S 30474 S 10,319
Curriculum license fee expense - related party 8,760 3,491
Remote learning platform license fee expanse - related party 35,772 14,182
Technology Fee expanse - related party 9,450 2,150
Overhead expenses - related party 55,877 78,349
Total $ 140,332 S 108,491

6. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Disaggregation of Revenue

Information regarding revenues disaggregated by the timing of when goods and services are transferred consist of the
following for the year ended December 31, 2024 and period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023:

2024 2023
Revenue recognized over time S 16,269 S -
Revenue recognized at a point in time 340,769 124,547
Total Revenue S 357,038 $ 124,547

Contract Balances

The following table provides information about the change in the franchise contract liability balances the during year
ended December 31, 2024 and period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 respectively. Franchise contract
liability is included in deferred revenue on the accompanying balance sheets.

2024 2023
Beginning balance S - S »
Additional deferred revenue 40,000 -
Revenue recognized — additional deferred revenue (16,269) -
Deferred revenue 23,731 -
Less: current maturities 6,269 -
Deferred revenue, net of current maturities $ 17,462 $ -
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7. ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Advertising costs for year ended December 31, 2024 and the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023, were
$79,694 and $22,291, respectively. These costs were expensed as incurred

8. STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY

Under the articles of incorporation, the total number of common shares of stock that the Corporation shall have the
authority to issue is 10,000,000 shares with a par value of $0.01 per share, none were issued or outstanding. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the entity had $100,000 and $100,000 respectively in additional paid-in capital.

9. INCOME TAXES

The deferred tax assets in the accompanying balance sheets include the following components:

2024 2023

Deferred income taxes S 3,539 s 8,668

The Company's 2024 and 2023 effective income tax rate is 23% federal for 2024 and 21% federal for 2023 and 0% state
for both years. The statutory Federal rate for both years is 21%. Federal taxable income is increased by the effect of
nondeductible meals. The Company had income tax expenses of $5,447 and income tax benefits of $8,668 for year
ended December 31, 2024 and period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 respectively.

On December 31, 2024, under the benefit for loss approach, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards
totaling $18,257 of which $18,257 may be offset against future income.

No state tax provision has been recorded for Florida, as income falls below the exemption threshold of $50,000. Similarly,
no provision has been made for the Ohio Commercial Activity Tax, California Franchise Tax, or Texas Gross Receipts Tax,
as income or gross receipts are below the respective state filing thresholds.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 27, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. The Company did not have any material recognizable subsequent events that would require
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.
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Metwally CPA PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
1312 Norwood Dr STE 100, Bedford, Texas 76022

Cell: 214-200-5434 (Mohamed Metwally} Mmetwally @metwallycpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Stockholders of
BIC Franchise System Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIC Franchise System Corporation {the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of BIC Franchise System Corporation as of December 31, 2023 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
for the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of BIC Franchise System Corporation and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about BIC Franchise System Corporation’s ability to continue
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing anauditin accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of materfal misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
arror, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the finandial staterents.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are
appropriatain the drecumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effactivensss of BIC
Franchise System Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion Is exprassed.

e Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting polides used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that ralse
substantial doubt about BIC Franchise Systern Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concemn for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to cormmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findirgs, and certain intarnal contral related matters thatwe identified
during the audit.

Metinlly cPA PLLL

Metwally CPA PLLC
Bedford, Texas
Aprl 20, 2024
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2023

2023
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 58,720

Accounts receivable 18,219
Total Current Assets 76,939
Non-Current Assets

Deferred income taxes 8,668
Total Non- Current Assets 8,668
Total Assets S 85,607

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable S 6,878
Total Current Liabilities 6,878
Total Liabilities 6,878
Stockholders' Equity

Common stock with par value 0.01 per share

10,000,000 authorized shares, none issued or outstanding -

Additional paid in capital 100,000

Accumulated deficit (21,271)
Total Stockholders' Equity 78,729
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 85,607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation

Statement of Operations

Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Revenues
Rovalties
Transfer fees
Marketing fees
Other fees

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Contractors
General and administrative
Advertising and marketing
Legal and professional
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income / (Loss)
Other Income (Expenses)
Income tax benefit {expense)
Total other income {expense)
Net Income / {Loss)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit G-6

2023
$ 61,905
27,500
10,319
24,823
124,547

78,349
38,975
20,336
16,826
154,486
(29,939)

8,668

8,668
3 (21,271)
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Common Stock

Total
Additional Paid. (Accumulated o
. - Stockholders'
Shares Amount In Capital Deficits) .
Equity
Balance At February 10, 2023 10,000,000 s - S - S - [ -
Contribution 100,000 100,000
Net income (loss) - - (21,271) (21,271)
Balance At December 31,2023 10,000,000 e S 100,000 $ (21,271) S 78,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BIC Franchise System Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
Period From February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023

2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income {loss) S (21,271)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

Deferred income taxes (8,668)

provided by operating activities

Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (18,219)

Accounts payable 6,878
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities (41,280)
Investing Activities
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities -
Financing Activities

Contribution 100,000
Net Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities 100,000
Net Change In Cash And Cash Equivalent During The Period 58,720

Cash and cash equivalent - beginning of the Period -
Cash And Cash Equivalent - End of The Period 3 58,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit G-8 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



BIC Franchise System Corporation
December 31, 2023
Notes To Financial Statements

1. COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

BIC Franchise System Corporation (“the Company”) was formed in the state of Delaware on February 10, 2023, for the
purpose of offering franchise opportunities to entrepreneurs who want to develop and operate a Best-in-Class Center.
The Company offers qualified individuals the right to operate an education center that provides school-aged children
with supplemental learning opportunities in the areas of Mathematics and English as well as SAT and ACT preparation
courses under the “Bestin Class” mark.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in understanding and evaluating the
Company’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s
management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements.

A. Basis of Accounting

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America {“GAAP”).

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include bank accounts and cashin transit for bank deposits
with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

C. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable arise primarily from amounts due from franchise owners for continuing fees (Royalties) that are
collected monthly and are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. The Company provides an allowance for
doubtful collections, which is based upon a review of outstanding accounts receivable, historical collection
information, existing economic conditions, and other relevant factors. At the time any particular account receivable is
deemed uncollectible, the balance is charged to the allowance for doubtful accounts. No allowance for uncollectable
accounts was required on December 31, 2023.

D. Federal Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes utilizing the liability method recognizing taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized
in the company’s financial statements or tax returns. The deferred taxes represent the future tax return consequences
of those differences, which will either be deductible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in the period when the new rate is enacted.

Exhibit G-9 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



E. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions. At various times during the year,
the total amount on deposit might exceed the $250,000 limit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
{FDIC). The Company believes that it mitigates credit risk by depositing cash with financial institutions having high credit
ratings.

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of our Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, costs, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. It is at least reasonably possible that a change in the estimates
will occur in the near term.

G. Advertising and Marketing
Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the year incurred.
H. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company
adopted ASU 2021-02 Franchisors - Revenue from Contracts with Customers {Subtopic 952-606) effective with the
application of ASC Topic 606. The ASU provides a practical expedient to ASU2014-09 Revenue from contracts with
Customers {Topic 606). The new guidance allows franchisors to simplify the application of the guidance about identifying
performance obligations for franchisors that perform pre-opening services by allowing a franchisor to account for pre-
opening services as distinct if they are consistent with those included in a predefined list of pre-opening services.

Franchise Fees

The franchise arrangement between the Company and each franchise owner is documented in the form of a franchise
agreement and, in select cases, a development agreement. The franchise arrangement requires the Company as
franchisor to perform various activities to support the brand and does not involve the direct transfer of goods and
services to the franchise owner as a customer. Activities performed by the Company before opening are distinguished
from the franchise license. Therefore, the Company recognizes franchise fees as two performance obligations. The
nature of the Company’s promise in granting the franchise license is to provide the franchise owner with access to the
brand’s intellectual property over the term of the franchise arrangement.

The transaction price in a standard franchise arrangement consists of (a} franchise/development fees; {b) Marketing,
brand development and royalties Fees and (c} IT Fees; {d} Annual Conference Fees. The Company utilize ASC 606 five-
steps revenue recognition model as follows:

¢ |dentify the contract with the customer.

e |dentify the performance obligation in the contract.

¢ Determine the transaction price.

¢  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations.

e Recognize revenue when {or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

The terms of the Company’s franchise agreement will be as follows:
¢ The Company will grant the right to use the Company name, trademark, and system in the franchisee’s franchise
development business.
* The franchisee is obligated to pay a non-refundable initial franchise fee.
¢ The franchisee is obligated to pay monthly royalties, marketing, 1T, and annual conference fees. Certain other
fees are also outlined in the agreement.
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Franchise revenues are recognized by the Company from the following different sources: The Company recognizes
franchise fees as two {2) performance obligations. The first, pre-opening services, including access to manuals, assistance
in site selection, and initial training, have been determined to be distinct services offered to franchisees. Pre-opening
services are earned over a period using an input method of completion based on costs incurred for each franchisee at
the end of each year.

The second, access to the franchise license, has been determined to be distinct. The amount allocated to the franchise
license is earned over time as performance obligations are satisfied due to the continuous transfer of control to the
franchisee. Franchise and development fees are paid in advance of the franchise opening, typically when entering into
a new franchise or development agreement. Fees allocated to the franchise license are recognized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the term of each respective franchise agreement. Initial franchise agreement terms are typically
5 years while successive agreement terms are typically 5 years.

Variable Considerations

Franchise agreements contain variable considerations in the form of royalty fees and brand development (advertising).
These fees are based on franchisee sales and are recorded as revenue and recognized as these services are delivered
because the variable payment relates specifically to the performance obligation of using the license.

Contracts Assets and Liabilities Balances

The Company incurs costs that are directly attributable to obtaining a contract, for example, commission fees, broker
fees, and referral fees. Under ASC 606, costs that are directly associated with obtaining a contract are to be capitalized
and recognized over the term of the agreement. Capitalized costs are included in deferred expenses on the
accompanying balance sheet. As such, direct franchise license costs are recognized over the franchise and renewal term,
which is the performance obligation, and is typically the franchise agreement’s term. If a customer is terminated, the
remaining deferred expense will be recognized as expenses.

Deferred revenue consists of the remaining initial franchise fees to be amortized over the life of the franchise
agreements. Deferred revenue is a result of the collection of the initial franchise fee at the time of the signing of the
franchise agreement and will fluctuate each year based on the number of franchise agreements signed.

A. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASU No. 2016-02 - Leases {Topic 842) is effective for the calendar year 2022. The standard requires lessees to
recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for most leases with terms longer than twelve months. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this standard on its financial statements and determined that it doesn’t have any lease that
meet the requirement to recognize a right-of-use asset and liability because the Company doesn’t have any long-term
leases.

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company maintains its cash balance in U.S. noninterest-bearing transaction accounts which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. On December 31, 2023 the Company's cash balance didn’t
exceed the FDIC insurance limit.

The Company considers all cash in the bank and investments in highly liquid debt instruments with maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2023 the Company had approximately $58,720 in cash in its
bank accounts.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2023 accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2023
Rovyalties receivable $ 13,219
Transfer fee receivable 5,000
Total Accounts Receivable 5 18,219

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company conducts business with Lam’s Tutoring Service, Inc. where the same member of the Company also has an
ownership interest with this Company. The following is a summary of transactions with related parties during the period
from February 10, 2023, to December 31, 2023:

Expenses 2023

Brand development fees expense - related party g 10,319
Curriculum license fee expense - related party 3,491
Remote learning platform license fee expanse - related party 14,182
Technology Fee expanse - related party 2,150
Qverhead expenses - related party 78,349
Total S 108,491

6. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Disaggregation of Revenue

Information regarding revenues disaggregated by the timing of when goods and services are transferred consist of the
following for the year ended December 31:

2023
Revenue recognized over time S -
Revenue recognized at a point in time 124,547
Total Revenue 5 124,547

7. ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Advertising costs for the period from February 10, 2023 to December 31, 2023 were $20,336. These costs were expensed
as incurred.

8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Under the articles of incorporation, the total number of common shares of stock that the Corporation shall have the
authority to issue is 10,000,000 shares with a par value of $0.01 per share, none were issued or outstanding. As of
December 31, 2023, the entity had $100,000 in additional paid-in capital.
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9. INCOME TAXES
The deferred tax assets in the accompanying balance sheets include the following components:
2023

Deferred income taxes S 8,668

The Company's 2023 effective income tax rate is 21% federal and 7% state. The Company had income tax benefits of
$8,668 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 30, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were

available to be issued. The Company did not have any material recognizable subsequent events that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in, the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT “H”-1

STATE ADDENDA

See Attached
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STATE ADDENDA AND AMENDMENTS TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, SUPPLEMENTAL
AGREEMENTS AND FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR CERTAIN STATES

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The following modifications are made to the Best In Class Education Center Franchise Disclosure Document
(“FDD” or “Disclosure Document”) issued by BiC Franchise System Corporation (“we” or “us” or
“franchisor”) to franchisee (“you” or “franchisee”) and may supersede, to the extent required by applicable state
law, certain portions of the Franchise Agreement between you and us dated ,
202 (the “Franchise Agreement”). When the term “Supplemental Agreements” is used, it means any area
development agreement, area representative agreement, master franchise agreement, or similar agreement
entered into between us and you, if applicable.

Certain states have laws governing the franchise relationship and franchise documents. Certain states require
modifications to the FDD, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreements and other documents related to the
sale of a franchise. This State-Specific Addendum (“State Addendum”) will modify these agreements to
comply with the applicable state’s laws. The terms of this State Addendum will only apply if you meet the
requirements of the applicable state independently of your signing of this State Addendum. The terms of this
State Addendum (but only the State Addendum for the applicable State) will override any inconsistent
provision of the FDD, Franchise Agreement or any Supplemental Documents. This State Addendum only
applies to the following states: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

If your state requires these modifications, you will sign this State Addendum along with the Franchise
Agreement and any Supplemental Agreements. If you sign this State Addendum, only the terms applicable to
the state or states whose franchise laws apply to your transaction will govern. If you sign this State Addendum,
but none of the state franchise laws listed above applies because their jurisdictional requirements have not been
met, then this State Addendum will be void and inapplicable to you.
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10.

11.

12.

CALIFORNIA

The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the
sale of the Franchise be delivered together with the Disclosure Document.

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a disclosure document, in a
form containing the information that the Commissioner may by rule or order require, before a
solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

Neither the franchisor nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is subject to any
currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as
defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such
persons from membership in such association or exchange.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements require binding arbitration. The arbitration
will occur in Washington with the costs being borne initially by the party filing for arbitration.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability
of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a Franchise Agreement
or Supplemental Agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements require application of the laws of
Washington. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may provide for termination upon
bankruptcy. Any such provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A.
Sec. 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements contain a covenant not to compete which
extends beyond the termination of the franchise. A contract that restrains a former franchisee from
engaging in a lawful trade or business is to that extent void under California Business and Professions
Code Section 16600.

Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. Any
such provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements may not be
enforceable.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to you concerning
termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental
Agreements contain a provision that is inconsistent with the California Franchise Investment Law, the
California Franchise Investment Law will control.

You must sign a general release of claims if you renew or transfer your Franchise. California
Corporations Code Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law
(California Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code Section
20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code
Sections 20000 through 20043).

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION AT
https://dfpi.ca.gov/.
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13. For franchisees operating outlets located in California, the California Franchise Investment Law
and the California Franchise Relations Act will apply regardless of the choice of law or dispute
resolution venue stated elsewhere. Any language in the Franchise Agreement or any amendment
thereto or any agreement to the contrary is superseded by this condition.
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HAWAII
The following is added to the Cover Page:

THIS FRANCHISE WILL BE/HAS BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT
LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL
ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO YOU OR
SUBFRANCHISOR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY YOU OR
SUBFRANCHISOR OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT
LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY YOU,
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF
CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE
CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF
ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH US AND
YOU.

Our registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

The states in which this filing is effective are listed on the Exhibit to the FDD titled “State Effective
Dates”.

The states in which this filing is or will be shortly on file include the following: California, California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, New York, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

The states, if any, which have refused, by order or otherwise, to register these franchises include the
following: None.

The states, if any, which have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises include the
following: None.

The states, if any, in which the filing of these franchises has been withdrawn include the following:
None.
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ILLINOIS

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, 815 ILCS 705, the Disclosure
Document and the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1. Illinois law shall apply to and govern the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements.

2. In accordance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements that designated jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of
the State of Illinoi is void. However, the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may
provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois. Therefore, any arbitration proceeding may be
brought in Washington in accordance with the dispute resolution provision set forth in the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements.

3. Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

4. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

5. The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended to state the following:

To the extent that any provision in the Illinois State Addendum is inconsistent with any provision in this
Agreement, the provision in the Illinois State Addendum shall control.
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INDIANA

In recognition of the requirements of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law, IC 23-2-2-2.5, the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1. The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of the Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements if such provisions are in conflict with Indiana law.

2. The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended to provide that such agreements
will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

3. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue, or requires the
franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue, in a forum outside of Indiana, is deleted from any
Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreement issued in the State of Indiana.

4. The prohibition by Indiana Code § 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the franchise without
good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as material breach of the Franchise
Agreement or Supplemental Agreement (as applicable), shall supersede the provisions of the Franchise
Agreement or Supplemental Agreement (as applicable) in the State of Indiana to the extent they may
be inconsistent with such prohibition.

5. Liquidated damages and termination penalties are prohibited by law in the State of Indiana and,
therefore, the Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are
amended by the deletion of all references to liquidated damages and termination penalties and the
addition of the following language to the original language that appears therein:

Notwithstanding any such termination, and in addition to the obligations of the franchisee as
otherwise provided, or in the event of termination or cancellation of the Franchise Agreement
under any of the other provisions therein, the franchisee nevertheless shall be, continue and
remain liable to franchisor for any and all damages which franchisor has sustained or may
sustain by reason of such default or defaults and the breach of the Franchise Agreement on the
part of the franchisee for the unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement.

At the time of such termination of the Franchise Agreement, the franchisee covenants to pay to
franchisor within 10 days after demand as compensation all damages, losses, costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by franchisor, and/or amounts which
would otherwise be payable thereunder but for such termination for and during the remainder
of the unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement. This Agreement does not constitute a
waiver of the franchisee’s right to a trial on any of the above matters.

6. No release language set forth in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement or Supplemental
Agreement shall relieve franchisor or any other person, directly or indirectly, from liability imposed by
the laws concerning franchising of the State of Indiana. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or
Supplemental Agreement that would require you to prospectively assent to a release, assignment,
novation, waiver or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the
Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law is void to the extent that such provision violates such law.
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Franchise Agreement is amended to add
the following:

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of

the franchise.

. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through mediation or arbitration. A Maryland
franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to
file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal
Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are
not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

. Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial
assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor
completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning given them in the
Franchise Agreement.

. Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified and in full
force and effect.

This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Franchise Agreement. In the event of any conflict
between this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Addendum shall apply.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum
concurrently with the execution of the Franchise Agreement.

BIC FRANCHISE SYSTEM CORPORATION [FRANCHISEE]

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Area Development Agreement is amended
to add the following:

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of

the franchise.

. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. This area development agreement provides that disputes are resolved through mediation or arbitration. A
Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive
its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the
Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally
enforceable.

. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are
not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

. Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial
assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor
completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement. In addition, all development fees and
initial payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise under the development agreement
opens.

. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning given them in the Area
Development Agreement.

. Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, the Area Development Agreement remains unmodified and in
full force and effect.

This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Area Development Agreement. In the event of any
conflict between this Addendum and the Area Development Agreement, the terms and conditions of this
Addendum shall apply.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum

concurrently with the execution of the Area Development Agreement.

BIC FRANCHISE SYSTEM CORPORATION [FRANCHISEE]

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law (the
“Maryland Franchise Law”), the Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

6. Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

“Fee Deferral

Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has
required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees
shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the
franchise agreement. In addition, area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise
under the development agreement opens.”

7. Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

(a) The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not
apply any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

(b) A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

(c) Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

(d) The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et seq.).

(e) The franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland
franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive
its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light
of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement
is legally enforceable.

8. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

9. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

10. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.
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MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a
franchise:

(j) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(k) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(1) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except
for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(m) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This
subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is
prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same
business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee
does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

(n) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a
renewal provision.

(o) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

(p) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise,
except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first
refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(v) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(vi) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.

(vii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.

(viii)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or
to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(q) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of
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first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third
party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that
grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of
such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has
failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(r) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer
its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and
other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled.
At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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MINNESOTA

In recognition of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat., Chapter 80C, Sections 80C.01 through 80C.22,
and the Rules and Regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Minnesota Commission of Securities,
Minnesota Rule 2860.4400, et. seq., the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental
Agreements are amended as follows:

1. Minnesota Statute 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchiser from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the
franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition,
nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the
franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statute 80Cor (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure,
forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

2. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchiser will comply with Minnesota
Statute 80C.14 Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases)

e that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days
notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and

e that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

3. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to
Minnesota Statute 80C.12 Subd. 1(G). The franchiser will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the
trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols or indemnify the
franchisee from any loss, costs, or expenses arising out of any claim, suit, or demand regarding the use
of the name.

4. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general
release.

5. The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. See Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

6. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statute 80C.17 Subd. 5.

7. NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute 604.113, which puts a cap of $30 on service charges.
Please amend the Minnesota Addendum accordingly.

8. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise.
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NEW YORK

In recognition of the requirements of the General Business Laws of the State of New York, Article 33,
§§680 through 695, the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are
amended as follows:

L.

2.

The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure
Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND
THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR
MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CAN
NOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS THAT ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE
SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The following is to be added at the end of Item 3:

With the exception of what is stated above, the following applies to the franchisor, its predecessor, a
person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal
trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal, or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or
comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business,
which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature, or
financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge
or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a
civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement;
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust,
trade regulation, or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or
proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any
national securities association or national securities exchange, as
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defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or
restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public
agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate
broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled
“Requirements for a franchisee to remew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled
“Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes
of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business
Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in
force; it being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General
Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination
by franchisee”: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice
of forum,” and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred
upon the franchisor or the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the
State of New York

Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements--No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement
of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

Receipts--Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act
(N.Y. Gen. Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure
Document (offering prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee before a sale
may be made. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting, ten (10) business days before the
execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any consideration that
relates to the franchise relationship.
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NORTH DAKOTA

In recognition of the requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (the “North Dakota Franchise
Law”), the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

10.

Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to
Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Law. Item 17(r) of the Disclosure Document and certain
provisions in the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements include certain covenants restricting
competition to which you must agree. The Commissioner has held that covenants restricting competition
contrary to Section 9-08-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, without further disclosing that such
covenants may be subject to this statue, are unfair, unjust, or inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-
09 of the North Dakota Franchise Law. The Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental
Agreements are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Provisions requiring arbitration or mediation to be held at a location that is remote from the site of the
franchisee’s business are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to
Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, the parties must agree on
the site where arbitration or mediation will be held.

Provisions requiring jurisdiction in a state other than North Dakota are generally considered unenforceable
in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring that agreements be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota are
generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring your consent to liquidated or termination damages are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement have been
determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to pay all costs and expenses incurred by us in enforcing the franchise agreement
have been determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read that the prevailing
party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney’s fees.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of trial by jury have been determined to be unfair, unjust
and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a limitation of claims within one year have been determined to be
unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read that the statute of limitations under
North Dakota Law will apply.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages have been determined
to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Invest Law.
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RHODE ISLAND

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act (the “Rhode Island Franchise
Law”), the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

We will not require that you prospectively assent to a waiver, condition, stipulation, or provision that
purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Rhode Island Franchise Law. This provision
does not apply to the settlement of disputes, claims, or civil lawsuits brought under the Rhode Island
Franchise Law.

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Law provides that "A provision in a franchise agreement
restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of
another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act." If a claim is enforceable
under the Rhode Island Franchise Law, we will not restrict jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside the
State of Rhode Island or require the application of the laws of another state.

We will not prohibit you from joining a trade association or association of franchisees. We will not retaliate
against you for engaging in these activities.

Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that limits the time period in which you may assert a legal claim
against us under the Rhode Island Franchise Law is amended to provide for a four (4) year statute of
limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a rescission offer has been approved by the Rhode Island director of
business registration, then the statute of limitations is ninety (90) days after your receipt of the rescission
offer.
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VIRGINIA

In recognition of the requirements of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1. Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term
may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not
be enforceable.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
use undue influence to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any right given to him under
the applicable agreement.

2. If any provision of the Franchise Agreement or any Supplemental Agreement involves the use of undue
influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any rights given to him under
the applicable agreement, that provision may not be enforceable.

3. We will not require that you prospectively assent to a waiver, condition, stipulation, or provision that
purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Virginia Retail Franchising Act. This provision
does not prohibit you and us from entering into binding arbitration consistent with the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act.

4. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement that limits the time period in which
you may assert a legal claim against us under the Virginia Retail Franchising Act is amended to provide for
a four (4) year statute of limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act.

5. Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it shall be unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may
be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be
enforceable.

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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WASHINGTON

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100
RCW, the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW, will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements in your
relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There
may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements
in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the
arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or
mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an
action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement,
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

On October 18, 2019, franchisor’s predecessor, Best In Class Education Center, LLC, entered into an
Assurance of Discontinuance (“AOD”) with the Washington Attorney General’s office (“AGO”). Under
the AOD, the predecessor agreed to permanently discontinue the use of and to no longer enforce “no-
poach” language in our predecessor’s agreements which restricted the ability of franchisees to hire the
employees from competing franchisees and from our predecessor’s corporate locations. Our predecessor
further agreed to notify the AGO of any efforts by a franchisee in Washington to enforce any existing “no-
poach” provision, to proactively remove ‘“no-poach” language from each Washington franchisee’s
franchise agreement and to remove ‘“no-poach” language from all other Best In Class Education Center
franchise agreements upon renewal.
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WISCONSIN

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Chapter 135 of the Wisconsin Statutes supersedes any provision of the
Franchise Agreement and Supplement Agreements (if applicable) if such provision is in conflict with that law.
The Franchise Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and the Supplemental Agreements are amended
accordingly.

(Signatures on following page)
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APPLICABLE ADDENDA

If any one of the preceding Addenda for specific states (“Addenda”) is checked as an “Applicable Addenda”
below, then that Applicable Addenda shall be incorporated into the Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement, Supplemental Agreements (if applicable) and any other specified agreement(s) entered into by us
and the undersigned franchisee. To the extent any terms of an applicable Addenda conflict with the terms of the
Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreement (if applicable) and other
specified agreement(s), the terms of the Applicable Addenda shall supersede the terms of the Franchise
Agreement.

[] California [] Michigan [] South Dakota
[] Hawaii [] Minnesota [] Virginia
[] Tllinois [[] New York ] Washington
[] Indiana [[] North Dakota [[] Wisconsin
[] Maryland [] Rhode Island
Dated: , 202

FRANCHISOR:

BiC Franchise System Corporation

By:

Title:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Title:
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EXHIBIT “H”-2

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

See Attached
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MAY NOT BE SIGNED OR USED IF FRANCHISEE RESIDES WITHIN, OR THE
FRANCHISED BUSINESS WILL BE LOCATED WITHIN, A FRANCHISE
REGISTRATION STATE!'

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

As you know BiC Franchise System Corporation (“we” or “us), and you are preparing to enter into a Franchise Agreement for the
operation of a Best In Class Education Center franchise. We require that you complete this Questionnaire (a) so that we can determine
whether our franchise sales team followed proper sales procedures and (b) to provide us with reasonable assurance that, prior to signing
the Franchise Agreement, you have had an adequate opportunity to review the Franchise Disclosure Document and its attachments,
consult with legal and/or business advisors of your choosing, and ask us questions about any disclosures or terms that you do not
understand. You cannot sign or date this Questionnaire the same day as the Receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document but
you must sign and date it the same day you sign the Franchise Agreement and pay your franchise fee. Please review each of the
following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each question.

Yes No_ L. Have you received from us and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement and, if applicable,
Area Development Agreement (“ADA”), together with all attachments to those agreements?
[If you answer “no,” please explain in Explanation Section]

Yes No 2. Have you received from us and personally reviewed a Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”)?

[If you answer “no,” please explain in Explanation Section]

Yes No_ 3. Did you sign a receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it?

Yes No 4. Do you understand all the information contained in the FDD, Franchise Agreement and ADA (if
applicable)?
[If you answer “no,” please identify any information you don’t understand in Explanation
Section]

Yes No 5. Did you receive the FDD at least 14 calendar days before signing any agreement relating to the

franchise (other than an NDA) or paying any money?

Yes No 6. Did you receive a complete execution copy of the Franchise Agreement and ADA (if applicable),
with all material terms filled in, at least seven (7) calendar days before you signed it?

Yes No_ 7. Have you reviewed the FDD, Franchise Agreement and ADA (if applicable) with a lawyer,
accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes No_ 8. Have you discussed the benefits and risks of developing and operating a Best In Class Education
Center franchise with an existing Best In Class Education Center franchisee?

Yes No 9. Do you understand the risks of developing and operating a Best In Class Education Center
franchise?
Yes No 10. Do you understand the success or failure of your franchise will depend in part upon your skills,

abilities and efforts and those of the persons you employ as well as many factors beyond your
control such as competition, interest rates, the economy, inflation, labor and supply costs and
other relevant factors?

Yes No_ 11. Do you understand all disputes or claims you may have arising out of or relating to the Franchise
Agreement or ADA (if applicable) must be arbitrated in Washington if not resolved informally or
by mediation?

! Registration states include California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, the State of Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New

York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.
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Yes No_ 12. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement, ADA (if applicable) and the attachments to
those agreements contain the entire agreement between us and you concerning the franchise for
the Best In Class Education Center franchise, meaning any prior oral or written statements not set
out in the Franchise Agreement, ADA or the attachments will not be binding?

Yes No 13.  Did any of our employees or representatives, or any person speaking on our behalf, make any
statement or promise regarding the costs involved in operating a Best In Class Education Center
franchise that is not contained in the FDD or that is contrary to, or different from, the information
contained in the FDD?

[If you answer “yes,” please describe the statement or promise in Explanation Section]

Yes No_ 14. Did any of our employees or representatives, or any person speaking on our behalf, make any
statement or promise regarding the training, assistance or support that will be provided to you that
is not contained in the FDD or that is contrary to, or different from, the information in the FDD?

[If you answer “yes,” please describe the statement or promise in Explanation Section]

Yes No 15. Did any of our employees or representatives, or any person speaking on our behalf, make any
statement or promise regarding the actual, average, projected or hypothetical profits or earnings,
the likelihood of success, the amount of money you may earn, or the total amount of revenue a
Best In Class Education Center business may generate, other than any information included in
Item 19 of the FDD?

[If you answer “yes,” please describe the statement or promise in Explanation Section]

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE WILL RELY ON THEM. BY
SIGNING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION
CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.

Signature of Franchise Applicant Signature of Franchise Applicant

Name (please print)

Name (please print)

Dated Dated

Signature of Franchise Applicant Signature of Franchise Applicant
Name (please print) Name (please print)

Dated Dated

EXPLANATION SECTION

Please include any explanations below and refer to the applicable question number.
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EXHIBIT “H”-3

GENERAL RELEASE

See Attached
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WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

This Waiver and Release of Claims (this “Agreement”) is made as of , 202 (the “Effective
Date”) by , a(n) (“you”) and each individual holding a
direct or indirect ownership interest in you (collectively “Owner”) in favor of BiC Franchise System
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“us,” and together with you and Owner, the “Parties”).

Background

A. We signed a Franchise Agreement with you, dated ,202 (the “Franchise Agreement’) pursuant
to which we granted you the right to own and operate a Best In Class Education Center education business;

B. You have notified us of your desire to transfer the Franchise Agreement and all rights related thereto, or an
ownership interest in the franchisee entity, to a transferce, [enter into a successor franchise agreement)]
and we have consented to such transfer [agreed to enter into a successor franchise agreement]; and

C. As a condition to our consent to the transfer [your ability to enter into a successor franchise agreement],
you and Owner have agreed to execute this Agreement upon the terms and conditions stated below.

D. In consideration of our consent to the transfer [our entering into a successor franchise agreement], and
for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged,
and intending to be legally bound, you and Owner hereby agree as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Release. Owner, you, and each of your officers, directors, shareholders, members, owners, employees,
agents, representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors and assigns, and all persons or firms
claiming by, through, under, or on behalf of any or all of them (the “Franchisee Parties™), hereby release,
acquit and forever discharge us, any and all of our past and present affiliates, parents, subsidiaries and
related companies, divisions and partnerships, consultants, advisors and franchise sellers and its and their
respective past and present officers, directors, shareholders, members, owners, employees, agents,
representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors and assigns, and the spouses of such individuals
(collectively, the “Franchisor Parties”), from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, actions or
causes of action which any of the Franchisee Parties may now have or has ever had, whether known or
unknown, past or present, absolute or contingent, suspected or unsuspected, of any nature whatsoever,
directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to the execution and performance (or lack thereof) of the
Franchise Agreement or the offer, sale or acceptance of the franchise related thereto (including, but not
limited to any disclosures and representations made in connection therewith). The foregoing release shall
not be construed to apply with respect to any obligations contained within this Agreement. The-General

a 1th 11711 1Q1no a \\ hing nchica Tnvua D 1

2. California Law. You and Owner hereby express your intention to release all existing claims, whether known
or unknown, against the Franchisor Parties. Accordingly, you and Owner hereby waive §1542 of the
California Civil Code, which provides the following:

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his
or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially
affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”

[Section 2 only applies for California franchisees; otherwise it is omitted]

3. Washington Franchise Law. The General Release does not apply with respect to claims arising under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, or the rules adopted thereunder.

[Section 3 only applies for Washington franchisees; otherwise it is omitted]

4. Nondisparagement. Each of the Franchisee Parties expressly covenant and agree not to make any false
representation of facts, or to defame, disparage, discredit or deprecate any of the Franchisor Parties or
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S.

6.

otherwise communicate with any person or entity in a manner intending to damage any of the Franchisor
Parties, the business conducted by any of the Franchisor Parties or the reputation of any of the Franchisor
Parties. For purposes of clarity, the obligations in this Section apply to all methods of communications,
including the making of statements or representations through direct verbal or written communication as
well as the making of statements or representations on the Internet, through social media sites or through
any other verbal, digital or electronic method of communication. The obligations in this Section also
prohibit the Franchisee Parties from indirectly violating this Section by influencing or encouraging third
parties to engage in activities that would constitute a violation of this Section if conducted directly by a
Franchisee Party.

Representations and Warranties. You and Owner each represent and warrant that: (a) [Insert franchisee
entity name] is duly authorized to execute this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder; (b) neither
you nor Owner has assigned, transferred or conveyed, either voluntarily or by operation of law, any of their
rights or claims against any of the Franchisor Parties or any of the rights, claims or obligations being
terminated or released hereunder; (¢) you and Owner have not and shall not (i) institute or cause to be
instituted against any of the Franchisor Parties any legal proceeding of any kind, including the filing of any
claim or complaint with any state or federal court or regulatory agency, alleging any violation of common
law, statute, regulation or public policy premised upon any legal theory or claim whatsoever relating to the
matters released in this Agreement or (ii) make any verbal, written or other communication that could
reasonably be expected to damage or adversely impact any Franchisor Party’s reputation or goodwill; and
(d) the individuals identified as Owners on the signature pages hereto together hold 100% of the legal and
beneficial ownership interests in [Insert franchisee entity name].

Communications with Governmental Authorities. Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict or be deemed to

preclude you from disclosing truthful information to governmental authorities in response to any request for
information you receive from them.

6-7.Miscellaneous.

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

&)

(2

The Parties agree that each has read and fully understands this Agreement and that the opportunity has
been afforded to each Party to discuss the terms and contents of said Agreement with legal counsel and/or
that such a discussion with legal counsel has occurred.

This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Washington.

In the event that it shall be necessary for any Party to institute legal action to enforce, or for the breach of,
any of the terms and conditions or provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such action shall
be entitled to recover all of its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and
their respective current and future directors, officers, partners, attorneys, agents, employees, shareholders
and the spouses of such individuals, successors, affiliates, and assigns.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes and is in lieu of all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, inducements and conditions, expressed or implied, oral or written, of any nature
whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified except in a
writing signed by each of the Parties.

If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair any
other provision of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

The Parties agree to do such further acts and things and to execute and deliver such additional agreements
and instruments as any Party may reasonably require to consummate, evidence, or confirm the transactions
contemplated hereby.
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(h) This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute but one document.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

FRANCHISEE:

By:
Name:
Title:

FRANCHISE OWNERS:

Name:

Name:

Name:
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EXHIBIT “H”-4

SATELLITE OFFICE ADDENDUM

See Attached
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SATELLITE OFFICE ADDENDUM

This Satellite Office Addendum (this “Addendum”) is entered into this day of , 202 (the
“Effective Date”), between BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“us”) and
, a(n) (“you™). You and we are collectively referred to

as the “Parties.”
RECITALS

A. The Parties executed a Best in Class Education Center Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”)
dated , 202, pursuant to which we granted you the right and license to operate a
Best In Class Education Center at the following address: [ ]
(your “Center”).

B. The Franchise Agreement authorizes you to operate your Center only at the approved location. In addition
to operating your Center, you have requested that we grant you the right to develop, own and operate a
separate Satellite Office (as defined herein).

C. For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
Parties agree hereby agree to the terms and conditions set forth below:

AGREEMENT
+—Definitions:DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used-in—this-AgreementNOT DEFINED ABOVE
have the meanings given to them below:
“Addendrwm™is, OR IF NOT defined inBELOW, the Introductory Paragraph:

1. “ALTERNATIVE CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION HAS-THE-MEANINGmeanings given to SHEH
FERMthem in the Franchise Agreement.

“Center” means the-Bestdn-ClassEdueation Center you operate pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, as
further described in Recital A to this Addendum. It does not include a Satellite Office.

13 . 99

“Franchise Agreement” means the Franchise Agreement granting you the right to develop, own and operate
the Center, as further described in Recital A to this Addendum.

“Satellite Office Fee” means the initial franchise fee you pay to us pursuant §7§7 of this Addendum for the
acquisition of the right to develop, own and operate the Satellite Office.

“Satellite Office Territory” means the geographic area described in Part B of ATTACHMENT A to this
Addendum or the Territory Approval Notice we issue to you, as applicable, that comprises the protected
territory associated with your Satellite Office.

“Site Approval Notice” means the Site Approval Notice attached hereto as ATTACHMENT B that we issue
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to you in accordance with §3§3 of this Addendum to identify the approved site for your Satellite Office (if
the approved site for your Satellite Office is undetermined as of the Effective Date).

“Territory Approval Notice” means the Territory Approval Notice attached hereto as ATTACHMENT C
that we issue to you in accordance with §4§4 of this Addendum to identify the boundaries of your Satellite
Office Territory (if the Satellite Office Territory is undetermined as of the Effective Date).

2. 2— GRANT OF RIGHTS-GRANT OF RIGHTS. We hereby erant vou the right to establish and

[

=~

operate one (1) Satellite Office from a site we approve in accordance with §3§3_of this Addendum. Your
Satellite Office must: (a) consist of “temporary space” that is not subject to a lease of more than 12 months
in duration; and (b) be shared between you and one or more other businesses or organizations. Examples of

satellite offices include churches, temples, libraries, HOA buildings, YMCAs, Boys & Girls Clubs,
community centers, schools, and similar types of facilities.

33— STTE-APPROVAL.SITE APPROVAL. You must FOCATEidentify and obtain our approval of
the premises for your Satellite Office within 120 days after the Effective Date. The premises must be
located inside the Center Territory (unless we agree to the contrary) and conform to our minimum site
selection criteria. You must send us a complete site report that includes all PEMOGRAPHIG;
COMMERCIAL—AND—OTHERall  documents, information, PHOTFOGRAPHSphotos and
MBEOSvideo we require. We may accept or reject EACH-SITFEsites you propose in our commercially
reasonable judgment. We WHEEHUSE-BESTEFEFORTStry to ISSBEnotify vou of our APPROVAL-OR
DISAPPROVALdecision within 15 days after we receive all @OF-FHE-requisite materials. Your site is
deemed disapproved if we FAH-FOdo not issue our WRITFFEN-approval within the 15-day period. If we
approve the site for vour Satellite Office PRIORTFO-TFHE-FFFECTHIVE DATE-FHENbefore signing
this Addendum, we will list the address of FHEEyour approved site WHEE-BE-EISTED-in Part A of
ATTACHMENT A to this Addendum. HEOtherwise, we BPO-NOT-APPROVEIist the SFFEFORaddress
of your SAFELHTFE-OFHICEPRIORapproved site in a Site Approval Notice we send to FHIE

EF—FEGT—NE—DA—’PE—’PHENvou Wlthm 15 davs after we at)t)rove T—H—E—SI—"PE—WLE—WLH:L—SENDAéQU—A

FQR#OU—R—SA—T—ELLI—T—E—OF—F—IGEVOM site. Wlthm ﬁve ( 5) busmess davs after we send you the S1te
Approval Notice, vou must sign and date the franchisee acknowledgment section and send us a copy for
our records. Our approval of the site SHAEE-BE-DEEMEDand designation of your Satellite Office
Territory is immediately effective and binding ON-¥OU-at the time we issue the Site Approval Notices
REGARDLESS-OF-WHETHER cven if you SEND-UHSdo not sign the SEGNED—-acknowledgments;
provided, however, you have five (5) business days after receipt of the Site Approval Notice to suggest
changes to your Satellite Office Territory (which may, but need not, accept). Our approval of a site
DOESis not-CONSTHTUTE a representation or warranty of any kind, express or implied, of the suitability
of the site for a Satellite Office. It INDFCATES-only FHAFmeans we believe the site meets our minimum
criteria.

4. 44— SATEFHTE OFFICE TERRITORY-SATELLITE OFFICE TERRITORY. We will grant you a

protected territory for your Satellite Office (your “Satellite Office Territory”) that will include between
7,500 and 9,000 students between the ages of 5 and 17 (as of the date we determine the boundaries of your
Satellite Office Territory). UNEESS-WE-AGREE-OTHERWISE;If vour Satellite Office is located inside
your Center Territory, then your Satellite Office Territory will consist of the same geographic area that
comprises the Center Territory. ¥OURIf your Satellite Office is located outside your Center Territory, then
we will BEIDENTIHFHEDdesignate the boundaries of your Satellite Office Territory: (a) in Part B of
ATTACHMENT A to this Addendum (if we designate your Satellite Office Territory prior to the Effective
Date); or (b) in the Territory Approval Notice we issue to you within 15 days after approving the site for

your Satellite Office (if we do not designate your Satellite Office Territory prior to the Effective Date).

Your Satellite Office Territory, if different than your Center Territory, must be located adjacent to your
Center Territory. During the term of this Addendum, we will not develop or operate, or license a third party

to develop or operate, a Center or a Satellite Office that is PHYSHCAEEY-located WAFHHNIn your
Satellite Office Territory except as otherwise provided in this Section—WITFH-—RESPECT—TO
ACQUISITIONS.. At any time during the term of this Addendum; we reserve the right to engage in




Acquisitionss EVEN-H-AS-A that involve, or subsequently result OF-AN-ACQUISITHION-ONE-OR
MQRE—GONLPET—I—'H—\LE—BUSHNESSESm conversion of the acquired or acqulrmg COMPANY-BEGIN

~ ANDcompany’s outlets
to BEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CEN TER ’ outlets, even if those outlets are located WITHIN-¥YOURIn
the Satellite Office Territory. We reserve the right to sell, and license third parties to sell, competitive or
identical goods and services (including under the Marks) through Alternative Channels of Distribution
including within the Satellite Office Territory and you are not entitled to any compensation for these sales.

5. 5— DEVELOPMENT -AND OPERATION—OF SATELLITE OFFICEDEVELOPMENT AND
OPERATION OF SATELLITE OFFICE. The development and operation of your Satellite Office shall
be subject to all of the terms of the Franchise Agreement other than the following Sections of the Franchise
Agreement which shall not apply: §2 (Grant of Franchlse) L0 (TERRITORIAL-RIGHTS-AND
EHMITATHONSTerritory); §4 (Term and Renewal); § i and Conferences); §6.3 (Openin

Assistance); §7 (Establishing your BESENESSCenter); §12 (Minimum Performance Requirements); §14.1

(Initial Franchise Fee); and the provisions in §21.1 (Termination By You) requiring you to comply with
various procedural requirements in order to terminate without cause, but the remaining provisions in §21.1

HALLEshall apply to the Satellite Office. You must open your Satellite Office no later than 180 days after
the Effective Date.

6. 6— TERM AND TEHRMINATION.-TERM AND TERMINATION. The term of this Addendum shall

commence upon the Effective Date and expire upon the expiration, termination or transfer of the Franchise
Agreement. You may terminate this Addendum upon notice to us if you close your Satellite Office. Your

termination of this Addendum due to the closure of your Satellite Office shall not be deemed grounds for
termination of the Franchise Agreement by either Party. We may also terminate this Addendum if you
breach any of your obligations under this Addendum or the Franchise Agreement and fail to cure such
breach within the applicable cure period. A breach of any term of this Addendum shall have a 30-day cure

period.
7. F—SATEFHTFE OFRICE FEE.SATELLITE OFFICE FEE. You agree to pay us, in one lump sum, a

satellite office fee in the amount designated in Part C of ATTACHMENT A to this Addendum (the
“Satellite Office Fee’’). The Satellite Office Fee is earned in full upon receipt and is nonrefundable.

8. &—  LEARNINGMANAGEMENT SYSTEM:LEARNING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM. You must

acquire and utilize BCP-LMS at your Satellite Office. You must pay a separate initial setup and
configuration fee and separate ongoing EFHCENSINGFEES-AND-CURRICULEUM-DISTRIBUTION
FEESBCP-LMS Monthly Fees for use of BCP-LMS at your Satellite Office in accordance with §6-214.3 of
the Franchise Agreement—HF—YOU—PURCHASED— (including if vour Center FROM—OUR

PREDEGE—SSOR—BEST—I—N—GLASS—EDU&ASPIGNB a LeQaCV Center—LL%NDAéOU—GH—OOSE—TO




IMPOSED—GNDERJPHE—F&&NGHISE—AGREE—NIENT—) You must pay a seoarate technologv fee of
$100 per month per Satellite Office (the technology fee may be increased to a maximum of $200 per month
per Satellite Office upon 30 days’ notice).

R.CONVERSION TO
DEDICATED BRICK AND MORTAR CENTER. Wlth our prior_written approval, which may be
withheld in our commercially reasonable discretion, you may convert your Satellite Office to a dedicated
brick and mortar BESTIN-CEASS EDPUCATION-CENTERBEST IN CLASS EDUCATION CENTER"
following the opening of the Satellite Office. In order to effectuate such a conversions you must: (a) sign
our then-current form of-BESTIN-CEASS—EDUCATION-CENTER Franchise Agreement for the
converted Satellite Office; and (b) pay us an additional initial franchise fee equal to the difference between
the Satellite Office Fee paid for the Satellite Office and our then-current initial franchise fee that would
apply to a dedicated brick and mortar BESTIN-CEASS-EDUCATHON-CENTER.BEST IN CLASS
EDUCATION CENTER®. If you convert your Satellite Office, the Center Territory under the franchise
agreement for your converted Satellite Office will consist of the same geographic area that comprises your
Satellite Office Territory under this Addendum.

9. 10— TRANSEERTRANSFER. You may not Transfer your Satellite Office except in connection with
an approved Transfer of your Center.

10. H—MISCEFEANEOUS-MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Modification. This Addendum and the Franchise Agreement (as previously amended) when executed
constitute the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to the subject
matter contained herein and therein. Any and all prior agreements and understandings between the
Parties and relating to the subject matter contained in this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement,
whether written or verbal, other than as contained within the executed Addendum and Franchise
Agreement, are void and have no force and effect. In order to be binding between the Parties, any
subsequent modifications must be in writing signed by both of the Parties.

(b) Effect on Agreement. Except as specifically modified or supplemented by this Addendum, all terms
and conditions in the Franchise Agreement remain in full force and effect.

(c) Inconsistency. In the event of any inconsistency between the executed Franchise Agreement and this
Addendum, this Addendum shall prevail.

(d) Counterparts. This Addendum may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

IN AT
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The parties below have executed this Addendum eneffective as of the dateEffective Date first set-ferth-above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

BiC Franchise System Corporation, a Delaware
corporation

By:
Name:
Its:

YOU (If you are an entity): YOU (If you are not an entity):

a(n) Name:

By:
Name: Name:
Its:

Name:

Name:




ATTACHMENT A
TO SATELLITE OFFICE ADDENDUM
DEAL TERMS

A. Approved Site-

We hereby approve the site listed below for your Satellite Office.

* If the site for your Satellite Office has not been approved by us at the time this Addendum is signed, we
will send you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with $333 of the Addendum listing the address of the
approved site for your Satellite Office.

B. Satellite Office Territory-

The Satellite Office Territory for your Satellite Office shall consist of the following (check appropriate box):
The same geographic area comprising the Center Territory under the Franchise Agreement

The following geographic area (as further depicted on the map attached below):
[ ]

If there are any changes to the zip codes or other boundaries that define your Satellite Office
Territory during the term of the Addendum or any renewal term, then, unless otherwise agreed to
by you and us in writing, the boundaries of your Satellite Office Territory shall remain defined by
the zip codes or other boundaries in effect as of the Effective Date of this Addendum and depicted
on the map below. You may provide suggestions for the Satellite Office Territory but we ultimately
have sole discretion to determine the boundaries of your Satellite Office Territory.

[Insert Map Below (if applicable)]

*If your Satellite Office Territory is not defined at the time you sign this Addendum, we will send
you a Territory Approval Notice in accordance with $494 of the Addendum within 15 days after
we approve the site for your Satellite Office that includes a description of your Satellite Office
Territory with a protected territory map. Your Satellite Office Territory will include between
15,000 and 18,000 students between the ages of 5 and 17.

C. Satellite Office Fee-

You agree to pay us the following Satellite Office Fee (check appropriate box):
$5,000 (if Satellite Office is located inside your Center Territory)
$4722,500 (if Satellite Office is located outside your Center Territory)
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FORM OF SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

[See Attached]



SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

BiC Franchise System Corporation (“we” or “us”) is issuing this Site Approval Notice (this “Notice”) to

(“you™), effective , 202, in connection with the
Satellite Office Addendum (the “Addendum™) that we executed with you on , 202 . The

purpose of this Notice is to confirm our approval of the site you proposed for your Satellite Office in accordance
with §3 of the Addendum.

Approved Address for Satellite Office:

We hereby approve the site listed below for your Satellite Office:

% sk sk

By signing below, you and we agree that the address identified in this Notice shall be deemed the approved site
for your Satellite Office established and operated pursuant to the Addendum. You acknowledge and agree that
our acceptance of the site you proposed is in no way a representation by us that your site will be successful.
Rather, our acceptance merely indicates the site meets our minimum standards and requirements.

We request that you sign below and send us an executed copy of this Notice to acknowledge your receipt.
However, your failure or refusal to sign below will not invalidate or otherwise affect our designation of your
approved site. Our designation of your approved site, as set forth in this Notice, shall be binding on you
effective as of the effective date listed in the first paragraph in this Notice.

Franchisor Franchisee

BiC Franchise System Corporation [ ]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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TERRITORY APPROVAL NOTICE

BiC Franchise System Corporation (“we” or “us”) is issuing this Territory Approval Notice (this “Notice”) to

(“you™), effective , 202, in connection with the
Satellite Office Addendum (the “Addendum™) that we executed with you on , 202 . The

purpose of this Notice is to confirm our approval of the boundaries of the Satellite Office Territory in
accordance with §4 of the Addendum.

Satellite Office Territory:

The Satellite Office Territory for your Satellite Office shall consist of the following geographic area (as further
depicted on the map attached below):

[ ]

If there are any changes to the zip codes or other boundaries that define your Satellite Office Territory during
the term of the Addendum or any renewal term, then, unless otherwise agreed to by you and us in writing, the
boundaries of your Satellite Office Territory shall remain defined by the zip codes or other boundaries in effect
as of the date of this Notice and depicted on the map below. You may provide suggestions for the Satellite
Office Territory but we ultimately have sole discretion to determine the boundaries of your Satellite Office
Territory.

[Insert Map Below (if applicable)]

%k 3k ok

By signing below, you and we agree that the geographic area described in this Notice under “Satellite Office
Territory” shall be deemed your Satellite Office Territory under the Addendum for your Satellite Office.

We request that you sign below and send us an executed copy of this Notice to acknowledge your receipt.
However, your failure or refusal to sign below will not invalidate or otherwise affect our designation of your
Satellite Office Territory. Our designation of your Satellite Office Territory, as set forth in this Notice, shall be
binding on you effective as of the effective date listed in the first paragraph in this Notice.

Franchisor Franchisee

BiC Franchise System Corporation [ ]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




EXHIBIT “H”-5

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

[See Attached]

Exhibit H-5 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Social Media Policy for Franchisees

1. Introduction

BiC Franchise System Corporation (‘“Franchisor”) recognizes the opportunities for Best in Class Franchisees
(“Franchisees™) to participate in interactive discussions and share information using a variety of “Social Media,”
including, but not limited to Facebook, Twitter, Pinterest, YouTube, blogs, podcasts and other social networking
websites, apps, comment sections, etc. “Franchisees” use of Social Media can pose risks to “Franchisor’s”
confidential and proprietary information, reputation, and brands. To minimize these risks, and to ensure that
brand standards are maintained and that trademarks are used appropriately, “Franchisor” requires its
“Franchisees” to adhere to the following guidelines and rules regarding Social Media use.

2. Rights & Ownership

299

“Franchisor” has the right to ownership of all “Franchisees’” Social Media accounts. All Social Media accounts
and intellectual property created or used by “Franchisees” to promote or market the franchised business (“Social
Media Marketing Material”) or the Franchise System belong solely to “Franchisor”. “Franchisor” shall own and
have the right to control all “Social Media Marketing Material” whether “Franchisee” creates the account or
uses, manages, or accesses it. “Social Media Marketing Material” includes any and all login information, data,
passwords, trademarks, and content related to the account, including all followers, subscribers, and contacts.
Username and password information for all “Social Media Marketing Material” shall be reported to
“Franchisor” and not changed without prior authorization from “Franchisor”. “Social Media Marketing
Material” does not include Social Media accounts that are created or used by “Franchisees” exclusively for

“Franchisees’” personal use.

“Franchisor” reserves the right to monitor content produced by “Franchisee”. Although “Franchisee” will have
access to individual pages, “Franchisor” reserves the right to post, edit, or remove content on “Franchisee”
individual pages and/or created by “Franchisee” on Social Media. All postings by “Franchisor” are final, and
may not be deleted or altered by “Franchisee”. This policy is subject to change at any time. “Franchisor” has the
right to monitor all “Franchisee” public Social Media accounts and activity.

3. Purpose & Principles

“Franchisees” may use Social Media to promote their franchised business and to engage with the community to
build brand loyalty. “Franchisee” must read and sign this Social Media Policy prior to creating any social media
accounts. All “Franchisee” Social Media accounts must be approved by “Franchisor” prior to “Franchisee”
creating Social Media accounts. “Franchisee” is responsible for obtaining likes, followers, and check-ins for
individual pages. “Franchisee” will abide by the following principles:

Be professional; you are an ambassador for Best in Class both on and off the job.

Be honest and objective.

Be responsible and respectful.

Post meaningful content.

Remember that your online comments are permanent, and may be republished in other media.

AN e

Obey the laws and do not plagiarize. Be aware that anti- trust, libel, copyright, right of publicity, privacy,
and data protection laws apply. Be aware that special laws apply to interactions with minors and
additional restrictions apply to interactions with persons under the age of 13.

7. Respect proprietary information and confidentiality of clients, staff, and internal operations of Best in

Class Education.
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8. Do not engage in activities nor comment on behalf of Best in Class Education unless authorized.
9. Ifyou are in doubt, avoid any contribution until you have received permission.
10. Even in your private communications, don’t forget that you are a representative of Best in Class
Education.

4. Account Creation

Franchisees must obtain approval before establishing a business account for Best in Class Education.

4.1 Obtaining Approval

“Franchisees’” use of Social Media for company use is governed by the terms of the franchise agreement, the
Operations Manual/Standard Operating Procedure (SOP), and this policy. “Franchisor” reserves the right to
require “Franchisee” to discontinue use of a particular Social Media account at any time. No “Franchisee” may
create any blog, social media page, website, or any other social or online media presence that incorporates the
trademarks or other intellectual property of “Franchisor” without prior authorization from “Franchisor”.

4.2 Naming Conventions

If “Franchisee” receives authorization to create a Social Media account, “Franchisee” is required to use our
approved naming convention for the account name. The Social Media account requested for use must either be
on the “Franchisor’s” approved list or approved in advance by “Franchisor”. “Franchisor” reserves the right to
own the username/handle even when it is no longer part of the franchise system.

5. Account Appearance

“Franchisee” account will be modeled after “Company” pages.

5.1 Basics

e Cover photo and profile picture shall be the same as the Corporate page
e “About” information shall be the same as Corporate Page, see “Account Specifics” for more information.
e “Franchisees” are required to include a link to www.bestinclasseducation.com on all social media sites

and include links to the official “Company” social media pages.
5.2 Visuals

All pages, profiles, and posts on “Franchisee” Social Media accounts must comply with “Franchisor’s” brand
guidelines according to Franchise Agreement and this policy.

All Social Media posts on “Franchisee” accounts are considered “Franchisor’s” marketing materials. Use only
approved trademarks, trade names, slogans, logos, and other media. Do not insert any “Company” “Social
Marketing Material” onto an unapproved image or video.

5.3 Image Library

Original images shall be derived from stock photos available in the google drive.

5.4 Formatting

Ensure photos are sized to each specific Social Media platform. Photos must be resized rather than cropped to fit
the correct ratios.

5.5 Account Specifics

5.5.1 The Parent Page (Best in Class Corporate Facebook Page) will own and possess ultimate control of all
child pages (individual location-based pages). “Franchisor” will operate the Best in Class Education main
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corporate page. “Franchisor” will provide access to an individual location-based Facebook page for
“Franchisee”, which falls under the main corporate page.

All posts from the corporate Facebook page are permanent, and will be displayed on individual location-based
pages under any and all circumstances. “Franchisee” does not have permission to edit or delete any content
produced by the corporate Facebook page.

“Franchisee” can obtain editor access to this individual location-based page upon signing this Social Media
Policy.

“Franchisee” editor access to this individual location-based page includes:
o Editing the page

Adding apps to the page

Going live as the page from a mobile device

Creating and deleting posts as the page

Sending messages as the page

Responding to and deleting comments as the page

Removing and adding people from and to the page

Creating advertisements and promotions with prior approval from “Franchisor”

Boosting posts

Viewing insights

“Franchisee” will incorporate the same information provided below on the individual location-based page, given
that any information in brackets will be changed to “Franchisee” specific location information.
Website: https://www.facebook.com/BestInClassEducationCenter/ [FRANCHISEE FACEBOOK WEBSITE]
Username/handle: @BestinClassEducationCenter [FRANCHISEE USERNAME]

e About page:

o Info: Tutor/Teacher Franchising Service

o Website: https://www.bestinclasseducation.com

o Mission:
Best in Class Education is not just our name, but our motto as well. In addition to giving top of the
line education from quality instructors, we offer a fully customizable approach towards learning that

is sure to move your children towards the head of their class. With weekly testing and fully

developed course materials, we monitor students' progress every step of the way. Your children will

gain a sense of confidence and excitement towards learning unlike any they have experienced
before. Get started today and give your children the gift of a lifetime.

Individual needs require individual attention. That is why at Best In Class Education Center our

teachers monitor each student's progress through daily homework exercises and weekly tests and

provide tailored help to meet each student's specific needs.
o Contact Info:

Call: (888) 683-8108 [FRANCHISEE PHONE NUMBER]

Message: @BestInClassEducationCenter [FRANCHISEE USERNAME)]

E-Mail: info@bestinclasseducation.com [FRANCHISEE EMAIL]

Website: https://www.bestinclasseducation.com [FRANCHISEE WEBSITE]

More info:

About: Our goal is to motivate and encourage students to learn the principles of mathematics

and English in a way that they will find rewarding and enjoyable.
Products: Tutoring Service Pre-K through 12th Grade; SAT / ACT and Gifted Test Prep
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m Category: Tutor/Teacher — Franchising Service

m  Story: Best in Class Education Centers are institutions specialized in tutoring Mathematics and
English for both enrichment and remedial purposes. Opened in Washington in 1995, Best In
Class Education Center is committed to strengthening students' analytical and reasoning skills
through our tailor-made teaching materials and professional guidance.

The exercises are carefully formulated and tested so as to provide students with enough drilling
in different aspects. They enable students to have a complete revision of their learned topics. As
an educator, we encourage students to develop their potentials and make progress whenever
possible. Therefore, if students are capable of learning something ahead of their day school
curriculum schedules, they can proceed to learn and practice it under our step-by-step guidance.
In fact, some students are doing mathematics three grades higher than in day school. This learn-
at-your-own-pace approach renders the learning process more flexible and prepares students for
their future academic needs.
m Milestones: Best in Class reaches 1,000 fans: 2013

5.5.2 Twitter

Website: https://twitter.com/bestinclassedu
Username/Handle: @BestinClassEdu
e About: Best in Class Education is our name and motto. We offer best in class education from quality

instructors. Give your child the gift of a lifetime

5.5.3 LinkedIn

Website: https://linkedin.com/company/best-in-class-education
e About: Best in Class Education is not just our name, but our motto as well. In addition to giving top-of-

the-line education from quality instructors, we offer a fully customizable approach towards learning that
is sure to move your children toward the head of their class. With weekly testing and fully developed
course materials, we monitor each student's progress every step of the way. Your children will gain a
sense of confidence and excitement towards learning unlike any they have experienced before. Get
started today and give your children the gift of a lifetime.

e Specialties: Education, Tutoring, Math, English, Test Preparation, SAT/ACT Preparation, Enrichment.

e Website: http://bestinclasseducation.com/

e Industry: Education Management

e Type: Educational

e Headquarters: 2100 E Spruce St Seattle, WA 98122 United States

e Founded: 1995

6 Usage

6.1 Best Practices for Posting Content

e Add value:
Contribute to the community by adding value and keeping material focused and relevant to education-
related topics. Social communication should help our parents, students, and staff. To add value, content
should improve knowledge, build skills, help solve problems, build problem-solving abilities, or provide
further understanding of our “company,” services, and/or values.
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e Be engaging:
Social Media promotes the franchised business and engages with customers. Engage in conversation
with customers and prospective ones. Social Media should not simply be used to sell; instead it exists to
communicate and to build value. Read what others are posting, don’t just post your own content. Seek
first to understand your audience. Be proactive, get involved, and stay involved with your communities.

e Be objective:
Never give an opinion that can be construed as judgmental. Do not talk about politics or religion. Keep
it all about the business and the type of information that adds value and is interesting and entertaining.
Never share anything you wouldn’t say to all parties involved.

e Do not oversell:
Use social media to send coupons and offers from time to time, but always seek approval before posting
offers and remember to maintain balance. That is, your communications should not be only about
sending coupons or sharing offers.

e Be positive and respectful:
Encourage, commend, and build up the members of your community. Do not post or link to any
materials that are defamatory, harassing, or indecent. Never criticize your competitor. Always be
respectful.

e Be professional:
Be careful of whose and what messages you repost. You can be judged by the company you’re
associated with. Make sure that you always associate with people online the same way you do offline.

6.2 Voice

6.2.1 Community Engagement (Posts, Comments, and Replies)

e Write in first-person perspective as the “Franchisee”. This entails using the username/handle as the
“speaker”, and using pronouns such as, ‘we,” ‘us,” and ‘our’.

e Only speak on behalf of the “Company” upon receipt of prior approval from the “Franchisor.”

e Use a friendly and engaging voice while maintaining a professional tone. The voice should be fun,
simple, easy to read, and informative.

e Be positive and encouraging.

e Use spell check and check your grammar.

e Social Media is conversational, so talk to your readers like you would talk to real people in professional
situations. Encourage comments. You can also broaden the conversation by citing other experts (not
competitors) in your blogs, or by sharing or reposting other content.

6.2.2 Crisis Management (Negative Reviews/Criticism)

If “Franchisee” receives a negative review or comment on any “Social Media Marketing Material”, special
consideration must be taken on the approach to the response.
e Do not accept or deny responsibility.

e Be polite.

e Be concise.

e Do not argue with a complaint, instead, offer to discuss the complaint via private messaging to better
assist the customer. Example: “I’m sorry you had that experience, please send us a private message so
that we can better assist you.”
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6.3 Scheduled Usage

“Franchisee” will have regular scheduled postings at least 4 (four) times a month.

6.4 Personal Usage

Keep in mind that you are a representative of Best in Class on and off the job. Personal posts, comments, and
pictures may reflect on Best in Class if made public. “Franchisee” should use his/her best judgment while

posting anything online that could be considered harmful or inappropriate.

Best Practices for Personal Usage:
e Avoid using profanity.

Do not make defamatory or disparaging comments.

Do not use Social Media to threaten, harass, or intimidate.
Do not pick fights or be overly aggressive.

Avoid discussions about politics or religion.

Avoid posting in anger.

6.5 Restrictions

“Franchisee” speaks for itself and not the “Franchisor”. “Franchisee” is not permitted to make any statements on
its Social Media accounts on behalf of the “Franchisor” unless specifically authorized to do so. Although the
“Franchisee” Social Media accounts are specific to the franchised business, they still represent the Franchise
System as a whole, and “Franchisor” has the right to control brand messaging. “Franchisee” must comply

immediately with any request by “Franchisor” to remove or modify any content contained on “Franchisee”

Social Media accounts.

Content Restrictions:

“Franchisee” will not post any material without approval from the Best in Class Support Team.

“Franchisee” will not offer promotions without approval from the Best in Class Support Team.

“Franchisee” will not post any sensitive, confidential, personal, or proprietary information or intellectual
property regarding “Company,” its employees, or any clientele.

“Franchisee” will not post the trademarks, slogans, or logos of competitors without the prior written
authorization of “Franchisor”.

“Franchisee” will not post any financial information about “Franchisor”, “Franchisee”, other franchisees,
or the Franchise System.

“Franchisee” will not post any information regarding legal issues involving the Franchise System
including, but not exclusive to, disputes or disagreements within the system and with third parties,
lawsuits, and compliance issues.

“Franchisee” will not post any material which is false, threatening, pornographic, defamatory, libelous,
harassing, or antagonistic.

Violations of any of the above could result in disciplinary action, up to, and including termination.

6.6 Integrity & Attribution

1.
2.

Do not defame or libel any person or company.
Be honest. Do not post any false content.
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3. Do not post under a fictitious name.

4. Do not ask employees, friends, or family to post positive comments, reviews, or ratings to combat
negative reviews. This is an unfair and deceptive trade practice under Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act and may also violate state laws. It also violates the terms of service of many ratings
websites, and the false comments will be removed or the account suspended or terminated.

5. When sharing other people’s content, “Franchisee” will give proper attribution to the original creator of
the content, and will not replace the username/handle of the original creator of the content.

6. Do not use the likeness of any person without their permission.

7. Do not post Social Media Content that implies the endorsement of any person who has not agreed in
writing to endorse Best in Class Education.

8. Ensure that if a person whom you have compensated in exchange for an endorsement of Best in Class
Education discloses that they have been compensated for their endorsement.

7. Compliance

This policy does not contain all information relevant to compliance with applicable law or Social Media site’s
terms of service. “Franchisee” is responsible for investigating all laws and terms of service before engaging in
social media. Always use a Social Media site in accordance with its terms of use. “Franchisee” should review
the terms of use of all Social Media sites they use and ensure their use complies with them. “Franchisee” is
responsible for ensuring their employees are aware of this policy and the terms of the franchise agreement and
Operations Manual that apply to “Franchisee” use of Social Media. Violation of these policy guidelines may be
grounds for immediate termination. Nothing in this policy should be interpreted to prevent “Franchisee” or the
employees of “Franchisee” from discussing working conditions or organized labor on social media or otherwise.

8. Conclusion

Social media can help us build a stronger, more successful community, and it’s a way for staff, members, and
the public to have conversations about important educational news, updates, and matters.

Franchisee Acknowledgement

I, “Franchisee,” acknowledge that I have read “Social Media Policy for Franchisees” and agree to the guidelines,
terms, and conditions set forth in this policy:

Franchisee Name:

Franchisee Signature:

Date:
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EXHIBIT "I"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document
be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California e h ]
Hawaii May28,2024
[linois
Indiana May 16202430, 2025
Maryland Fe 28,2024
Michigan May 3, 20242025 (amended May 27, 2025)
Minnesota Fuly 102024
New York November 2024
North Dakota
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Virginia e i)
Washington
Wisconsin May 16;262429, 2025

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such
as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing
plans.
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EXHIBIT "J"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

RECEIPTS

[See Attached]
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If BiC Franchise System Corporation offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14
days before you sign a binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or ten (10) business days before the execution of the
franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If BiC Franchise System Corporation does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false
or misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency
listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure Document.

The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:

Hao Lam; 3712 88th Ave SE, Mercer Island, Washington 98040; (206) 380-6068

Issuance Date: May 1,202427, 2025

BiC Franchise System Corporation’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this
Disclosure Document (for franchise registration states) or EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document (for all
other states).

I received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT "A" List of State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
EXHIBIT "B" Agent for Service of Process

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "E" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIT "F" List of Franchisees

EXHIBIT "G" Financial Statements of BiC Franchise System Corporation
EXHIBIT "H" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "H"-1 State Addenda

EXHIBIT "H"-2  Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire

EXHIBIT "H"-3  General Release

EXHIBIT "H"-4  Satellite Office Addendum

EXHIBIT "H"-5 Social Media Policy

EXHIBIT "I" State Effective Dates
EXHIBIT "J" Receipts
Print Name
Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise Owner

(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to BiC Franchise System Corporation.)
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

g z aHs—[f BiC Franchise System Corporation offers you a
franchlse it must prov1de this Dlsclosure Document to you 14 days before you sign a binding agreement or
make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York law
requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or
ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If BiC Franchise System Corporation does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false
or misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency
listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure Document.

The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:

Hao Lam; 3712 88th Ave SE, Mercer Island, Washington 98040; (206) 380-6068

Issuance Date: May +;,262427, 2025

BiC Franchise System Corporation’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this
Disclosure Document (for franchise registration states) or EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document (for all
other states).

I received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT "A" List of State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
EXHIBIT "B" Agent for Service of Process

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "E" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIT "F" List of Franchisees

EXHIBIT "G" Financial Statements of BiC Franchise System Corporation
EXHIBIT "H" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "H"-1  State Addenda

EXHIBIT "H"-2  Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire

EXHIBIT "H"-3  General Release

EXHIBIT "H"-4  Satellite Office Addendum

EXHIBIT "H"-5 Social Media Policy

EXHIBIT "I" State Effective Dates
EXHIBIT "J" Receipts
Print Name
Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise Owner

(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to BiC Franchise System Corporation.)
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